
STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF LONG TERM SUPPORTS AND SERVICES
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Interim Commissioner 603-27I-5034 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 5034
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Melissa A. Hardy

Director

January 18, 2023

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301
REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Long Term Supports
and Services, to enter into a Sole Source amendment to an existing contract with Lamprey
Health Care, Inc., (VC177677), Newmarket, NH, to add funding to support the expansion of a
statewide Outreach Specialist model to implement the Chronic Disease Self-Management
Program, statewide, by increasing the price limitation by $130,000 from $200,922 to
$330,922, with no change to the contract completion date of September 30, 2025, effective
upon Governor and Council approval. 100% Federal Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on September 21. 2022,
item #27.

Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Year 2023, and are
anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Years 2024 and 2025, upon the availability and
continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget
line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the
Budget Office, if needed and justified.

See attached fiscal details.

EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Source because the Department is requesting to add more than 10%
of the dollar amount of the original contract. This funding will allow the Contractor to deploy a
licensed Self-Management Resource Center (SMRC) Statewide Outreach Specialist model. The
original scope of work included funding to support a centralized Statewide Outreach Specialist.
The Contractor and the Department made a strategic decision to decentralize the services to meet
the specific and ongoing needs of Individual communities and local citizens, therefore expanding
the program to an additional 150 individuals. This model will ensure a lasting investment In local
health care providers, local communities, and Individual citizens. The Statewide Outreach
Specialist model will provide evidenced-based education and training to local and community-
based health care leaders and health care providers, on the Chronic Disease Self-Management
Program, Chronic Pain Self-Management Program, and the Powerful Tools for Caregivers
Program.

The Chronic Disease Self-Management Program, Chronic Pain Self-Management
Program, and the Powerful Tools for Caregivers Program evidenced-based programs support
individuals age 60 years and older with chronic conditions and are designed to assist these
individuals improve and sustain a healthier and higher quality of life and to provide caregivers with
self-care skills aimed at reducing personal stress, communicating their needs with family

n

The Department of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.
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members, healthcare providers and in challenging situations, coping with difficult emotions, and
making difficult caregiver-related decisions.

The Chronic Disease Self-Management Program, Chronic Pain Self-Management
Program, and the Powerful Tools for Caregivers Program empowers individuals to maintain
healthier relationships, better physical health and stronger emotional well-being. The work of
these programs are in line with the Department's mission to join communities and families in
providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence through community
collaboration and awareness of evidence-based health promotion and education.

These self-help evidence-based programs were developed in 1996 at the Stanford
University School of Medicine. The Self-Management Resource Center (SMRC) was established
to grant and monitor licensure.

Approximately 25 health care leaders and health care providers will be trained and
educated and approximately 300 individuals will be served during State Fiscal Years 2023.2024,
and 2025.

The Department will monitor services by:

• Ensuring all participants demonstrate sustained improvement from pre-service
survey result baselines in an at least two (2) survey indicators such as physical
activity and confidence in managing chronic conditions.

• Demonstrating an increase in collaboration with community partners by the vendor.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, the Contractor will not be
able to expand a Statewide Outreach Specialist model, causing a reduction in the delivery of
evidenced-based programs which support individuals age 60 years and older with chronic
conditions. Fewer New Hampshire citizens will have access to Chronic Disease Self-Management
Program education, Chronic Pain Self-Management Program education, and the Powerful Tools
for Caregivers Program education. Health care leaders and health care providers will not be
aware of these workshops and to the tools available to educate and improve the health and well-
being of their patients and communities.

Area served: Statewide.

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number CFDA 93.043, FAIN #2201NHOAPH
and CFDA 93.043, FAIN#2101NHPHC6.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not be
requested to support this program.

ictfully submitted,
rs

A

Weaver

IntehAi Commissioner

i/r\



FISCAL DETAIL SHEET

SFY 23, 24 25 Chronic Disease and Self-Management Program and The Powerful Tools for Caregivers

05-95-48-481010-8917 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:

ELDERLY AND ADULT SERVICES. GRANTS TO LOCALS, HEALTH PROMO CONTRACTS

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)

Amount

Revised

Budget

2023 074-500589
GRANTS FOR PUB

ASST ANDREI!
48108460 $42,440.00 $0 $42,440.00

2023 074-500589
GRANTS FOR PUB

ASST AND RELI
48108461 $7,791.00 $0 $7,791.00

2024 074-500589
GRANTS FOR PUB

ASST AND RELI
48108460 $56,586.00 $0 $56,586.00

2024 074-500589
GRANTS FOR PUB

ASST AND RELI
48108461 $10,388.00 $0 $10,388.00

2025 074-500589
GRANTS FOR PUB

ASST AND RELI
48108460 $56,586.00 $0 $56,586.00

2025 074-500589
GRANTS FOR PUB

ASST AND RELI
48108461 $10,388.00 $0 $10,388.00

2026 074-500589
GRANTS FOR PUB

ASST AND RELI
48108460 $14,146.00 $0 $14,146.00

2026 074-500589
GRANTS FOR PUB

ASST AND RELI
48108461 $2,597.00 $0 $2,597.00

Subtotal $200,922.00 $0 $200,922.00

05-95-48-481010-26380000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:

ELDERLY AND ADULT SERVICES, GRANTS TO LOCALS, GENERAL FUND MATCH FOR ARPA

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)

Amount

Revised

Budget

2023 074-500589
GRANTS FOR PUB

ASST AND RELI
48130622 $0 $37,143.00 $37,143.00

2024 074-500589
GRANTS FOR PUB

ASST AND RELI
48130622 $0 $74,286.00 $74,286.00

2025 074-500589
GRANTS FOR PUB

ASST AND RELI
48130622 $0 $18,571.00 $18,571.00

2026 074-500589
GRANTS FOR PUB

ASST AND RELI
48130622 $0 $0.00 $0.00

Subtotal $0 $130,000.00 $130,000.00

Contract

Total
$200,922.00 $130,000.00 $330,922.00
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #1

This Amendment to the Chronic Disease and Self-Management Program and The Powerful Tools for
Caregivers contract is by and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human
Services ("State" or "Department") and Lamprey Health Care, Inc., ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on September 21, 2022, (Item # 27), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the
terms and conditions specified in the Contract and in consideration of certain sums specified: and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 17, the Contract may be amended
upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to increase the price limitation to support continued delivery of these
services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$330,922.

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.9, Contracting Officer for State Agency, to read:

Robert W. Moore, Director.

3. Modify Exhibit B, Scope of Services, Statement of Work, by replacing all references to the

Statewide Outreach Specialist to read:

1.5 Statewide Outreach Specialist Model.

4. Modify Exhibit B, Scope of Services, Section 1, Statement of Work, 1.5.1. to read:

1.5.1. The Contractor must deploy and implement a Statewide Outreach Specialist Model to
conduct a minimum of fifteen (15), statewide, evidenced-based education and training
workshops on CDSMP, CPSMP, and PTC, to local community-based health care
providers using a SMRC-licensed trainer. Five (5) of the trainings must be in
geographic areas of the State where workshops have not previously been conducted,
as approved by the Department.

1.5.1.1. Marketing Chronic Disease Program/Chronic Pain Self-Management
Program workshops.

1.5.1.2. Recruiting new workshop leaders.

1.5.1.3. Establishment of workshop locations.

1.5.1.4. Recruiting workshop participants.

5. Modify Exhibit C Payment Terms, Section 1 to read:

1. This Agreement is funded by:

1.1 60% Federal funds. Title lll-D Preventative Health, as awarded on 04/27/22, by the
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Special Programs for the Aging,
CFDA 93.043, FAIN #2201NHOAPH.

1.2 40% Federal funds. Title lll-D Preventative Health, as awarded on 5/3/21, by the U.S.
Department of Health and Human Services, Special Programs for the Aging, CFDA
93.043, FAIN #2101NHPHC6.

Lamprey Health Care, Inc. A-S-1.3 Contractor Initials

RFA-2023-BEAS-02-CHRON-01-A01 Page 1 of 4 Dale ̂ /J-8/2023
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6. Modify Exhibit C Payment Terms, Section 3 to read:

3. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the
fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved line items, as
specified in Exhibits C-1, Budget through C-7, Budget , Amendment 1, SPY 2025.

7. Add Exhibit C-5, Budget, Amendment 1. SPY 2023, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

8. Add Exhibit C-6, Budget, Amendment 1. SPY 2024, which Is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

9. Add Exhibit C-7 Budget,, Amendment 1, SPY 2025, which Is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

C—DS
O)

Lamprey Health Uare, Inc. oonirduior umiais
^  1/18/2023

RFA-2023-BEAS-02-CHRON-01-A01 Page 2 of 4 Date
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All terms and conditions of the Contract not modified by this Amendment remain in full force and effect.
This Amendment shall be effective upon Governor and Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date \A/ritten below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

1/18/2023

Date

■DocuSlgned by:

Name: Menssa Hardy
Title: Director, dltss

1/18/2023

Date

Lamprey Health Care, Inc.
DbcuSigned by:

(Wuft
White

Title: CEO

Lamprey Health Care, Inc.

RFA-2023-BEAS-02-CHRON-01-A01

A-S-1.2

Page 3 of 4
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

•DoeuSlgned by:

1/18/2023

EOoeuSlgned by:
W9W4»*4(M1-t60..; :—

MamP'Robyn GuannDate Name:Rooyn Guanno
Title. Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: {date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:

Lamprey Health Care, Inc. A-S-1.2

RFA-2023-BEAS-02-CHRON-01-A01 Page 4 of 4
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Exhibit C-5, Amendment 1. SFY 2023 RFA-2023-BEAS-02-CHRON-01-A01

N«w Hampfthlr* of HooHh and Human Sarvkai

Contractor Nwnt; Lmpny Heallh Ctrt, Inc.,

Budool RmuoiI lor Oirenie CtsMM ond Sall-Kitnngtmtnl Prog'tm ond Th» Powerful Toolt la Caragrvori
BudflCl Poriod Upon GtC Approval ■ June 30, 3023

Indlrocl Cost Rals (11 soplteabtoliS OOSt
1

•  Llnslism Propram Cost'• Funded by DHHS *

$5,040

SMS

3. Consuttsnti

4. Equlpmtnt

Indiisct cost rsts connol bo applied lo

e<iulpmant costs per 2 CFR 200,1 and
Aooendlr IV lo 2 CFR 200.

$0

S.(i) 3uppllas - Educstlonal
$0

5.(b) Suppllas-Lab
$0

i,(c) SuppUas - Phaimacy
$0

5.(d) Suppllas-Madeal
so

S,(a) Supplias Offlca
so

0. Tiaval

so

so

t, (a) Olbei • Markabn^l

CommunicsUons

so

a. rb1 Other > Educaticn and Traininn

S8.700

ntfwr In/anna snanftrJ

so

1

1

so

Orhar Inlnata anar.itrl

so

nnuir Inlaatn tnaatrl

so

519,000

Total DIroct Costs $34,391

Total Indlract Costs
$2,751

TOTAL $37,143

Contractor Initials.

Date

1/18/2023
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Exhibit C-6. Amendment 1. SFY 2024 RFA-2023-BEAS-02-CHRON-01-A01

N«w Hampshirt Oapaftmaflt of Hoalth and Human Sarriea*
ContrKtorNama: t.ampfa/Haa«n C»a, foe.,

Budoal Raquaal for CAroni; O'ltasa and Sad-Managamenr Program and Tho Povitlul Teelt tot Cuogttf
eudaal Pariod SPy tOi-l Mf 1. 2023^0 30, tOU

1

LIna flam ' Program Coat'Fundad by DHHS

1, Salary SWaoea

$20.MS

7  Frirnia Baneflla

S).S)7

3, Ccniultnnta

to

4. Edulpmen)

indirael coal lala aannol ba appliad to

aquipmanl eotU par 2 CFR 200,1 and
AppandilV lo 2 CFR 200.

to

S.(a) Suppfiai • Educatlonaf
t7,000

S.(b) Suppbea-Lab
to

S.(c) Suppdet • Pliaimacy
to

S,(d] Suppliaa • Madeal
to

S.(a) Suppdai Offlea
tt.Mt

to

7  Safbraia

to

$. (a) Ottiaf • MarhaOnpf

t2.000

ts.ooo

to

to

to

Orfiar rpfaaaa tpaofyl

to

9. Subiacfplani Contracia

$27,000

Total Olraci Coata "  t«S,7t)

Total Indiract Coata

ts,tot

T6UL t74.2t<

Contractor Initials.

Date
1/18/2023
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Exhibit C-7. Amendment 1, SFY 2025 RFA-2023-BEAS-02-CHRON-01-A01

N4W OtpAftmMt ol and Humwi S«rvk«t

Contractor Lampny Cf», fric..

Budaol RoquMt lor Ovonc Omoio and Program and Tn« PmrtfM Tooli tar Carapniora

Budgal Partod SfY i02S July 1. 2024-Util. 30. 2024

Indlrael Cott Rala (If apolkabk) 8.00%
1

j  LIna'llain. Pnagnrh Coat • Funded by_DHHS

jr

SS.t71

$884

$0

*. Equipment

Indtcct coat lale cannot ba applad to

equlpmant coata pel 2 CFR 200.1 and
Aooaodh IV to ? CFR 200.

$0

S.(a) Supptea • Educadonal
$2,240

S.(b) Supplea-Lab
$0

S.<c) Suppbat • Pbaimacy
$0

S.(d) Supplea-Medical
$0

S.(a) SuppteaOdlce
$0

S. Travel

$0

$0

8. (a) Other - Martetinp/
$0

8 Ibt Other • Education and TiaMna

6 Id Other - Other faoediv betovO

Olhar lolaaaa io*eiM

$0

Odiar lolaaaa aoacilvl

$0

$0

0 Sutvedolent Conbacti

$8,800

Total DIract Coata $17,190

Total Indirect Coata

,  $1,370

TOTAL $18,871

Contractor Initials.

Date

1/18/2023



DocuSign Envelope ID: FE4955CB-970B-424C-9AED-54A98AC8D571

State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, David M. Scanlan, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that LAMPREY HEALTH CARE,

INC. is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on August 16, 1971, I further

certify that all fees and documents required by the Secrctar>' of State's office have been received and is in good standing as far as

this office is concerned.

Business ID: 66382

Certificate Number: 0005770882

h

5?
iOm

<5^

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

1 hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 29th day of April A.D. 2022.

David M. Scanlan

Secretary of State
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

I, Thomas Christopher Drew, hereby certify that:

1. I am a duly elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer of Lamprey Health Care, Inc.

2. The following Is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of
Directors/shareholders, duly called and held on March 25. 2020, at which a "quorum of the
Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

VOTED: That Gregory White, CEO, Is duly authorized on behalf of Lartiprey Health Care, Inc, to
enter into contracts or agreements with the State of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or
departments and further Is authorized to execute any and all documents, agreements and other
Instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which may In his/her
judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. 1 hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and
effect as of the date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This
authority remains valid for thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further
certify that It Is understood that the State of New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as
evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the posltlon(s) indicated and that they
have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any limits on the authority
of any listed individual to bind the corporation In contracts with the State of New Hampshire, all
such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated: January 5, 2023

Signature of Elected Officer
Name: Thomas Christopher Drew
Title: Treasurer, Board of Director, Lamprey Health Care

Rev. 03/24/20
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/\C:ORD'

LAMPHEA-01

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

CSMITH10

DATE (MliMJO/YYYY)

11/30/2022

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such ondorsement(s).

PRODUCER License#1780862
HUB International New England
275 US Route 1
Cumberland Foreside, ME 04110

cgNjACT Lauren Stiles
PHONE FAX
lA/C. No. Ext): (A/C, No):

Lauren.Stiles@hublnternational.com

INSURRRIS) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC0

INSURER A Philadelphia Indemnity Insurance Company 18058

INSURED

Lamprey Health Care, Inc.
207 South Main Street
Newmarket, NH 03857

INSURER B Atlantic Charter Insurance Comoanv 44328

INSURER C

INSURER 0

INSURER E

INSURER F

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER; REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POUCIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR

JJB.
TYPE OF INSURANCE

AODL SUBR

msi.
POLICY NUMBER

POLICY EFF
(MMfDD/YYYYI

POLICY EXP
IMMIDDfYYYYI

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

I CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR
EACH OCCURRENCE

PHPK2423860 7/1/2022 7/1/2023
DAMAGE TO RENTED
PREMISES IFa occufrencal

MED EXP (Any one personi

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY

GEIVL AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

POLICY LOC

OTHER:

GENERAL AGGREGATE

PRODUCTS • COMP/OP AGG

1,000,000

100,000

5,000

1,000,000

3,000,000

3,000,000

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

ANY AUTO

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
(Ea aeddenll

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

SONLY

SCHEDULED
AUTOS

N'
Ai

BODILY INJURY (Per person!

BODILY INJURY (Per acddenll

PROPERTY DAMAGE
iPef accKlenii

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

DED

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

EACH OCCURRENCE

AGGREGATE

RETENTIONS

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABIUTY

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE
QFFICERAIEMBER EXCLUDED?
Mandatory in NN)
If yes, describe urvlarII yes,

I t M

□
WCA00545410 7/1/2022 7/1/2023

V PER
STATUTE

OTH-

N/A
E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

500,000

E.L. DISEASE • EA EMPLOYEE! 500,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT
500,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS 1 VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached If more space Is required)

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health & Human Services
129 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 03301

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03) © 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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Lamprey
Health Care
Where Excellence and Caring go Hand in Hand

Our Mission
The mission of Lamprey Health Care is to provide high quality primary medical care and health related
services, with an emphasis on prevention and lifestyle management, to all individuals regardless of
ability to pay.

♦ We seek to be a leader in providing access to medical and health services that improve the health status
of the individuals and families in the communities we serve.

♦  Our mission is to remove barriers that prevent access to care; we strive to eliminate such harriers as
language, cultural stereotyping, finances and/or lack of transportation.

♦  Lamprey Health Care's commitment to the community extends to providing and/or coordinating access
to a full range of comprehensive seiwices.

♦  Lamprey Health Care is committed to achieving the highest level of patient satisfaction thiough a personal
and caring approach and exceeding standards of excellence in quality and service.

Our Vision
We will he the outstanding primary care choice for our patients, our communities and our seiwice area,
and the standard hy which others are judged.
We will continue as pacesetter in the use of new knowledge for lifestyle improvement, quality of life.
We will he a center of excellence in service, quality and teaching.
We will he part of an integrated system of care to ensure access to medical care for all individuals and
families in our communities.

We will he an innovator to foster development of the best primai7 care practices, adoption of the tools of
technology and teaching.
We will-establish partnerships, linkages, networks and referrals with other organizations to provide
access to a full range of services to meet our communities' needs.

Our Values
We exist to serve the needs of our patients.
We value a positive caring approach in delivering patient services.
We are committed to improving the health and total well-being of our communities.
We are committed to being proactive in identifying and meeting our communities' health care needs.
We provide a supportive environment for the professional and personal growth, and healthy lifestyles
of our employees.
We provide an atmosphere of learning and growth for both patients and employees as well as for those
seeking training in primaiy care.
We succeed hy utilizing a team approach that values a positive, constructive commitment to Lamprey
Health Care's mission.

Affirmed 11/16/2022

1  " 1, 1 1
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BerryDunn

Z

Lamprey
Health Care
Where Excellence and Caring go Hand in Hand

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

and

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

September 30, 2021 and 2020

With Independent Auditor's Report
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^ BerryDunn

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Board of Directors

Lamprey Health Care, Inc. and Friends of Lamprey Health Care. Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of. Lamprey Health Care, Inc.
and Friends of Lamprey Health Care, Inc., which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of
September 30, 2021 and 2020, and the related consolidated statements of operations, functional
expenses, changes in net assets and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the
consolidated financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; this includes the design,
implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our
audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly,
we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Maine • New Hampshire • Massachusetts ■ Connecticut • WestVirglnio • Arizona

berrydur^n.com
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Board of Directors

Lamprey Health Care. Inc. and Friends of Lamprey Health Care, Inc.
Page 2

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Lamprey Health Care, Inc. and Friends of Lamprey Health Care, Inc.
as of September 30, 2021 and 2020, and the results of their operations, changes in their net assets
and their cash flows for the years then ended, in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles.

•-S

Change In Accounting Principle

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, during the year ended September 30,
2021, Lamprey Health Care, Inc. and Friends of Lamprey Health Care, Inc. adopted new accounting
guidance. Financial Accounting Standards Board Accounting Standards Update No. 2014-09, Revenue
from Contracts with Customers {Topic 606), and related guidance. Our opinion is not modified with
respect to this matter.

Other Matter

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements as a whole. The accompanying consolidating balance sheets as of September 30, 2021
and 2020, and the related consolidating statements of operations and changes in net assets for the
years then ended, are presented for purposes of additional analysis rather than to present the financial
position, results of operations and changes in net assets of the individual entities, and are not a
required part of the consolidated financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records
used to prepare the consolidated financial statements. The information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audits of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting
and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with U.S. generally accepted
auditing standards. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to
the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

Portland, Maine
January 26, 2022
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Consolidated Balance Sheets

September 30, 2021 and 2020

ASSETS

2021 2020

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents $ 3,777,557 $ 3,504,514

Patient accounts receivable 1,389,692 1,396,652

Grants receivable 724,399 658,568

Other receivables 137,513 130,004

Inventory 177,384 129.591

Other current assets 262.941 147.799

Total current assets 6,469,486 5,967,128

Assets limited as to use 4,003,423 2,953,580

Property and equipment, net 7.507.299 7.795.861

Total assets $17,980,208 $16,716,569

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued expenses $  540,324 $  578,888

Accrued payroll and related expenses 1,306,202 1,322,364

Due to third party payers 241,394 119,639

Deferred revenue 423,922 . 72,421

Provider Relief Fund refundable advance - 196,549

COVID-19 Emergency Healthcare System Relief Fund
refundable advance - 250,000

Current maturities of long-term debt 90.068 88,027

Total current liabilities 2,601,910 2,627,888

Long-term debt, less current maturities 2,749,747 2,821,023

Fair value of interest rate swaps 67.441 217.657

Total liabilities 5.419.098 5.666.568

Net assets

Without donor restrictions 11,947,776 ■  10,579,230
With donor restrictions 613.334 470.771

Total net assets 12.561.110 11.050.001

Total liabilities and net assets $17,980,208 $16,716,569

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Consolidated Statements of Operations

' Years Ended September 30, 2021 and 2020

2021 2020

Operating revenue
Net patient service revenue
Rental income

Grants, contracts and contributions
Paycheck Protection Program
Other operating revenue

Net assets released from restriction for operations

Total operating revenue

Operating expenses
Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Supplies
Purchased services

Facilities

Other operating expenses
Insurance

Depreciation
Interest

Total operating expenses

Excess of revenue over expenses

Change in fair value of interest rate swaps
Grants for capital acquisition
Net assets released from restriction for capital acquisition

Increase in net assets without donor restrictions

$10,386,518 $ 9,708,842
181,128

8,644,519

634,309

364.248

11,309,801
2,258,427
954,094

2,504,470
667,034
860,344
140,849
476,470
102.602

936,631

150,216
216,414
65.285

176,353

5,663,601
2,152,212

410,309

242.945

20.210.722 18.354.262

11,106,208

2,096,040
747,665

1,691,285
574,422

474,659
140,572
462,768
111.808

19.274.091 17.405.427

948,835

(231,169)

129.356

$ 1.368.546 $ 847.022

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Consolidated Statement of Functional Expenses

Year Ended September 30, 2021

Total Administration

Healthcare Program and Support
Services AHEC/PHN Services Services Total

Salaries and wages $ 9,107,974 $  453,641 $ 9,561,615 $  1,748,186 $ 11,309,801

Employee benefits 1,627,746 83,428 1,711,174 547,253 2,258,427

Supplies 924,304 6,075 930,379 23,715 954,094

Purchased services 1,062,898 418,398 1,481,296 1,023,174 2,504,470

Facilities 475,941 26,042 501,983 165,051 667,034

Other 379,745 57,277 437,022 423,322 860,344

Insurance - - - 140,849 140,849

Depreciation - - - 476,470 476,470

Interest - - - 102,602 102,602

Allocated program support 1.373.345 93.217 1.466.562 f1.466.5621 -

Total $. 14.951.953 $  1.138.078 $ 16.090.031 $  3.184.060 $ 19.274.091

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Consolidated Statement of Functional Expenses

Year Ended September 30, 2020

Healthcare

Services

Total Program
Services

Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Supplies
Purchased services

Facilities

Other

Insurance

Depreciation
Interest

Allocated program support
Allocated occupancy costs

Total

AHEC/PHN Transportation

Administration

and Support
Services Total

$ 8.372,143 $ 498,707 $ 69,857 $ 8,940,707 $ 2.165,501 $ 11,106,208

1,567,514 93,157 12,726 1,673,397 422,643 2,096,040

708,447 7,255 - 715,702 31,963 747,665

879,416 114,614 - 994,030 697,255 1,691,285

23,488 402 8,652 32,542 541,880 574,422

166,743 61,261 - 228,004 246,655 474,659
_ _ 7,673 7,673 132,899 140,572
_ _ 26,400 26,400 436,368 462,768
_ _ - 111,808 111,808

754.724 74,216 14,538 843,478 (843,478) •  -

817.796 35.153 4.641 857.590 (857.5901 -

$ 13.290.271 $ 884.765 $ 144.487 $ 14.319.523 $ 3.085.904 $ 17.405.427

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Net Assets

Years Ended September 30, 2021 and 2020

2021 2020

Net assets without donor restrictions

Excess of revenue over expenses $ 936,631 $ 948,835
Change in fair value of interest rate swaps 150,216 {231,169}
Grants for capital acquisition 216,414
Net assets released from restriction for capital acquisition 65.285 129.356

Increase in net assets without donor restrictions 1.368.546 847.022

Net assets with donor restrictions

Contributions 572,096 224,245
Grants for capital acquisition - 82,721
Net assets released from restriction for operations (364,248) (242,945)
Net assets released from restriction for capital acquisition (65.2851 (129.356)

Increase (decrease) in net assets with donor restrictions 142.563 (65.335)

Change in net assets 1,511,109 781,687

Net assets, beginning of year 11.050.001 10.268.314

Net assets, end of year $12,561,110 $11,050,0^

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended September 30, 2021 and 2020

2021 2020

Cash flows from operating activities
Change in net assets $ 1,511,109 $  781,687

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash
provided by operating activities
Depreciation 476,470 462,768

Equity in earnings of limited liability company - 6,877

Change in fair value of interest rate swaps (150,216) 231,169

Grants for capital acquisition (216,414) (82,721)
(Increase) decrease in the following assets:

Patient accounts receivable 6,960 (39,883)
Grants receivable (65,831) (205,857)
Other receivable (7,509) 106,794

Inventory (47,793) (48,107)
Other current assets (115,142) (69,394)

(Decrease) increase in the following liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 80,263 (3,984)
Accrued payroll and related expenses (16,162) 361,340

Due to third-party payers 121,755 -

Deferred revenue 351,501 (12,997)
Provider Relief Fund refundable advance (196,549) 196,549

COVID-19 Emergency Healthcare System Relief Fund
refundable advance (250.0001 250.000

Net cash provided by operating activities 1.482.442 1.934.241

Cash flows from investing activities
Equity distribution from limited liability company - 12,224

Capital acquisitions (306.7351 (708.9971

Net cash used by investing activities (306.7351 (696.7731

Cash flows from financing activities
Grants for capital acquisition 216,414 82,721

Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt - 2,100,000

Principal payments on long-term debt (69.2351 (1.328.2161

Net cash (used) provided by financing activities 147.179 854.505

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash 1,322,886 2,091,973

Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash, beginning of year 6.458.094 4.366.121

Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash, end of year $ 7.780.980 $ 6.458.094

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (Concluded)

Years Ended September 30, 2021 and 2020

2021 2020

Breakdown of cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash,
end of year
Cash and cash equivalents $ 3,777,557 $ 3,504,514
Assets limited as to use 4.003.423 2.953.580

$ 7.780.980 $ 6.458.094

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information

Cash paid for interest $ 102,6^ $ 111,808
Capital expenditures included in accounts payable $ — $ 118,827

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

September 30, 2021 and 2020

Organization

Lamprey Health Care, Inc. (LHC) is a not-for-profit corporation organized in the State of New
Hampshire. LHC Is a Federally Qualified Health Center (FQHC) whose primary purpose is to provide
high quality family health, medical and behavioral health services to residents of southern New
Hampshire without regard to the patient's ability to pay for these services.

Subsidlarv

Friends of Lamprey Health Care. Inc. (FLHC) is a not-for-profit corporation organized in the State of
New Hampshire. FLHC's primary purpose is to support LHC. FLHC is also the owner of the property
occupied by LHC's administrative and program offices in Newmarket, New Hampshire. LHC is the sole
member of FLHC.

1. Summarv of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements of the Organization have been prepared in accordance with
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (U.S. GAAP), which require the Organization to
report information in the consolidated financial statements according to the following net asset
classifications: ■

Net assets without donor restrictions: Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed
restrictions and may be expended for any purpose in performing the primary objectives of the
Organization. These net assets may be used at the discretion of the Organization's
management and the Board of Directors.

Net assets with donor restrictions: Net assets subject to stipulations imposed by donors
and grantors. Some donor restrictions are temporary in nature; those restrictions will be met
by actions of the Organization or by the passage of time. Other donor restrictions are
perpetual in nature, whereby the donor has stipulated the funds be maintained in perpetuity, of
which there were none in 2021 or 2020.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of LHC and its subsidiary, FLHC
(collectively, the Organization). All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been
eliminated in consolidation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial
statements. Estimates also affect the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

-10-
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

September 30, 2021 and 2020

Income Taxes

'  Both LHC and FLHC are public charities under Section 501 (c){3) of the Internal Revenue Code. As
public charities, the entities are exempt from state and federal income taxes on income earned in
accordance with their tax-exempt purposes. Unrelated business income is subject to state and
federal income tax. Management has evaluated the Organization's tax positions and concluded
that the Organization has no unrelated business income or uncertain tax positions that require
adjustment to the consolidated financial statements.

COVID-19

In March 2020, the World Health Organization declared coronavirus disease (COVID-19) a global
pandemic and the United States federal government declared COVID-19 a national emergency.
The Organization implemented an emergency response to ensure the safety of its patients, staff
and the community. In adhering to guidelines issued by the State of New Hampshire and the
Center for Disease Control and Prevention, the Organization took steps to create safe distances
between both staff and patients. All providers received the necessary equipment to allow for
medical and behavioral health visits using telehealth. Facility modifications.included installation of
plexi-glass partitions, restructuring of work stations to allow for 6 feet between staff, heating,
ventilation, and air conditioning systems were modified to improve air exchange rates and tents
and awnings were setup to allow screening, testing and vaccine administration outside of the four
walls of the clinics. In addition, the Organization created contained infection control wings at all
sites to evaluate and treat patients that screen positive for COVID-19 and deployed a mobile
health van to provide testing, vaccination and other service capacity to other areas of the
community.

The Organization received a loan in the amount of $2,152,212 in April 2020 pursuant to the
Paycheck Protection Program (PPP), a program implemented by the U.S. Small Business
Administration (SBA) under the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security (CARES) Act and
the Paycheck Protection Program and Health Care Enhancement (PPPHCE) Act. The PPP was
subject to forgiveness, upon the Organization's request, to the extent that the proceeds were used
to pay qualifying expenditures, including payroll costs, rent and utilities, incurred by the
Organization during a specific covered period. The Organization determined the conditions for
forgiveness were substantially met during the year ended September 30, 2020 and recorded
revenue equal to the full amount of the PPP. The Organization was notified in June 2021 the PPP
was fully forgiven by the SBA and the lender. The PPP can be audited by the SBA for up to six
years from the date of forgiveness.

The CARES Act and the PPPHCE Act established the Provider Relief Fund (PRF) to support
healthcare providers in the battle against the COVID-19 outbreak. The PRF is being administered
by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services (HHS). The Organization received PRF in
the amount of $196,549 during the year ended September 30, 2020, incurred qualifying
expenditures of $196,549 during the year ended September 30, 2021 and recorded grant revenue
equal to the qualifying expenditures in 2021. Due to the complexity of the reporting requirements
and the continued issuance of clarifying guidance, the amount of income aljowed to be recognized
may change. Any difference between amounts previously estimated and amounts subsequently
determined to be recoverable or payable will be included in income in the year that such amounts
become known.
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

September 30, 2021 and 2020

During May 2020, the Organization received a loan in the amount of $250,000 from the COVID-19
Emergency Healthcare System Relief Fund {Relief Loan), a program implemented by the State,
Department of Health and Human Services and available for use through December 30, 2020. The
Relief Loan had the potential to be converted to a grant at the sole discretion of the State. The
Relief Loan was converted to a grant on October 9, 2020 and recognized as revenue at that time.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of business checking and savings accounts as well as petty
cash funds.

The Organization maintains cash balances at several financial institutions. The balances are
insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) up to $250,000. At various times
throughout the year, the Organization's cash balances may exceed FDIC insurance. The
Organization has not experienced any losses in such accounts and management believes it is not
exposed to any significant risk.

Revenue Recognition and Patient Accounts Receivable

During the year ended September 30, 2021, the Organization has adopted Financial Accounting
Standards Board Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with
Customers {Topic 606), and related guidance, which supersedes accounting standards that
previously existed under U.S. GAAP and provides a single revenue model to address revenue
recognition to be applied by all companies. Under the new standard, organizations recognize
revenue when a customer obtains control of promised goods or services in an amount that reflects
the consideration to which the organization expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods and
services. Topic 606 also requires organizations to disclose additional information, including the
nature, amount, timing, and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from contracts with
customers. The Organization elected to adopt this ASU retrospectively with the cumulative effect
recognized at the date of initial application; therefore, the consolidated financial statements and
related notes have been presented accordingly.

The adoption of Topic 606 had no impact on the Organization's net assets, results of its
operations, or cash flows. The adoption of Topic 606 did change how implicit price concessions
are presented in the consolidated financial statements. Under the previous standards, the estimate
for amounts not expected to be collected based upon historical experience was reflected as a
provision for doubtful accounts, and presented separately as an offset to net patient service
revenue. Under the new standards, the estimate for amounts not expected to be collected based
on historical experience continues to be recognized as a reduction to net revenue, but not
reflected separately as provision for doubtful accounts.
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

September 30, 2021 and 2020

The impact of the adoption on.the consolidated statement of operations for the year ended
September 30, 2020 was as follows;

Adjustments
As due to

Originally Topic 606 Revised
Reoorted Adoption Balance

Patient service revenue $ 10,206,803 $ {497,961) $ 9,708,842
Provision for bad debts (497.961) 497.961 i

Net patient service revenue $ 9,708^842 $ —- $ 9,708,842

Patient service revenue is reported at the amount that reflects the consideration to which the
Organization expects to be entitled in exchange for providing patient care. These amounts are due
from patients and third-party payers (including commercial insurers and governmental programs).

Performance obligations are determined based on the nature of the services provided by the
Organization. The Organization measures the performance obligation for medical, behavioral
health and ancillary services from the commencement of a face-to-face encounter with a patient to
the completion of the encounter. Ancillary services provided the same day as the face-to-face
encounter are• considered to be part of the performance obligation and are not deemed to be
separate performance obligations. The Organization measures the performance obligation for
contract pharmacy services based on when the prescription is dispensed to the patient as reported
to the Organization by the third-party administrator. The Organization's performance obligations
are satisfied at a point in time.

The Organization determines the transaction price based on standard charges for goods and
services provided, reduced by contractual adjustments provided to third-party payers, discounts
provided to uninsured patients in accordance with the Organization's sliding fee discount program,
and implicit price concessions provided to uninsured patients. The Organization determines its
estimates of contractual adjustments and discounts based on contractual agreements, its discount
policies, and historical experience. The Organization determines its estimate of implicit price
concessions based on its historical collection experience.

Consistent with the Organization's mission and FQHC designation, care is provided to patients
regardless of their ability to pay. Therefore, the Organization has determined it has provided
implicit price concessions to uninsured patients and patients with uninsured balances (for example,
copays and deductibles). The implicit price concessions included in estimating the transaction
price represent the difference between amounts billed to patients and amounts the Organization
expects to collect based on its collection history with those patients.
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

September 30, 2021 and 2020

The Organization has determined that the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and
cash flows are affected by the payer. In assessing collectabiiity, the Organization has elected the
portfolio approach. The portfolio approach is being used as the Organization has a large volume of
similar contracts with similar classes of customers (patients). The Organization reasonably expects
that the effect of applying a portfolio approach to a group of contracts would not differ materially
from considering each contract separately. Management's judgment to group the contracts by
portfolio is based on the payment behavior expected in each portfolio category. As a result,
aggregating all the contracts (which are at the patient level) by the particular payer or group of
payers will result in the recognition of the same amount of revenue as applying the analysis at the
individual patient level. Payer concentrations are disclosed in Note 9.

The Organization bills the patients and third-party payers several days after the services are
performed. A summary of payment arrangements follows:

Medicare

The Organization is primarily reimbursed for medical, behavioral health and ancillary services
based on the lesser of actual charges or prospectively set rates for all FQHC services furnished to
a Medicare beneficiary on the same day when an FQHC furnishes a face-to-face FQHC visit.
Certain other services are reimbursed based on fee-for-service rate schedules.

Medicaid

The Organization is primarily reimbursed for medical, behavioral health and ancillary services
based on prospectively set rates for an encounter furnished to a Medicaid beneficiary on the same
day when an FQHC furnishes a face-to-face FQHC visit. Certain other services are reimbursed
based on fee-for-service rate schedules.

Other Pavers

The Organization has also entered into payment agreements with certain commercial insurance
carriers, health maintenance organizations, and preferred provider organizations. Under these
arrangements, the Organization is reimbursed for services based on contractually obligated
payment rates for each Current Procedural Terminology code, which may be less than the
Organization's public fee schedule.
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

September 30, 2021 and 2020

Patients

The Organization provides care to patients who meet certain criteria under its sliding fee discount
policy without charge or at amounts less than its established rates. Because the Organization does
not pursue collection of amounts determined to qualify as charity care, they are not reported as net
patient service revenue. The Organization estimates the costs associated with providing charity
care by calculating the ratio of total cost to total charges, and then multiplying that ratio by the
gross uncompensated charges associated with providing care to patients eligible for free care. The
estimated cost of providing services to patients under the Organization's sliding fee discount policy
amounted to $1,000,557 and $1,041,631 for the years ended September 30, 2021 and 2020,
respectively. The Organization is able to provide these services with a component of funds
received through local community support and federal grants.

For uninsured patients who do not qualify under the Organization's sliding fee discount program,
the Organization bills the patient based on the Organization's standard rates for services provided.
Patient balances are typically due within 30 days of billing; however, the Organization does, in
certain instances, enter into payment agreements with patients that allow payments in excess of
one year. For those cases, the financing component Is not deemed to be significant to the
contract.

340B Contract Pharmacv Program Revenue

The Organization, as an FQHC, is eligible to participate in the 340B Drug Pricing Program. This
program requires drug manufacturers to provide outpatient drugs to FQHCs and other covered
entities at a reduced price. The Organization contracts with local pharmacies under this program.
The contract pharmacies dispense drugs to eligible patients of the Organization and bill
commercial insurances on behalf of the Organization. Reimbursement received by the contract
pharmacies is remitted to the Organization, less dispensing and administrative fees. The
dispensing and administrative fees are costs of the program and not deemed to be implicit price
concessions which would reduce the transaction price.

Laws and regulations governing the Medicare, Medicaid and 340B programs are complex and
subject to interpretation. Management believes that the Organization is in compliance with all laws
and regulations. Compliance with such laws and regulations can be subject to future government
review and interpretation, as well as significant regulatory action including fines, penalties and
exclusion from the Medicare, Medicaid, and 3408 programs. Differences between amounts
previously estimated and amounts subsequently determined to be recoverable or payable are
included in patient service revenue in the year that such amounts become known.

-15-



DocuSign Envelope ID: FE4955CB-9708-424C-9AED-54A98AC8D571

LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

September 30, 2021 and 2020

Patient Accounts Receivable

Patient accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from
outstanding balances and consisted of the following at September 30:

2021 2020

Medical and dental patient accounts receivable $ 1,210,952 $ 1,099,010
Contract 340B pharmacy program receivables 178.740 297.642

Total patient accounts receivable $ 1,389,6^ $ 1,396,6^

Accounts receivable at October 1, 2019 were $1,237,130.

The Organization grants credit without collateral to its patients, most of whom are local residents
and are insured under third-party payer agreements. The accounts receivable from patients and
third-party payers, net of allowances, were as follows at September 30:

2021 2020

Governmental plans
Medicare 22 % 20 %

Medicaid 35 % 33%

Commercial payers 21 % 24%

Patient 22% 23 %

Total 100 % 100 %

Grants and Other Receivables

Grants and other receivables are stated at the amount management expects to collect from
outstanding balances. All such amounts are considered collectible.

The Organization receives a significant amount of grants from HHS. As with all government
funding, these grants are subject to reduction or termination in future years. For the years ended
September 30, 2021 and 2020, grants from HHS (including both direct awards and awards
passed through other organizations) represented approximately 78% and 80%, respectively, of
grants, contracts and contributions revenue.

A portion of the Organization's revenue is derived from cost-reimbursable grants, which are
conditioned upon certain performance requirements and/or the incurrence of allowable qualifying
expenses. Amounts received are recognized as revenue when the Organization has met the
performance requirements or incurred expenditures in compliance with specific contract or grant
provisions, as applicable. Amounts received prior to incurring qualifying expenditures are reported
as deferred revenue. The Organization has been awarded cost reimbursable grants in the amount
of $3,779,537 and $2,968,196, which are primarily available through May and June 2022 and
March 2023, respectively, that have not been recognized at September 30, 202:1 because
qualifying expenditures have not yet been incurred.
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

September 30, 2021 and 2020

The Organization also received a capital grant, Health Center Infrastructure Support, in the
amount of $671,534, which is available for use for approved capital projects through September
14, 2024. The Organization intends to use this grant for renovations of the Organization's Nashua,
New Hampshire facility. See Note 4 for further discussion regarding the project.

Assets Limited as to Use

Assets limited as to use include cash and cash equivalents designated by the Board of Directors
for specific projects or purposes as discussed further in Note 3.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are carried at cost. Maintenance, repairs and minor renewals are
expensed as incurred and renewals and betterments are capitalized. Provision for depreciation is
computed using the straight-line method over the useful lives of the related assets. The
Organization's capitalization policy is applicable for acquisitions greater than $5,000.

Contributions

Unconditional promises to give cash and other assets are reported at fair value at the date the
promise is received, which is then treated as cost. The gifts are reported as net assets with donor
restrictions if they are received with donor stipulations that limit use of the donated assets. When a
donor restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is
accomplished, net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified as net assets without donor
restrictions and reported in the consolidated statements of operations as net assets released from
restriction. Contributions whose restrictions are met in the same period as the support was
received are recognized as net assets without donor restrictions.

Functional Expenses

The consolidated financial statements report certain categories of expenses that are attributable to
more than one program or supporting function of the Organization. Expenses allocated between
program services and administrative support include employee benefits which are allocated based
on direct wages, facilities which are based upon square footage occupied by the program, human
resources and information technology which is based upon employee worked hours attributed to
the program.

Excess of Revenue over Expenses

The consolidated statements of operations reflect the excess of revenue over expenses. Changes
in net assets without donor restrictions, which are excluded from this measure include
contributions of long-lived assets (including assets acquired using contributions which, by donor
restriction, were to be used for the purposes of acquiring such assets) and changes in fair value of
an interest rate swap that qualifies for hedge accounting.
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

September 30, 2021 and 2020

Subsequent Events

For purposes of the preparation of these consolidated financial statements, management has
considered transactions or events occurring through January 26, 2022, the date that the
consolidated financial statements were available to be issued. Management has not evaluated
subsequent events after that date for inclusion in the consolidated financial statements.

2. Availability and Liquidity of Financial Assets

The Organization regularly monitors liquidity required to meet its operating needs and other
contractual commitments. The Organization has various sources of liquidity at its disposal,
including cash and cash equivalents and a line of credit (Note 5).

The Organization had working capital of $3,867,576 and $3,339,240 at September 30, 2021 and
2020, respectively. The Organization had average days cash and cash equivalents on hand
(based on normal expenditures) of 73 and 75 at September 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

Financial assets available for general expenditure within one year as of September 30 were as
follows:

Cash and cash equivalents
Patient accounts receivable, net
Grants receivable

Other receivables

Financial assets available

2021

3,777,557
1,389,692
724,399
137.513

2020

3,504,514
1,396,652
658,568
130.004

$  6.029.161 $ 5.689.738

The Organization has certain board-designated assets limited as to use which are available for
general expenditure within one year in the normal course of operations upon obtaining approval
from the Board of Directors and other assets limited as to use for donor-restricted purposes, which
are more fully described in Note 3. Accordingly, these assets have not been included in the
quantitative information above.

The Organization's goal is generally to have, at the minimum, the U.S. Health Resources and
Services Administration recommended days cash and cash equivalents on hand for operations of
30 days.
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

September 30, 2021 and 2020

3. Assets Limited as To Use

Assets limited as to use are made up of cash and cash equivalents which are to be used for the
following purposes at September 30:

Board-designated for
Transportation
Working capital
Capital improvements
Other

Total board-designated

Donor restricted
\

Total

4. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consists of the following at September 30:

Land and improvements
Building and improvements
Furniture, fixtures and equipment

Total cost

Less accumulated depreciation

Construction in progress and assets not in service

Property and equipment, net

2021 2020

$  27,059 $  16,982

1,641,947 1,391,947

1,677,051 1,139,165

79.755 -

3,425,812 2,548.094

577.611 405.486

$ 4.003.423 $ 2.953.580

2021 2020

$ 1,154,753 $ 1,154,753

11,831,191 11,661,674

1.835.579 1.887.073

14,821,523 14,703,500
7.397.168 7.115.614

7,424,355 7,587,886

82.944 207.975

$ 7.507.299 $ 7.795,861

The construction in progress at September 30, 2021 primarily relates to the renovations of the
Organization's Nashua, New Hampshire facility to expand clinical space and reconfigure existing
space for improved workflows for increased patient access and improved patient experience..The
total project cost is estimated at $2,548,439 and anticipated to be funded by a capital grant, board
designated and donor restricted cash and debt financing. The renovation is projected to be
completed before the expiration of the capital grant in September 2024.

Property and equipment acquired with Federal grant funds are subject to specific federal
standards for sales and other dispositions. In many cases, the Federal government retains a
residual ownership interest in the assets, requiring prior approval and restrictions on disposition.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

September 30, 2021 and 2020

5. Line of Credit

The Organization has an available $1,000,000 revolving line of credit from a local bank through
May 2022, with an interest rate at Prime, but not less than 3.25% {3.25% at September 30, 2021).
The line of credit is collateralized by all business assets. There was no outstanding balance as of
September 30, 2021 and 2020.

6. Lona-Term Debt

Long-term debt consists of the following at September 30;

2021 2020

Promissory note payable to local bank; see terms outlined
below. (1) $ 811,195 $ 829,242

Promissory note payable to local bank; see terms outlined
below. (2) 2.028.620 2.079.808

Total long-term debt 2,839,815 2,909,050
Less current maturities 90.068 88.027

Long-term" debt, less current maturities $ 2,749,747 $ 2,821,023

(1) The Organization has a promissory note with a local bank which is a ten-year balloon note to
be paid at the amortization rate of 30 years, with variable monthly payments of principal and
interest at 85% of the one-month LIBOR rate plus 2.125% through February 2022 when the
balloon payment is due. The note is collateralized by the real estate. The Organization has an
interest rate swap agreement for the ten-year period through 2022 that limits the potential interest
rate fluctuation and substantively fixes the rate at 4.13%. On December 17, 2021, the Organization
received a commitment from a local bank to refinance the debt with a ten-year balloon note to be
paid at the amortization rate of 30 years, with variable monthly payments of principal and interest
and will obtain another interest rate swap agreement resulting in a fixed rate of 3.46%. Maturities
have been presented based on the terms of the refinancing.

(2) The Organization has a promissory note with a local bank which is a ten-year balloon note to
be paid at the amortization rate of 30 years, with variable monthly principal payments plus interest
at the one-month LIBOR rate plus 1.5% through October 2029 when the balloon payment is due.
The note is collateralized by the real estate. The Organization has an interest rate swap
agreement for the ten-year period through 2029 that limits the potential interest rate fluctuation
and substantially fixes the rate at 3.173%.
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

September 30, 2021 and 2020

The Organization is required to meet certain administrative and financial covenants under the loan
agreements included above. In the event of default, the bank, has the option to terminate the
agreement and immediately request payment of the outstanding debt without notice of any kind to
the Organization. The Organization was in compliance with all loan covenants at September 30,
2021.

Maturities of long-term debt for the next five years and thereafter are as follows at September 30;

2022

2023

2024

2025

2026

Thereafter

Total

$ 90,068
92,538
94,909
97,686
100,374

2.364.240

S 2.839.815

7. Derivative Financial Instruments

The Organization participates in certain fixed-payer swap contracts related to underlying, variable
rate debt obligations. The.purpose of these contracts is to protect the Organization against rising
interest rates related to the variable rate debt. These contracts qualify for hedge accounting as a
cash flow hedge and are reported at fair value as an asset or a liability. As a perfectly effective
cash flow hedge, the change in fair value of the contracts is reported in the change in net assets
without donor restrictions. The Organization expects to hold the swap contracts until their
respective maturities.

The interest swap contract terms are summarized as follows at September 30:

LHC

FLHC

Fixed

Rate

Paid

4.1300%

3.1730 %

Variable

Rate

Received

2.1993 %

1.5825 %

Notional

Amount

;  805,486
2,017,954

2021 2020

Fair Value Fair Value

Asset Asset

(Uabjllty) (Liability)

$ (2,632)
(64.809)

(18,241)
(199.416)

Termination

Date

01-19-2022

10-02-2029

Counterparty

TO Bank

TO Bank

Cumulative unrealized loss $  (67.441) $ (217.657)

U.S. GAAP establish a fair value hierarchy that distinguishes between market participant
assumptions based on market data obtained from sources independent of the reporting entity
(observable inputs that are classified within Levels 1 and 2 of the hierarchy) and the reporting
entity's own assumptions about market participant assumptions (unobservable inputs classified
within Level 3 of the hierarchy).
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

September 30, 2021 and 2020

/_eve/ 1 — Quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets or liabilities in active markets that the
entity has the ability to access as of the measurement date.

ievel 2 — Significant other observable inputs other than Level 1 prices, such as quoted prices for
similar assets or liabilities, quoted prices in markets that are not active, and other inputs that are
observable or can be corroborated by observable market data.

ievel 3 — Significant unobservable inputs that reflect an entity's own assumptions about the
assumptions that market participants would use in pricing an asset or liability.

The Organization uses inputs other than quoted prices that are observable to value the interest
rate swaps. The Organization considers these inputs to be Level 2 inputs in the context of the fair
value hierarchy. These values represent the estimated amounts the Organization would receive or
pay to terminate agreements, taking into consideration current interest rates and the current
creditworthiness of the counterparty (present value of expected cash flows).

8. Net Assets

Net assets without donor restrictions are designated for the following purposes at September 30:

2021 2020

Undesignated $ 8,521,964 $ 8,031,136
Board-designated (Note 3) 3.425.812 2.548.094

-j-otal $11.947.776 $10.579.230

Net assets with donor restrictions were restricted for the following specific purposes at September
30:

2021 2020

Temporary in nature:
Capital improvements $ 214,647 $ 214,647
Community programs 382,817 170,745
Substance abuse prevention 15,870 20,094
Grants for capital acquisitions not in service : 65.285

Total $ 613.334 $ 470.771
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

September 30, 2021 and 2020

9. Patient Service Revenue

Patient service revenue was as follows for the years ended September 30:

2021 2020

Gross charges $14,780,770 $13,852,130
340B contract pharmacy revenue 1.853.873 1.617.196

Total gross revenue 16,634,643 15,469,326

Contractual adjustments and implicit price concessions (5,684,212) (5,514,248)
Sliding fee discounts (777,588) (811,423)
Other patient related revenue 213.675 565.187

Total patient service revenue $10,386,518 $ 9,708,842

The mix of net patient service revenue from patients and third-party payers was as follows for the
years ended September 30:

2021 2020

Medicare

Medicaid

Other payers
Self-pay and sliding fee scale patients

14% 16%

42% 46%

41 % 36%

3% 2%

100% 100 %

10. Retirement Plan

The Organization has a defined contribution plan under Internal Revenue Code Section 403(b).
The Organization contributed $281,223 and $292,808 for the years ended September 30, 2021
and 2020, respectively.

11. Medical Malpractice

The Organization is protected from medical malpractice risk as an FQHC under the Federal Tort
Claims Act (FTCA). The Organization has additional medical malpractice insurance, on a claims-
made basis, for coverage outside the scope of the protection of the FTCA. As of September 30,
2021, there were no known malpractice claims outstanding which, in the opinion of management,
will be settled for amounts in excess of either FTCA or medical malpractice insurance coverage,
nor are there any unasserled claims or incidents which require loss accrual. The Organization
intends to renew medical malpractice insurance coverage on a claims-made basis and anticipates
that such coverage will be available.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

September 30, 2021 and 2020

12. Litigation

From time-to-time certain complaints are filed against the Organization in the ordinary course of
business. Management vigorously defends the Organization's actions in those cases and utilizes
insurance to cover material losses. In the opinion of management, there are no matters that will
materially affect the Organization's consolidated financial statements.
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Consolidating Balance Sheet

September 30, 2021

ASSETS

Friends of

Lamprey Lamprey
Health Care, Health Care, 2021

Inc. Inc. Consolidated

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents $  2,297,060 $  1,480,497 $  3,777,557

Patient accounts receivable 1,389,692 - 1,389,692

Grants receivable .  724,399 - 724,399

Other receivables 137,513 - 137,513

Inventory 177,384 -
177,384

Other current assets 262.941 " 262.941

Total current assets 4,988,989 1,480,497 6,469,486

Assets limited as to use 4,003,423 - 4,003,423

Property and equipment, net 5.830.543 1.676.756 7.507.299

Total assets $ 14.822.955 $  3.157.253 $ 17.980.208

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued expenses $  537,394 $  2,930 $  540,324

Accrued payroll and related expenses 1,306.202 -
1,306,202

Due to third party payers 241,394 -
241,394

Deferred revenue 423,922 - 423,922

Due to affiliate

Due to (from) affiliate 21,985 (21,985) -

Current maturities of long-term debt 45.072 44.996 90.068

Total current liabilities 2,575,969 25,941 2,601,910

Long-term debt, less current maturities 766,123 1,983,624 2,749,747

Fair value of interest rate swap 2,632 64,809 67,441

Due to (from) affiliate 1.073.876 f1.073.8761 "

Total liabilities 4.418.600 1.000.498 5.419.098

Net assets

Without donor restrictions 9,791.021 2,156,755 11,947,776

With donor restrictions 613.334 -
613.334

Total net assets 10.404.355 2.156.755 12.561.110

Total liabilities and net assets $ 14.822.955 $  3.157.253 $ 17.980.208
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Consolidating Balance Sheet

September 30, 2020

ASSETS

Lamprey
Health Care,

Inc.

Friends of

Lamprey
Health Care. 2020

Inc. Consolidated

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents $  2,205,696 a>  1,298,818 $ 3,504,514

Patient accounts receivable 1,396,652 - 1,396,652

Grants receivable 658,568 - 658,568

Other receivables 130,004 - 130,004

Inventory 129,591 - 129,591

Other current assets 147.799 - 147.799

Total current assets 4,668,310 1,298,818 5,967,128

Assets limited as to use 2,953,580 - 2,953,580

Property and equipment, net 6.009.215 1.786.646 7.795.861

Total assets $ 13.631.105 aE  3.085.464 $ 16.716.569

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued expenses $  578,888 SE  - $ 578,888

Accrued payroll and related expenses 1,322,364 - 1,322,364

Due to third party payers 119,639 - 119,639

Deferred revenue 72,421 - 72,421

Provider Relief Fund refundable advance 196,549 - 196,549

COVID-19 Emergency Healthcare System
Relief Fund refundable advance 250,000 - 250,000

Due to (from) affiliate 22,604 (22,604) -

Current maturities of long-term debt 44.453 43.574 88.027

Total current liabilities 2,606,918 20,970 2,627.888

Long-term debt, less current maturities 784,789 2,036,234 2,821,023

Fair value of interest rate swap 18,241 199,416 217,657

Due to (from) affiliate 1.104.410 n.104.4101 -

Total liabilities 4.514.358 1.152.210 5.666.568

Net assets

Without donor restrictions 8,645,976 1,933,254 10,579,230

With donor restrictions 470.771 - 470.771

Total net assets 9.116.747 1.933.254 11.050.001

Total liabilities and net assets $ 13.631.105 :B  3.085.464 $ 16.716.569
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Consolidating Statement of Operations

Year Ended September 30, 2021

Lamprey
Friends of

Lamprey
Health Care Health Care.

Inc. Inc.

2021

Eliminations Consolidated

Operating revenue
Patient service revenue

Rental income

Grants, contracts and contributions
Other operating revenue
Net assets released from restriction for

operations

Total operating revenue

Operating expenses
Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Supplies
Purchased services

Facilities

Other operating expenses
Insurance

Depreciation
Interest expense

Total operating expenses.

Excess of revenue over expenses

Change in fair value of interest rate swap
Grants for capital acquisition
Net assets released from restriction for

capital acquisition

Increase in net assets without donor

restrictions

$10,386,518
181,128

8.644,519
634,169

364.248

20.210.582

11.309.801
2,258,427
954,094

2,504,395
885,776
856,309
140,849

366,581

86.613

19.362.845

847.737

15,609
216,414

65.285

$  - $ - $10,386,518
227,916 (227.916) 181,128

8.644,519

140 - 634,309

-  - 364.248

75

9,174

4,035

109,889
15.989

139.162

88,894

134,607

228.056 (227.9161 20.210.722

-  11,309,801
2,258,427
954,094

2,504,470
(227,916) 667,034

860,344

140,849
476,470

:  102.602

(227.9161 19.274.091

936,631

150,216
216,414

65.285

$ 1.145.045 $ 223.501 $. $ 1.368.546
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Consolidating Statement of Operations

Year Ended September 30, 2020

Operating revenue
Patient service revenue

Rental income

Grants, contracts and contributions
Paycheck Protection Program
Other operating revenue
Net assets released from restriction for
operations

Total operating revenue

Operating expenses
Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Supplies
Purchased services

Facilities

Other operating expenses
Insurance

Depreciation
Interest

Total operating expenses

Excess of revenue over expenses

Change in fair value of interest rate swap
Net assets released from restriction for

capital acquisition

Friends of

Lamprey Lamprey
Health Cafe, Health Care,

Inc. Inc.

2020

Eliminations Consolidated

$ 9,708,842
176,353

5,663,601
2,152,212
410,188

242.945

18.354.141

11,106,208
2,096,040
747,665

1,691,103
798,038
474,659
140,572
352,880
79.288

17.486.453

867,688

(31,753)

129.356

$
227,916 (227.916)

121-

182

4,300

109,888
32.520

146.890

81,147

(199,416)

$ 9,708,842
176,353

5,663,601
2,152,212
410,309

242.945

228.037 f227.9161 18.354.262

-  11,106,208
2,096,040
747,665

1,691,285

(227,916) 574,422
474,659
140,572
462,768

:  111.808

(227.9161 17.405.427

948,835

(231,169)

^  129.356

Increase (decrease) in net assets
without donor restrictions $. 965.291 $ (118.269) $. $  847.022
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Consolidating Statement of Changes in Net Assets

Year Ended September 30, 2021

Net assets without donor restrictions
Excess of revenue over expenses
Change in fair value of interest rate swap
Grants for capital acquisition
Net assets released from restriction for capita!

acquisition

Increase in net assets without donor restrictions

Net assets with donor restrictions
Contributions

Net assets released from restriction for operations
Net assets released from restrictions for capital

acquisition

Increase in net assets with donor restrictions

Change in net assets

Net assets, beginning of year

Net assets, end of year

Lamprey
Friends of

Lamprey
Health Care, Health Care,

Inc. Inc.

2021

Consolidated

$  847,737 $  88,894 $  936,631
15,609 134,607 150,216

216,414 - 216,414

65.285 65.285

1.145.045 223.501 1.368.546

572.096 572,096

(364,248) - (364,248)

(65.2851 (65.2851

142.563 142.563

1,287,608 223,501 1,511,109

9.116.747 1.933.254 11.050.001

$10,404,355 $ 2.156.755 $12,561,110
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Consolidating Statement of Changes in Net Assets

Year Ended September 30, 2020

Net assets without donor restrictions

Excess of revenue over expenses
Change in fair value of interest rate swap
Net assets released from restriction for capital

acquisition

Increase (decrease) in net assets without donor
restrictions

Net assets with donor restrictions

Contributions

Grants for capital acquisition
Net assets released from restrictions for operations
Net assets released from restriction for capital

acquisition

Decrease in net assets with donor restrictions

Change in net assets

Net assets, beginning of year

Net assets, end of year

Lamprey
Friends of

Lamprey
Health Care, Health Care,

Inc. Inc.

2020

Consolidated

$  867,688
(31,753)

$  81,147
(199,416)

$  948,835
(231.169)

129.356 129.356

965.291 M 18.269^ 847.022

224,245

82,721
(242,945)

- 224,245
82,721

(242,945)

n29.356) f129.356)

^65.335) f65.3351

899,956 .  (118,269) 781,687

8.216.791 2.051.523 10.268.314

$ 9.116.747 $ 1.933.254 $11,050,001
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2022-2023 Board of Directors
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Tenn Ends 2023

Affiliation: Retired
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Committees: Executive (chair), Community
Relations and Marketing, Governance,
Personnel, Quality Assurance, Strategic
Planning, 50"' Anniversary

Amnd Ranade, (Vice President)

Term Ends 2024

Affiliation: SymbioSys Solutions, Inc.
Years, of Service: 7

Committees: Executive, Finance and Audit,

Technology

Thomas "Chris" Drew (Treasurer)

Tenn Ends 2025

Affiliation: Seacoast Mental Health Center

Years of Service: 24

Committees: Executive, Finance and Audit

(Chair) Personnel (Chair), Technology (Chair)

Laura Valencia (Secretary)

Term Ends 2025

Affiliation; Bristol Myers Squibb
Years of Service: 4

Committees: Executive, Community Relations
and Marketing, Equity and Diversity

n-Savage (Immediate Past
Chair/President)

Term Ends 2024

Affiliation: University of New Hampshire
Years of Ser\'ice: 32

Committees; Executive, Community Relations
and Marketing, Finance and Audit,
Governance, Strategic Planning

Michelle Boom

Tenn Ends 2025

Affiliation: Homemaker

Years of Ser\'ice: 3

Committees: Community Relations and
Marketing, 50'^ Anniversary

James Brewer

Tenn Ends 2025

Affiliation: Eastern Bank

Years of Service: 3

Committees: Finance and Audit, Equity and
Diversity, Strategic Planning

Raymond Goodman, III

Term ends 2024

Affiliation: University of Massachusetts
Foundation

Years of Service: 10

Committees: Community Relations and
Marketing (Chair), Quality Assurance

I  I ,P a g e Updated Novembei- 1 1 , 2022
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Todd J Hathaway

Lamprey
Health Care
Where Excellence and Caring go Hand in Hand

2022-2023 Board of Directors

Michael Reinke

Temi Ends 2023

Affiliation: Wadleigh, Starr & Peters, PLLC
Years of Service: 1

Committees: Governance, Quality Assurance

Carol LaCross

Term Ends 2024

Affiliation: Retired

Years of Service: 34

Committees: Finance and Audit,

Technology, Strategic Planning

Andrea Laske

82

Temi Ends 2025

Affiliation: Retired

Years of Service: 3

Committees: Quality Assurance (Chair),
Equity and Diversity, Strategic Planning

Mark Marandola

Term Ends 2023

Affiliation: Fidelity Investments

Years of Ser\'ice: 2

Committees; Quality Assurance

Term Ends 2023

Affiliation: Nashua Soup Kitchen & Shelter
Years of Service: 2

Committees: Equity and Diversity, Strategic
Planning

Samantha Slamas

Tenn Ends 2023

Affiliation: Southern NH University

Years of Service: 1

Committees; Community Relations and
Marketing

Wilberto Torres

Tenn Ends 2025

Affiliation: Agile Workplace Staffing/Bell
Tower Home Health Care

Years of Service: 5

Committees: Community Relations and
Marketing, Technology

2 I a g c U d a t c d N 0 V e m b e !• 1 1 , 2 0 2 2
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CONTRACTOR NAME

Key Personnel

Name" ' Job Title. Salary Amount Paid,
from this Contract

Nilanga Jean de Dieu Community Health
Worker/Program Coordinator

$5646
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Nitanga Jean De Dieu

EDUCATION

Southern New Hampshire University Manchester, NH
Business Administration May 2018

Cumulative CPA 3.5 | Presidential Scholarship
National Conference on Undergraduate Research. "Public Attitude towards Commercial Drones"

Community Health Worker Training, Southern NH AHEC June 2019
CAMPUS ENGAGEMENT ~

SNHU Penmen Men Varsity Soccer Team September 2016 - October 2017
•  Demonstrate leadership and teamwork to achieve goals; NEIO Champions, 2013 Dll National Champions
•  Head coach for New Hampshire Soccer Sphere youth organization coordinated by SNHU Men Soccer

SNHU Center for Community Engaged Learning August 2016-June 2016
•  Service Learning Coordinator - Support students to volunteer in local non-profit youth development organizations
•  Head Coordinator - Manage volunteers for BRING IT, a community-based initiative which provides educational

programs for over 400 youth on a yearly basis

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

Community Health Worker/Program Coordinator. Southern NH AHEC October 2018-Present
•  Coordinate Activities of the HealthQuest after school enrichment program.

•  Recniit participants, manage documentation and reporting and conduct evaluation.
•  Conduct outreach and community engagement for self-management programming.
•  Act as a research assistant for the Better Choices Better Health evidence-based self-management education

program

•  Assist in promoting community health worker workforce
•  Act as a liaison with community partners.

Owner /Entrepreneur, Private Soccer Coaching, Manchester, NH June 2017 - Present
•  Develop.and manage a private soccer coaching clinic for players ages 7-18
•  Oversee recmiting, training, and educating participants on sports safety while monitoring athletic progress
•  Recruit clients through phone calls, emails, social media and personal conversation
•  Demonstrate professional leadership and provided outstanding service to participants, successfully growing the

business from 5 clients to 25 clients

Finance Jntern, Granite United Way - Finance Department, Manchester, NH June 2016 - August 2016
•  Reviewed incoming individual and corporate payments and accurately updated payment spreadsheet for entry into

United Way database by finance staff members
•  Entered and updated database with donor contact and pledge information to ensure reliable gift processing
•  Trusted with confidential information and handled the security of daily bank deposits when needed.

Loaned Executive. Granite United Way, Manchester, NH July 2014 - October 2014
•  Organized, developed, and managed workplace campaigns; scheduled and conducted company orientations
•  Communicated to employee groups to promote the organization's impact on the local community
• Worked as part of a team to achieve $7-8 million dollar goal established by United Way staff

ADDITIONAL EXPERIENCE

Head Soccer Coach, FutsalNH, Derry,NH January 2017-Present
Head Soccer Coach (Seasonal). Manchester West High School, Manchester, NH August 2015-November 2015
Head Soccer Coach. INTI Academy, Manchester, NH January 2010-May 2015
•  Plan, organize and conduct practice sessions, adjusting coaching techniques based on strengths and weaknesses
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Handle emergencies and those brought on by injuries by practicing CPR and First Aid
Oversee the development and implementation of soccer programs to successfully recruit players

SKILLS

Languages: English, Kinyarwanda, Kirundi, and Swahili
Computer: Microsoft Word, PowerPoint and basis statistical function in Excel

LEADERSHIP AND VOLUNTEER

Safari Youth Club - Develop youth programing and serve as a positive role model for immigrant youth
BRING IT - Mentor immigrant and refugee youth participating in a community-based afterschool program
Guest Speaker - Discuss the importance of youth engagement at corporate and civic organizations
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Lori A. Shlbinetie

Commissioner

Melissa A. Hardy
'Direcior

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF LONG TERM SUPPORTS AND SERVICES

105 PLEASANT STREET. CONCORD. NH 03301

603-271-5034 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 5034

Fax: 603-27 U5166 TOD Access: 1-800-735-2964
www.dbhs.nh.gov

August 4, 2022

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T, Sununu
and the Honprable.Gouncil

state House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Long Term Supports
and Services, to enter into a contract with Lamprey Health Care, Inc., (VC# 66382), Neyvmarket,
NH, in the amount of $200,922 for chronic disease health promotion programs for individuals with
a chronic condition or family caregivers, statewide, with the option to renew for up to two (2)
additional years, effective October 1, 2022, upon Governor and Council approval, through
September 30, 2025. 100% Federal Funds,

Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Year 2023, and are
anticipated to tie available in State Fiscal Years 2024, 2025 and 2026, upon the availability and
continued appropriation of funds in the future operating txidget, with the authority to adjust budget
line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the
Budget Office, if needed and justified.

05-95-48-481010-8917 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN

SVS, HHS: ELDERLY AND ADULT SERVICES, GRANTS TO LOCALS, HEALTH PROMO
CONTRACTS

State

Fiscal Year

Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number Total Amount

2023 074-500589
GRANTS FOR PUB

ASST AND RELI
48108460 ,

$50,231

20,24 ■ 074-500589
GRANTS FOR PUB

ASST AND RELI
48108460

$66,974

2025 074-500589 GFIANTS FOR PUB

ASST AND RELI
48108460 $66,974

2026 074-500589 GRANTS FOR PUB

ASST AND RELI
48f08460 $16,743

Total $200,922

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is for the provision of the Chronic Disease Self-Management
Program, Chronic Pain Self-Management Program, and the, Powerful Tools for Caregivers
Program! The Chronic.Disease Self-Management arid Chronic Pain Self-Management programs
are^for individuals age 60 years and older with chronic cbnditioris statewide. The Powerful Tools
for Caregivers Program is for family caregivers statewide.
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Chronic Di^ase and Chronic Pain Self-Management Progfams ;are eyidenced-based
prograrns, wth goals tpjmpriye and sustain the health and quality of lifejor individuals who,,have,
one;'or :mpre chronic health conditibn(s). Individuals are taught ,how to better' manage ithe
syniptom of .lheir .illhesses, fatigue, stress , emotions, and to and to cope with'their iljnesses^and
[niprovedddmmuhication w|th.their health care providers,

iKe Rovyerfurtools' for Caregiyers Program is .an eyidenced-based education prc^ram
that offers'a'Un^que Combination of elements that provides camglvers:with!;self-care tools'and
Strategies'to .reduce personal stress, icbmmuhicate their needs to other family members *aryd
healthcare jDrovldere, bbmmuhicate effectively in challenging situations, cope wth difficult
emotions, and make difficult caregiyer dedsions,

These"programs have the, goal to enable Jndlviduals to m.aintain healthier Telationships,
better physjcai health, and stronger emotlona! well-being.

ApproximateTy 160 Individiials will be served during each State Fiscal Year of 2023.2024,
2025. 'ahd 2b26.. .

The Department vyill monitor services by:

"• Ensuring all 'participants demonstrate •sustained improvement from" pre-servlce
'survey result baselines in ah at least two (2) survey indicators such as physical
activity and .confidence jn' managirjg .chronic cpndjtipns.

.• 'Demonstrating an increase in collaboration with commiinitypartners by the vendor.

The Department Selected the Contractor through a competitive" .bid prowss ,using a
Bepuest for Proposals (RFP) that pqsted.Gn the Department's website frprn Febnjary 2.2022
thjpugh March-31. M the Departmerit received one (1) response that was revlevyed and
Iscored by. a.team, of qualified individuals. The Scorirlg Sheet is attached,

As referenced ih ;Exhibit'A. Revisions to Standard Agreement Provisions, Section 1,, of
'the attached lagreement, the*parties have the option to extend the agreement for up to !twp ;(2)
•,additipnal';years. ppntihgent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement
of the parties, and Goverhdr'and Council approval.

.'Shouldithe.Gbyer^or and Council hot authorize this request; individuals with chronic health
and.pairi .conditipns wHrhave less access to plJtain.cllnicaljy proven routines to reduce or eliminate
;anxiety and depression,, reduce stress, improye ;C6ncentratipri. minimize, frustration .aod ppger,
increase happiness, ahd^lrnprove energy;"caregivers will also hot have 'acce'ss to supports to
assist therh with their-cafetaking respornsibilitles.

Area seryed- Statewide,

iSburce of Federal Funds:;Assistance.Listing Number #93.043 FAIN #22bTNhlQAPH
In ithe.;event. that .the Federal Funds tjecome no longer^available. Ge'nerarFunds.wlll not

beTequested;to'sypport this program,

}^espectfully submitted'.

■

. Shibinette'
rn miccinnAr

'iriprovidingoppor,tunitin'for.cilizxn$ to ochieve health and.independence.



New rtampshire:bepartment:of Hiealth,and Human Services
pjvislon drFihahce\an'd.P^
Burea.u;of.'Cpntracts and.P^cuVem

.. .Scorih'g^Shwt . _ .

Project JOli,. •*R"FA-r262aXB^S^2-CVRON

P7o]ect'tiUe%;Chromc Disease-ariB^Serf-Managemerit^PrograrTi.'and the P'owet^ulrTootefor^Caregivere

Maximum;

Points

AS^iiabie: Lah^rey Heaithbs^idba.Sbi/theifl.NH AHEC
Technical " ' ' *

A±)iiity..tqEduca&lQl . 35" ^ ■'35

B(penenc8;in'M3'rt:etihg':Q2: 5  ; .5-

Capa'cityQS' • 10 8-

A6iiiV;io;lde_n(ffy;'Q4! 25. 23

Logistfcs Q5; 25 20

^  tOTALPbTNtS Too 91

ReWeweAKarhe. TiUe

JearvCrouch . •Convnunity'Sas^.Prbgrarn.Adniln; '

'<XoAnne MilesHbln^si ■jhjury^Pfdgram'.Klahager-

•TinaGouIet TManagerFamilyC'aregiver Support
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EORM NUNIBER P-i7 (version; 12/i i/20l9).

Subjcci:Ghronic biseascjand Scif-ManagemcnrProgram and The Powerful'Tools forfCaregivers (RFA;2023^-BEAS.-02s
CHRONVOI)

Notice: Jhis;agjwmcnf;arid;ali;6f its become publjc upon'submjssipn Ppycrnprjand,
Exccu'iivc.Cbuncil for'apprpyal, Any informaliori.'tharis'pnvatc, conndcmial or^propncta^
bc clcarly idenlificd to the agency and agrccd lo in .\yriiing prior to signing the contract.

acreemen:i:
The State of New,Hampshirc.and^ hereby mutualJy-;agrccias.fpllow^

genera,L;PR

i. IDENTIEjCATION.
1.1 State, Agcncy.Name

New Hampshire,Depahmcrit.bf.Hcalth and Human
Scr>'ic,«.

1.2 State Agency Addre.ss

l 29:Pleasant SiVeci'

tGohcort.'NH^Wiqi -.3.857

L3 :Gonirac[brNa"mc

Latriprey HOalih Gare,- Inc.

1.4 'Contractor Address

207 SoiiihiMain'Strcet, Newmarket; 03,857

1.5 Gonlractof.Phoric
Number

(6p3).6'59-2494

1.6 Account Number

P5t95-48^$IP10-S9I7

'1.7 Gompleiiori Date

:9/30/2025

1.8 .Rricc.;Eimitatibn

$2pp,922

I.St Contraciing^prnccr.Tor'Statc Agency

Robert \Y. Moore,,Director,

hlO^Siaic Agency Telephone Number

■(603),27lr9631

,1.11 Gpntractbr.'Signature
by: r

Palc6/:2/202;

1.. 12 'N.amciand Title,bfCbntractof S.igtiatory
Gregory white(-gQ

Sighalurc-

Dal(S/2/2022
>—l32)M<b4()6F4»5...

1.14 Nhmc ahd Tillc.of Slate Agcncyi^SjghatOry

Melissa Har'dyoirector. DtTS^-

1.15 .Approval by the n;h. Department of Admifiisiraiio.n, Division of Personnel (if applicable)

By; ;Dirccior,'On:

1.16 ARproval by4hc-Atlbrncy Genci^rfFpnTi, S.ubsiahcc and Execution). applicable)
DfteuSlgMid by;

m- 'mrnu

A .17 Approt'al by't'hc'Govcrnbr ahii .Exwuliyc'Cou^ (/applicable) '

iG^G.Iicmmumber:- G&G Meeting Date;

Page 1 of4
Gontractor fn'iliars: 0/2/202j:

:Date
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-2. iSERViGES TO BE PERJFORiVfED. Thc:^lflle:6r'Ncw
Hampshire; aciing ihroughiihc agency, ideniificd In block l.'l

-.('•Sia'te",);- engages, contractor lidehtified in. block- ;l.3
(■'GonVrahor^') ip.'perfpr^ pcrfomi, the

•wprk"-bf prlwlh.idehltfirt arid mofc pTaH^^^^
^described'1n the E^IBIT B: whjch'i? iricp.rporajcd
'herein'bj; reference ('^Services'*)/

.'3; EEFEDTIVEbATE/CdMPLEtlOiNOFS^
Ndtwithstanding any pro,vision *bf' this ■Agreement to the

contrary, :arid ^subject- to ihc lapproVal of ithe ^Governor arid
,Execuijyc Cp.uficil prthc,Siatc ori^ew/Harnpshirc, if^applicablcj

Agreement,arid aj.l pbl.igalioris'of the partics-hcfeund^ shalj
become effective On'the-:date,,the Govcmor and "Executive
)e6uncii approve, this Agreement' as iridicatcd iii block 1.17,
'urilc.ss;rio.such_appr.oval;is.r,cqu'ircd,J,n which casellhc Agreemen't
{Shall become'efrcctiv^^^ oh.tKc date the Agfceiticrii is signed.by
the'Sjate Agency as sbpwrilm bltxk :L (X;(''Er(?dl,'vc-Dafe:')-

,3;'2 If the Gpniractpr, cpmrnchccs the Services, prior 'to the
Effective Datc.jairScrviccs perrdrmedbythe doniractor priorito
the Effective.Date shall bc pcrformcd at the sole risk,of the
.Gontractor. an'd in thc c.vcnt that this Agreement does not.bccomc
•elTcctiyc, .the .SiaTc-shall have no: liability to ;tho Contractor,
.'ihcludjrig wihout 'limitation,, 'any 'Obligation to pay the
Gphfracto'r for. any .cpSls. incurred or' 'SctviceS performed.
Gqritracior mus3''cbrnple3.c all Serviccs\by.)thc dPfltplctipii Date
fspccilicd in block l.:7.

r  ,

4. CONDITIGNAL nature OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithsiandirig any pro.visibn of :this Agreement to, the
cohlrar^",. ;all •bbligaiiprisj 'of^-^hq State.Ihcreuhder, 'iridudirig,-
nyitho'ui !iriiitatibn,7lhc'cb^^^^ of paxmcrits;hc>curidcr, are
'cpritirigenl'upon (hc avaijability and continued appropriatibn of
funds arrccfed^by, any state Or .fcdcrai legislative or cxccuiiye
acliori that rcducc.s,- climinatc.s ;or otherwise modifies the
approprlationor availability of fundiiig fbrithis Agreement arid
ihc'Scppc for.;Scr,viccs provided in.EXHIBIT B, inAvhblc:or.in
:pan. In rib cyeii!;" shall thcJStatcOe liabje'fpr;ariy payments
'Hcrcundcf.iri cxccssofSue available appfppriatcd funds. In the
•cycril of a*'reduction .prTcrmmalipn Of appropriated 'funds, the
•State shall;havp'the right tp withhold payrficni urifil SuchTiirids
bepprnc-ayaijable, jf cverjiand Shall^havc the righl-jp reduce or
tcrniiriaic the Sbrviccs under this Agreement'itnincdiatci^ upon
igiying thc;Gpritract'or notice ofisuch' reductionibr iermiriation.
Thc^Staic shdPnoi bcTcquircd tp''tr3"sfcr funds from^any other
account on source :to the^Acco'urii idchtiricd'in block' 1.6 iri-the
c.vcnt furids.in that Account are reduced or unavailable;

-5, C&yTRA'GT PR.ie-E/
'PAWIENT;
5.1 .thclcbriiractpricc, method 0 payment "and terms of payment
arc identificd'and more particularly described in EXHIBITG-
whichiisrincprporatcd hcreiri-by-.rcfcrcnc'e.,
'5.2'Th"c;paymcht by.thc Sfatc-pf.ihcxbritraci price shall ,bc'thc
Orily ,ahd Itlic eojnplci.c: rcJmburScliicrii to/tivc Gbniracior Tpr';all,
!cxRChs_eS; pif .wKatcycrmat'ufe incu^cd. byuhc'Gohlraclor in'the
pcrforrriaricc hcrcbO -^h^-shall be the' only pn'd the "cbmpjetc

comperisatiori" to the Gbniracio/'fbri^he S'crviccs.'TH Siat^c'shaji
have no liability to the Coniracior other than-ihc'conlraci price.'
5".3 The State; reserves ihc• right :to;offsct from any amounts
otherwise payabl.eiO;the"Gpniracibruh A'grcemcri.l'those
liquidated ambuhls fequir^ or "petThitied bylN.R RSA 80:.7-
,thrpugh\RS A,'80:7i^ oqahy bthcr'prbVjsipn^of law.,
5.4 NbtwjthSiandi'ng [any- prbyjsibn' in IhisVAgrccfn'cni- to the
central^, arid notwithsianding:une.xpeclcd c[rcumsiapccSi In no
evcrii shall.the toia1iofairpaymcnt5:authorizcd,.oractua}iy.madci
hcrcundcr, exceed the Pricc'Limifa'iion set foHh-in blbck-f.S.

6.;COMPLlANCE BV CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AN'D REGULATIONS/EQUAUEMPLOVMENT
6pPpR7:3)NITY.
6.1 in connection .with ithc performance pt^thc'Services, ,tW
Cbritrac'tpr- .shall, ppmply 'with; pU applicable:ssintuics, :laws,.
rcgulaiibris,, arid'.orders bf federal, state, cburityor municipal'
au'iKorilics which impose any 'bbligatioti or duty [upon the}
Goriiractor; iricludinginbui rioi'limhecl ip,:civijfights and/cqual
emproymcnt opporturiity laws. ,ln;a"ddiil_on, irthifAgreement is
funded in any part by monies of thc.Oniicd St'aies,'thc.Coritraclor
shall comply wlth.all federal excculiye.orders, rulcs, rcguTaiions:
and .statutes; and with any rules,'regulations and.giiidelines as the
State of thc jyniiediSiatcs issue to implement these, rcgiilajibns..
The Gorilractbf shall ■aiso.cbrriply'.with all applicable iriicUcc.tual
propc'rty laws.
6.-2 During"ihe;tcfrri bf ihis Agrecriient, the'Gontractor shall ppl
discriminate- againsT'cmployces or';opplicaniS fqr .cmplqymcnt
because of race, colorvrcligion, creed, age, sex,-handicap, sexual
o.rientaiiori, br.natiorial origin and will,take affirmative action to
prevent such'discrirfiihatibn.
6:3,. The COnifactor'agrccs tofpcrmiirit.hc,State or .Ohitcd S.!ate.s
access to any pfthciCorilroct'of's books; .fccords'and accburitsTor
the purpose of asccrtairiin'g cornpliaricc vvith all rules, fcgulatibns-
and orders, and the' covenants, tcfms^ and condili.bnS; of'this
Agreement.

7., PERSONNEL.
7..1 The Cbritracior shall,at its.own expense prpyide.ali,personnel
necessary to pVrfprm Ihc^.cfyiccs. The, CPri'.faciqr warfanis'tHai,
all personnel engaged 'inMhc Scfyiccs shall .bc^qua|lfied'ip
perform ihe Services, and shalj, ,bc properly iiccnsed arid,
otherwise authorizcd'lo do so uridcf ali.applicablc lows,
7:2 Unless otherwise•a.ulhbri'zcd iri\v.Titing, duririg'ihc icrm of
iKl.s Agfcemen't,. and (or-a 'pc.riod of si.\ (6) :m6nths."anc'f; the
Completion ,Qate„iri bjp,ck;i .,7, the Contractor shall not hire,.and
-shall hbt permit: any ..subcontfactbr. :br other pcfsbri; fi rm" or
cbrppfatio'n \viih whbin UJis erigagcdfh ;a cqmbiried efloriub,
pcrfprm^ihc Scfviccs to'hire, ariy'p^rsqn.whq iVa.SialexmpIoyccj
-pr biticiai, 'who- Is malcnally jinvo'lyed in 'thc; prqcUrenicnf;--
a'dminlslralion or 'pcrforriiarice of this .AgrcjetTipnlt This
p'rpyision shall sufvlyc ic'rhiination of this. Agreement.
7-;3'-Thc fcpnVacjiing.Qfiiccr specified in[blbck 1.9,:of.'l)i.s p'r hcr
.siicccssbf, shal|"bc.ihc State's reprcscritaiiyc. 'In.thc cycm ofany
'dispute: cbnc.crriirig :thc: intbrprciaiiori, of this A'gfecmeni', the,
,e.bhfracjing;GITiccr\s.'dcc^ shrill .b.e!final -for the Strite;,

Page-2 o,f'4
Cbntfaclof iriilia'ls

:oa

m
D'ateWIM??
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8, E VENT Of pEFAULTmEMEprE^^
.8;1 Any-ohC or more orih"c:Mlowing.acts or omissions of the
/Coniraclorshall constitute ah"event of default'hereundcr (^tEveni
.of.Defaultn:
8.1.1 failure, ho {^rform the. Services satisfactorily .or on
schedule;
8.1.2<failure ib.sub'rhit any report rcqiiired.hcfcuhdcn'anl^^^
8.,1.3;failurc"tdpcrforrh7any ot.hcr
this;Agrccmcri.t.
8v2' Upon the occurrence'of any. Event of DefauU- the State may
take any one.^or more, or ail, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Coniractor a'writtcn notice specifying the Eycni'bf
Dcfa'uU.and requiring it tb;.b"Cr'crricbicy.Cyi?hih,'^ absenCe.of
a greater of (csscf sj^lfipajiph of iJrnc,- lHirty(30j days from the
dotc'orihc noliccjond ifihe-Event of Default is not timely cured,
icrminate.lhis Agreement, effective two'(2) days aRcr giving the
Goritractor notice of termination;;
8.2.2 give ihcGoniracior a Nvrittcn notice specifying ihc„Event of
Default land stispendirig 'all payments hp 'tc htiade under this
Agrccmcpt and b.rdcfing'that' the pbrtion orthcicohtraci price
which would ojhCfwisc/accruc to thc'G^^^ during-the
period from the date ofsuch notice until such time as the"State
dclcrmincsrihai the Contractor'has cured the Evcni of DcfauU
shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3,give the.Gofii.factof a vyrittcn notice specifying the Event of
Default and set bfr.against any/ohhc'rVobligari^^ State may
■owc^tohhVCbntfactpr any damagcs'the Shaic'suf^^^ by reason of

• any.,Eycnt>Tb,,efault;7an^^^
,872.4;giye i|ic eo^^^ notice spccifying'thc Event of
DcfauU, treat the Agreement "as breached, terminate the
Agreement and pursue any.of its remedies at lawor in equity, or
boiH.
8.3. No.failure by the State to.cnforcc.any provisions hereof aAcr

.any";EvchYbf DcTault ,shall be d^mcd a waiycf of its ri ghis.Aviih
regard to that .;Evcn! of CtefauU, 0? <any subsequent Event of
Default. No express faijufc tp 'cnfprce any'|vcnt of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of the right of the State io enforce each and
all of the provisions-hercof upon any further or:oihcr Event of
Default on the part of ihc.Conlracfor.

9. TERiVl [NATION.
=9.1 Nofwilhstahdihg iparagraph '8, the rSiatc mayj- at its sole
^4iscyctjph,'tcrm^ anyTcaspn, in whOlc;or

•.ih^part, fey thirty (30) 8ays written notice'to the'Goniracior that
the State Is'cxcrcising its option to'icrminalc the Agrcemcni.
9;-2 in the.cvcni ofian-carly •termination ofr'this.Agrccmcm.for
any reason other than the .completion-.of ,the Services, , the
Coriiractbr-.shall, ai the State's ■discretion, deliycf ;tb the
GohTracting'Qfriccr/hbi.Iatcrthan'Tiflccn'O dale,
of jCrminalipK; a.report ('T.?rid-'nA'','.Ph '^J^PPri!') describing in
detail all. Services perfort^^^^ arid the contract price earned^ to
and incfuding thc date of icrmihaiion. The form,- subject matter,
contcni, and mumber pf-copics of the Termination Report shall
be identical to ihose.of any Final Report described in ihe'atiached
'EXHIBIT B..ln;addiiiort,:aHhc Slate •s.-discfetibn, the Contractor
shall, within 15,days..bf-h6ticc,6rvcaTry tcririinatibh, dcycipp and

submit-Ho the State a Tran^tlon Plan "for services .under !ihc .
Agreement.

:iO. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
preservation;

•  ;i.0.l As used.in tliis/Ag'rccmcnl, the wbrd,"d.atfl" shall mean ajl
Ihfbrmauon and ..things or obtain^ during.thc
pcrfomiance of, ,br acquircd.oT; dcyclopcd.byreason p/r this
Agreement,'including, but not limiicd to,=all. $tudics,;rcports,
fi les,Tormui'ac,;Survcys; mapSj charts,,spund recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,rgraphic
representations, cbmputer;programs,'cbmputcr printouts, hptes,
letters; mcrndranda, papers, and d.ocumenisYall whether
fi nished or unfinished'.
10.-2 All data and any property which has been rcccivcd'from
the State or purcha-scd with'funds provided;for that purpose
undcrjthisAgreemeni.'Shall be the property of thciSlatc. and
shall.bc;reTumed tP thPStaic.upoh demand or uppn termination
of this Agfc'cmerit for any reason.
10.3 Confidentiality of shall be governed by N.H. R'SA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. ^Disclosure of data requires
prior AsTitien approval of the State.

11. CONTRACrOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In the
pcrformaiicc of this Agrc'cmcrit the GPniractp'r is in'all respects
ah independent cphlraclor, and 'is ncUhcV an agent nor ^an
employee'Of'the State. NcUljcr the Contractor nor anypf'iis
pffi.ccrs, ■cmployccs,-'agcnts or metnbcrs shall have authority to
bind the State;or receive any benefilf, ,workcrs":cOmpcnsation pr
other cmol'umcnis provided by the Siatc.to Its cmplpyces.

12. ASSlGNMENT^ELEGATION/SUBCONtRACTS.,
;[2.l The'Contractor shall not.^assign, or otherwisrtransfer any
interest In this Agreement wiiKput the poor wriueh,hqtice,-_\vhich

■  shall be provided to ihc Staic.at least'fiflecn (15) dayj;prl6r'i6
thc as.signmcni, and a .written coruscnt of the Staic.;For pu'qposes
of this paragraph; a Change of Cbnlrdl shall conslii'u'ic
assignment. "Change of Control" means (a) . .rnerger,

.. consolidation, ora transaction or scrics.'of r'clalcd.'transactiori'sin
which'a. third party, together syith Its'affiliatc.s. Incomes the
direct or i.hdireci ow^er of fi fty percent (50%),orimcrrc'pf the
.Voting shares ;or ;similar eq'uity ihicrcsts, ipt; combined Voting
power bfthc'Contractor; or (bj the'saic of all or siibstantiaily.'all
'b'nhc assets o'fihc Contractor;
r2.-2 None .'of (He Services shall be .subcontracted .by the,,
Contractor without'priorwritten notice.and consent of.thc.Staie.
The Stale is entitled to copi'csibf all subco'nit^ctsend.assighrhchi
.ngrcenichts and shall, not be bound by any p'royisip^ wntained
'in a,sul«bh!faci:or an t^signmcni agrccmeht tq-whjch,'i.l: i.?"nplja
party-

J'3. INDEMNrFrCATlON. .Unless otherwise exempted by law^
Ithc Contractor shall .indemnify and hold harmless the Stale, its
officers and employees, 'from and.agaihst any arid all claims,
liabiljtieiahd.cbstsforany pers^^^ injuiy or prppcrt.yYdamagcSj
paTcniVrcppyrighi.inTrmgcmcrLt,b7b.ther"cl.m
the.State, iisbfficers pYemplpyces, whl.ch anscipui'of

• may be blaimcd to .arise put. of) t.hc.acts or oniiss''-
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:Gp"ntract6r^^ sutephtract^ mclu'dmg buV nbi .Ijriiiicd Id 'thi?
inegiigence/reckless or'intentionar:conduct.- 'THe'.State shail not
be liaBlc.for any.-.costs.ihcurrcd,by the Gonlractor arising under
ithis:paragraph ,13. Not\vithstanding'tHc;foregoitig;noihing Herein
.contained shall be deemed to.conslitutc a^waiyerjoFthe sovereign
iimmunity.df tHcjStatc, which immunity is hc7cb'y reserved jo (he
^State. This cpyeham -iii; paragraph 13 ishall survjve the
jcrmjhat^qn'drihis ygrecmcntr

HvJNSV^GE.
r4.l The .Contractor :shall, ;at its sole-expense, .obtain and
jconiinuously maintain :in force, and. .shall 'require any
rsubcdhiracldf. or assignedjo pb.tain" and maintain' in fordc, the
ifplipwn.ng^in.sura . . . ...
l'4.1.1 commcrcialygeneraVliabiljiyj all cjaims

•of'bodjly injury; death^or property damage; in arnountsrof.not
less ihah S' 1,000,000 per occurrence, and 52,000,000 aggregate
,orexccss;iahd.
14.1.;2 spwial cause of joss cdvcragcTqmi

:subjcct tp"subpai;agraph jp.2'hefcin'',Tm an amount m)t less than
i8P%''of the w^plc replacement value pf the property.
14.2 Thc policics described in subparagraph 14.0-!herein shall be
on policy forms.and endorscnjenis 'approycd.ror.use.ih the State
,of New Hampshire by thc'N.H, Department of Insurance, and
jssued.by insurers licensed in the Srajc qf-Ncw Hampshire.'
14.3 The'Cohtracior shaU ifurnish ^p^th'C; ,Gd.n.tractin"g .Officer
identifiedJhybl^^^ l.;9, or his pr,her'Succe^^^ a^certificXie(s) of
iinsurance'-fpr all insurance required under this Agreement.
:GontractprsHallalso'furnish to the'Gonlracling.pfficcr identified
liri block 1.9,-or his or her,successor, iccrtificalc^s) of insurance
ifor alj;rcncv'ar(s);pfjnsura_nc'e7cquired under this Agreement no
later than ten j[10) days pri,pr,td the expiration .date j>f :cach
jnsurahqc pdjicy.. The'certincXc(s); !pf Jnsura and any
'renc.wals'jhercpf.shall .be atilchcd arid a7c iricpjpdrated herein by
,fcrcfciic'c>

fs. AVO'RKERS' CONlPENSAtiOiN.
"  l5.1 iBy signing this:agrcemcri,t;.ihciGpnjractPriagrccs, certifies
(and warrants lKal the ContraclPr iis in compliance with or c.x'cmpl
^frpm,'.the, rcquircmehis pf-.N.H. RSA, chapter 2.81 -A'C-'Jiforkcrs.'
Gp/ripemflpp/j'.X,

■] 5".2' TP the cxicrii jhc*Conlraet6r7s subjcct to'thXrcquircmcTit's
.Pf 'N.H! I<;Sa,. chapter 281-A, Gontracipr shalj/mainjam and
ifcquirc any ;subc6nti^cipr dr. assignee ,lo secure and maintain,
paymctit -of 'Workers; iGonVpeitsation :in ;conricclion with
"activities ,which the pcrson pro'poscs to undcrtakc.pursuant to this
:Agrccmchj. Thc-Gbriiractprs^allTurhishlhcCpritractingOfficcr
iidentified in.block*! .9,pr-Iiis!pbher successor; prpofof Workers'
^Gonipcnsatipri: in jhc-malincr? dcscri_bcd iif N;H. RSA chapicr
•28;!:A-ahd lany- dppiicabic raricwa!{s) Ihcrcpf^ »whichiShall .be
aiiachcd-arid.rirc jncorpprajcd ■herein byrrefercnce. ^Thc State
shall ripi ^bc- responsible fpr^jpaymenl p.f -any- Wprkcrs.'
.Gprnpcrisatio.ri' prcmiuriis-:drtor':any.dther"';claim "or benefit for
'Gorifractdr;, or :arty-.subcpniracipr [or' eniployc'e pf.iCdniractor,-
which, might arise .under applicable Stale of (New; Hamp.sh'Ire
Wlprkcrs' .Gothpensatiori" - laws !ih ^brinecliori iwiih' :tHe
pcrfotroaricc pf.ihcjScrviccs"under this Agreement.

16. Notice. Any, notice .by a party hereto todfic other ;pariy
shall be deemed to have.bccn duly deiivcrcd.or-given at ihc time
df mbiling by^certified tiiail,;p.ostage,prepaid,;iiri a^'Uriiied,States
Post; Qfficciaddrcssi^ jp the pa'rtieisi.at jhc addres^s given in
blocksl-l ;2Xn'd U4, herein.

17.. AMENb]^ENT-. This Agrecmcniimay be
,pr discharged .only by an instrument "Iri writing (signed-by, the
partic's'.hcrcto andi orily after- approval of such amendment,
waiver, oridischargc.-by lhc Govcrnoriand Executive Gouncil of
thc.'Siaic of New Hampshirc.unlcssAo such.approvarisircqiiircd
under the cifcumijtahc'cs pursu'aht.to..State law,Tuleidr .

f8. 'CHpVCEpyvLAW'-^'p'FO^
be governed,.'interpreted and construed in accordance with the,
laws of the State ofNcw-,Hampshire, arid is.binding;Upon;arid
iriufcs'id thc'bc'riefit.pf.ihc p,arti« and ihcir7csp«jiyclsucc
and assigns. Thc.Xprding ji's'ed Jri'lhisXsrcem'c^
chosen by the parties to.'exprcsXthcir'mutuaj intent, pn'd no ojIc
of-consiruciion,shall be applied against or in' favor of any party.
Any actions arising out of this Agreement shall be bfOUght;and.
maintained in New-Hampshire Supcnor'Courf which shall h'bvc
c.xclusivc jurisdiction, thereof. '

19. CONjPlilGTiNG TERMS^. In: jthd ;cyc^ pf ;a cptinici
between the terms of this P-37 form (as rbpdific'd in EXHIBIT
Aj and/or-aitachmcriis and'amendmCrit thereof, the tcrms'orjhc
P-3? (as modified in EXHIBIT A) shall conuol.

20. .THIRD- PARTIE.S. The-parties, hereto do not intend to
benefit any thii;d paiiics arid this. tAgrccmeni ishall riot be.;
cpristrucd to conjcrariy sUch benefit, . •

21. HEADINGS,-. The^hcadirigs thrpyghbul^jhxAgrce.rncntarc
for reference purposes orily, and (the ■.wprds-cpniained therein
shall in no way be heldfo c.xplajn, modify; amplify or aid in the
iritcrprciation, cbnslruciibri orVmeariing of the proyisioris pf .this
Agreement.

.'22. special. 'PROVISIONS. Additlpnal 'pr- filthifying,
pfpvisionsisct foHh;in:thc^attacHcd;EXH IBIT;A arc'irico.rppratcd
hercin by reference;

23, SEVERA.BILIT.Vv^ln the event ariy'of the prpvisioriXofihis
Agrccmchfarc.h'cld by a eoiijl of competent junsdiciion ip be
conlra'ry tprany state or federal law; the rcmairilrig'proylsioris .pf'
'thi.s Agrccrric'ni will "remairi.lri full force arid^cffcct.

,'24. ENTIRE'AGREEMEJST^^ Thi^ Ag7cVrricri,t;.whicK^
executed in;a numbcr pf, cpunicfpartsV-cach: of\whjch .^shall be
'deemed an •prigirial, "constitutes the entire agrccmcrii- and
uriderstandirig bciwccn: the- parties, .and supersedes all 'prior
tagrccments and undcfs|andings-,wiih;rcspectt6"thcisubjw
hereof.

Page.4 of 4
Goritractor iWitial's-.^



CtocuSignEn^Jop^^^

l^e.w Hampshire Departrfientof Health .arid Human Services'
Chronic DIs'eas'e ah'diSelf-IVIahagement PrograiTi and The.Povyerful TooJs.fQr
Careglvers

EXHIBIT A

Revlslohs to Standard Aqreem'eTit Provisions

1. Reyisionstto. Form Pr37v G.ener.a! Provisions

1/1. Paragraph 3. Subparagraph 3.1, Effective Date/Completion-of iServices, Is
amahded as 'fplLpvys:

3.'-1., /f^o.twithstandlhg any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, :and
isubject to the approval of the Governor-and Executive 'Qouncll oj jthe
'SJate of 'NeVHarnpshire as indicated in block 1.17, this Agre'emerit, and
^all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall become effective Gciober-
); 2022 ("Effectiye D.ate"), upon Governor and Council approval.

1.21 PaTaOiaPh 3, Effective Date/Completion of Services, is amended by adding
subparagraph 3.3. as follows:

3.3.- The parties may extend the Agreement for up two (2) additional .years
Tfofri the Compietion Date, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of
iservices, available funding, agreement of the parlies, and approval dfthe
'Governor and Executive Council.

1.3. Paragraph 12, Assignment/Delegation'/Subcontracts,'is amended by adding
subparagraph f2.3 as follows;

'  T2.3. .Subcontractors are' subjecl ,tb the same cohtr'actual conditions (as the
Contractor and the vContractor is responsible, to ensure subpQntractpr
compliance with those conditions. The Contractor shall. writtefi
agreernents with all subcontractors, specifying the work to be perforrodd,
ahd. if applicable, a. Business Associate Agreement in accordance with
the, 'Health Insurance .Portability and Accountability Act. Written
agreements shall specify how corrective action shall be rfianaged. The
Cohtractbrishall manage the subcontractor's performance/pn an ongoing
basis end take, cor/ective. action as necessary.. The Cpntractbr .sh'all
ahriCially provide the State with :a list.;of'all sub'cbritractors provided for
Cinder this Agreement and notify the State of ;any inadequate
subcontractpr performance,

'RFA-2d2>6EAS'02-CHRON-O1 'A-1.2 Contfartor.lnilials^
.  ./ • • T r- 8/272022"'
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■ New: Hampshire D'epartment of Health and Human' Services
ehr^hic tDisease and Serf^-Management Prpgram and Jjne Pbvyecful Tpolsjor
Cafegltfefs EXHIBIT B

Scope of Services

1. Statement of Work

1 ..1.. The,C,ontractor:iTiust p.ro.yide the Chronic Disease Self-Management Prpgraij)
i. (CDSMP),. Chronic- Pain "Self-Management Program (CPSMP), and iKe

Powerful 'Tools ifor Caregi.^ers: (PT&) Program, ft'hich are 'health promotipn
prpgrams caregiyers in this agreemen^'fo/'individuals vi/)th a chrpnjc condition
or family'caregivers. •

1.2. The Gontraptpj; must ensure'Service.s are available stajewi,de.

1.3. For the,purposes of this Exhibit B. all referenc'es tb'days niust mean talen'daT
„  days, excluding state and fed,era! holidays.

1,4/Ghrpnic Disease Self-'M.anagement/Chronic Pain Self-Managernent Program
ReqCiiremehts-

1.4.1. The Contractor must obtain and maintain ,a Self-Management
Resource Center- (SMRC) license to conduct CDMSP/CPMSP

' workshops and reader trainings.

1.4.2. , The. Cpntractor must,adhere to all SMRC Iice.nsure requirements,

1.4:3- Unless otherwise directed by the Department, the Contractor may
conduct trainings virtually.

1.4-.4. The Contractor must notify the Department Immediately, if their SMRG
licensufe terminates or expires..

1.4.5. The Cpntractor m.ust organize and'provide logistical puppoii for a
mlnjrnum of two (2) statewide network meetings for leaders and other
professionals:

1.4..6. The Cpntractpr'must'proyide teleconferencing to facilitate attendance:
statewide.

1 :A.7. ' The Contractor must' maintain and :ehsure accessibility of ,a'h online
statewrde.palenda.r for trainings, wprkshops and" other kvenjs related]
to GQSMP/CPSMP and PTC activities in New HariipshireTNH).

1.5.'Statewidd;]6utreach Specialist

1.5.1, The Cdritractor must ensure an Outreach Spepialisi suppptl.s:
statewide outreach by:

Mar'ketihg Ghronrc- blse'as'e"; Krogram/Chrohic> Pain Self--
Management Program workshops.

1/5,1,2v Recruiting hew wprkshop leaders.

1.;5'.T-3., .Establishment of workshop locations.

1 fS'.-l .4^. .BCcruiting workshop' participants., ^os-

RFA-262aaEAS-02-CHRON.01 Conlractor Initials V
p  ■ ;■ , • • .;8/.2/2c??:

Lamprey Healih'Cafe, Inc.- Pag« 1 of. 1,1 Date ^
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New^Hampshire Department of Health and Human Se^ .
Chronic.'Djseas:e:and S.eif#anagement HrQgranri;and"The Ppvv.erful Tjoolsibr
Caregiyers EXWIBIT B

1\5.2_., The. iGpntractor must; prpylde coordination of ■aJ! putreaph .activities
;necessai7 for a minini.urnyof;^ 5 ChTohic Disease and^GDSMP/C'^.SMP
workshops.' five (5) of which muslpe in geographic area.? pT the
'where^prKshops Have riot previoCisly- been c6riducted,.,as :appfpved
;by the D.epartrri'ent.

The" Dpntractpr must faeilitate, :rriarKbting and p.utreach of.
'each workshop. .Which;iri'clude"'S;biJt Is' 'not iifriited to:."

; ■ Qeyejopiog wprkshpp brpGhuces.
1:5.2.1.2 . Printing'Workshop brochures.

1j5'.2.l:3. D.istrib.utihg workshop, brpchufes. ;
1..5.2;:2:. The'Cphtraetbr must, in coordjnatipri with the Department,

ensure progfarh" outreach focuses .on' reachirig' fuTal
residents..

1,.5,;2:3. The Gpntractor must .Increase awareness of .Self?
[\^'anagementWorkshops by providing:
1.;5,2.,3,1, Radnershlp Exploratjpo, where the Cpnt'ractpr

must develop Relationships through 'ne.twpfking
with Indiyiduals- :ahd estabjished igrdups 'that
align, with CPSMP/CPSMP and ' the PJO
pYPgram.

1,;5,2.3.;2> ■ Information and materials at conferences where
■ exhibiting is ayailable.

1.5.2.4.. The Gontractor must increase visibility df NH
im.plernerita.tion si.tes :and wprkshops by:

■  ■ r.5'2;4.-1: Initiating steps towards a partnership; vv>tH-a
miriirrium of pne •(1;) "Marfaged Cafe
drgariizatipn (MGd) in NH and repprtrthe-s.teps
taken'tp]nilia'te;a partnership tpihe pppartmeht
within BO'days df the;contra,cl effectiye' date;:

'1.'5.2.4.'.'2. Creating and mairiialning one (1) host website'
or- social .fnedia.^ page for .Nhj 'Sejf^l^anag.enient
!W.Orkshpp" registration d.^tailing' Ipcatiphs 'and
dale's of everits;

1:5.2.4:3. Engaging iri Seif-I^anagerpepl -workshop
opportunities wrtfi: pther h'eaith impfpye.rffeht
■programs, as,reported to.:'th'eB,ep.artm;ehtWithin
3.0rtays; dfrthe cdn.tfact;effectiye;rta^

■0
RFA-2023-BeAS-02-CHRON^.1
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N.ew HampsKire [Jep^rtrneni of Healt^^ .,
Chrpnifc: pisjease and SelfrManagemeht^^ and Thb Pdwerful Tools for
Garegivers EXHIBIT B

T.5.'2;,4.4, L'isting pp.tential ;St'atewide; and rpg^
;and.

1.5.2.4.5. Establishihg ralationsbip: with program ie.ad{s);
1.$,l2.,5. Tfie: ;G.ontraotor must connect' and •collab.prate ^with ptjier

ragencies in -NH to ensure statewide- 'aWafehess' and
,coverage of programing!.,

'1:5;2.6;; The Qontractdr must increase participant reGruitmebt b'yi

1.5.'2.6,.1. .Exploring an.d Establishing, (as appropriate,
padnerships; vyith ./^meri(^,n, Asspciatipp; of
'Retired. People's, {AAFtPj :arid report pth'er
opportunities 16 theiDepaiflmgnt,.

1.5.2.6.2. Posting and sharirig information on-social media
"platforrhs reievant to GdSMP/CRSMP :and 168
PTpprograro, .

1 .$.2r7, The Gont'ractor must provide rharketih^ fhajerials to primary
cafe and other health 'cafe providers, iiri^ order to; increase
workshop participation.

l6;CbSMP/CP$MP Participaht'Workshbp

The Contractor must :part|cip,ate ip .monthly strategy .meetings with,
program leaders :in order to fecruit-worKlhpp'participant^

1 ;6.2. The 'Cpntractp'r,must establish' a'wqrkshdp sch'edule that'ls developed,
in :coordipa,tipn with.wprkshpp participants, ,

1.6.3. The iGbntractof must identify and secure -sites witp adequate space,
ahd parking to host workshops.

1 ;6.4. TheiCpritraetor must purchase/and ulijize'thE.curre.pt, Official'Versipn
of the.CDM.3P/CPSM which- includes; .but Is, not limited
to:

1;6.4.1.. LeadefOooks.

1|6'.4.2;. Participant wojkbooks-aPd felated Cdmpa'ct Disc's (GDs);

1.;6.4.3';'" Flip charts.

1;6,4.4-. Other supplies;as hecessai^^^

■1;6,4.5;. The G'Pntractbr" m.usl cpdfdihate -with CPSMP^G.RSMP
loaders' gnd :site; :repre;sehtattye{s) 'to ensufe^all Ip'gistrcal,
heeds:ofe;rh'et:prior4o;vyorkshopcomni.epcem'entv

1.'6,4.6-- The; Gohtracjof^ must ensufe that a iminimurp; of ido;
individO'afs. complete fhe GDS'MP/GPSMP -WPfkshopS;statewide; ensuring 'each .workshop, accpmmpdf^^: :a

,RFA-2623-eEAS-d20"HRpNkil
- ,8/272022

Lomproy Heallh'Care, Pa^;3.ori1 ' Date,.:—^ ,
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New Hamp^h1w:^Departhfieh Of He'alth arid Hum^ri Services
i0:Hronic; Disease: and ;^eJ^Management Prp.gra Tih© Powerful Topjs, for
.Cafegiyers EXHIBIT B

miriimOrii of;eigHt-to^eh"(8-fO) ihdivi

i.i6.4.7-. The Gontracior must ensure each' 0ISSMP7GFSMp
workshop consists ,of six (6)' consepyliye weekly',^6 "(2) and
ohemalf(2/5).hbuT-classes.

1.6;4.'8. The -Sontractor must ensure each VV.prkpla.ce CDS.MP
(WCDSMP:)^Works|:}op consisa of sik; (6) consecutive weeks
•of two, (2) .one-hour classes.

1,:§.4.'9. The, Cpntractgr' must ensure GDSMP/CRSMP wOfKshops
are available tO'pamcipants at no C^

1.6.4..1'0,.The Cpntractp.r md-St ensure workshop,s,pre conducted.in
ac(^fdance with Stanford GhrohiO Disease Sel^
Management Program curriculum'and fidelity requirements.

i..6',4.11. the Gontractor must ensure workshops-are conducted by
two (2) trained GDSMP/GPSMPileaders.

i,.'6.4.f2. The Contractor must moriitorworMhOp classes'to maintajn
progra,m fidelity-tp .the CDSMP/QPSMP-c.urriculpm^

1.7. Powerful Tools for Caregivefs (FTC) Program Workshop

TheCpntractor must ooriducl, a't. a rninimum, Qne .(t) b^'Or^day class
PTC: Leader Txain'hg workshop. The Cdntractpr must.emsufe;

1.7.1.1. PTG Leadersare elther trained Teaderslri .seif^ma'riagemeht
programs .or trained individuals in .PTC,.

1.7.t2;: ;Each workshop accornmodates a miriimum^ of TO
individuals.

1.7.2. The Gdntractor must'provide the-fo.iTowing for PTC Lead.er Trainers.:

:Qvemigh,t-^CGprnmpda^^^ pn-site of nearby the Vaihrrig
'location;.'and

■1 i7:;2.i2! Beimbursemerit for alj gravel.costsv

t7.3^ The Gpntfactpf must secufe adequate 'spa'ce for th'e PTG Leader
tfalhirig.

i..t;4', the; 'Contractor m.USt provide. IpgistlcaJ- suppprl Jpr pTG^ 'Leader
Traihipg.-^whieh ihcludes,- but Is not iimit^ td; '-
1:7.4. i. ■' Audio and visual equipment.
t7:4;2. Blip charts alid markers.

1.7.5: The Cdht'factoT muSt;prcha end prb.vide.railMa'st'er tlaine^
the; required-PtC' Leadertraining matefiats including, but n'p.t limited;
to:-

"•RFA-2023-8EAS<l2rCHRON-01 Conlraclor Initials1_
. S/272.022

.LBfTTpJ'TViHe^K'Ca^^^^ i?
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!Wew Hafnps.WtG-P^part.lBfn* Pt H.eajth and
iChronic Dis^as'^ and SeifrMahagelfieh the Powerful tools ̂br
Garegiyers ' EXHIBIT B

1,'7'.5..1 ■: ;A;suit'ab|e Lbag for carrying.
1.7<5.'2j-. ■Blndexs for the.curricujijm.
1.7.5.3'.. Printing .of ;(9d .rfiibutevand twp ;(2)--:ahd onerh"aIf'(2.5:.j hour

•' ' ■cu.rnculurr) and Class Leader Tips.

'17.5,4. The.PbllMake'rCD.
V  • ij7.5.!5:.. Flash:driyie.s-.with electronic,•cpp.les of. prograrn; materia[s.- -

'1;7.6. The Contractor rh'ust purchase;th'e reqCiired license frorn'th'e.natlon'al
bffi'ce'.'of PTC/,for eajch participant who completes theitwo-{2) bay
'training; The Cphlrpctorrpust:

1;7.6.1. Remit'the $100 payrnent to the national otree'. of Ptp;for
■ each.participant who completes the,two-(2);dayiralning,

1.7.6.2. Ensure the name and contact inforniation of each participant
for whom-the license is b'eing sought:accompanie.s the:$1.00
remitt.an.ce:identjfied,abpve,'.

T.8;,pDSMP/QpSiyip Leader Trainings
1;8.1. Thie Contractor ,must conduct, at ,a minimum,; one, n.)

■  [COSUPjQPSWiP Leader Training ses.sion fpn indiyiduals or
'corfimunlty. ifiembers Jntierested in ' leadership, 'rbles -Within
CdSM'P/CPSMP workshops.

1.8.2. TheContracior .must ensure GDSMR/C.PSMP Leader Training Is co-r:
fabilitated by tWo (2) CDSM Master Trairiefs, CeHified ;ih

■ C.bsMR/CP.SMP by the Self-Management Resource (Seiijer.
i.8.3; ' The Gontractor must.provide th.e follpvying for Master- Trainers, as

:ne;eded:

-1:,8.3.'1. Overnight accommodations, on-isite or pearby the itrainihg
iQcaiion;: and

'1 ;8,3:2. Reirnbursement for ail travel costs.
1:8.4. TheGpntfactor nriu"st;secure.'ade.quate spape forihC GPS'f\)1P/GPSMP'

Leader Training^

1.8.5. The-Contractor fnust provide logistical support for .CPSMP/GPSMP"
I'eader, Tralning,.which" includes., buf is not limite,d'tp; •
'1 ,Q.5v1, Audio and visual equiprrient.
1.8.5;2.. pjip-chartsjand markers.

1.8.6'., The. Goritracto.r must purchase; raay additipn.ai OpS.Mp/GPSMP
.Vespurce 'materials, as; heeded, Hp ;establish^a lendinc) library, and, to
.itiaihtairi' and dissemihate'any a'dditiohal GDSMp/GPSMR reeewrce

M .
RFA-2023-BEA'S-b2-eHRON^1. (Contractpf > _•
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Hanipshire; Deparirnent of Health apd'^uma.n Seryices^
ciVrbmc Disease arid SelfrM and The'PoweffurTbdls for
par.egiyers EXHIBIT B

maferialslo C'D'SMP/CPSMP- Leaders'.

i^QvlnstituiipnaUfe^^ Workshop
1 ;9.1. The IGdhtractor-must dbtaih and ;mairilaih Ihstitutidrial 'Review' Board.

,  (IBB)' approyar to; conduct 'pre. a.o.d post surveys of' individuals:
arieriding;the.:GpSMP^^ workshops.

1,;9.2. the Cbhtractor must conduct .p'rev rand post- surveys; of workshop'
partjcipanltg^ Tl?e; Contraclpr must:

i .'9.2.1; Wprk with the Department and.the IRB'to.modify;ihe surveys
(33 needed,:

"1]9:2-.2. .Conduct ppst^.workshop surveys-,fib. sooner 'than :six (6),,
month's from thed'ate'bf workshop conclusion.

1,-9.3. The Cpritractor .must collect,. coliate.i and prepare ,th.e suryey data fpr
report-distnbution bn:a semi-annual basis. The;Cbhtractbr'rnust:

1;9.3.1... Ensure, reports .are cpmpleted in a fbrmat approved by the
Department.

1 ;9.3,2. Ehsure;reports.'are.serit-tb. the Departrneni at the end of .April
■  land-Qctober.

I'.l0,;: Leadership Training. IRB. and CDSiyiP Reporting Requiremerits;

1 :,10.1. The Co'^ntractbr'rriOst^proyideiquarterly reportsitb the;Departmer)t on
all .actiyjties conducted In the resulti'ng .contract in; ac.co.rdance .with
Arnehcah Rescue Plan Act (ARPAj'furiding regulations..

1.10.2, The '0oritractqr must submit qua.rterly and final. Teports with,
information that [ndudes'bu't is not limited to: .

■1 .';ip.2;i . Completed and in^prbcess activities -to locale' and. SepUre
:s1te,s for CP'SMP/CPSMF' Leader trainings ar>d" participant.

.  'wbrkshops;;
1 .'10.5;2-.■Dates (and locationsi of the. CDSMP/CPSIVIP Leader

Trainings and pafticipant'wQrkshbps';

1 .i0.2.'3-.Themumber of.hew Leader'Tfalnings held- ■
.1.10.2.'4v.The:number:df new leaderslraihed;
1;ip.2;5\ The"inMChl36''-Ofp3rticipari't-workshbpsyc^

0'..2.;6'.The':nu.mberdtparticipam whoicpmpleted ;the. workshops;
1:10.2.7'. The'riurriberpf pre anb^pps't particlparit' surVeyScphdu^^^

and

1 ;-10,2;.'8'.-Pre,and pps'tisurvey data reppfts.

'RFA-2b23-BEAS:02-'CHRbN^bi 'Conlrbclof IriiTials.
.. . . . . . . )872/2b22Lomprey Health Care,-Inic. ' Pagee of-i,! Oato_^ ^
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f^ew'Hampshire beipaiirnent of .Healt and Human Siervices
Chjipnlc'ipis^ase and Sejf^Managernent Program -and jUe PovyertuI Tpols for
Caregixers EXyiBiT B

iGrievaricearid.Appe'als,

i.,'i 1.1, The: Cpntractor must: dewelbp. 1rn'plem;ent and maiht^in'ja :system for ■
bracking,-..rea^qlvingi and reppcling; .client' cpmpiaiQtS'Xe.O.arding jts

,  :serviees,'proGe"sses,^proced^

1Vi'1i2. • The;Cbntracto.r must ensure records of conc.err)s ahd.compraihiVfiled
are available 1o the'Gepartmedt'uppnrequfst/

1,12. Criminal Backgrbund.and BEAS. State Regislr^ Checks

The selected Appllcaht licensed, certified or 'funded 'by Ih'g
'  ,iEj,epartmenT Will! meet, the; requirements of RSA 1,6T-:F;49, VII. The

i  ' Gbntractprmustensureall-ctaffan^^^^

■ 1;1'2'1.1. Complete a'BEAS State RegislfVOheck

1.1,2,1:2, Are reviewed by BEAS prior to" providing direct client
services.

1.1,2.1:3. Uhdefgo .a New Hampshire Criminal Records Background
check and meet the requirements acceptableUoIhe selected
Applicant.

1.1.3. yVebsite arid :S6Cial .Media

"1.13,1 The •Cpntractor agrees ,tha,t:perfprmance of'seryices on behalfof the.
Department; involves osing ■sppial ;rhedia or a ■website To solicit'
information Of Individuals, confidential data, :or for marketing
purposes.; The ■ Contractpr shall' work; with the^' dopartrtieht's
CorTfmuhicatipns Bureau .to ensure that, any website.^ desilgried,,,
,:created, :or :rn,anaged on tiehalf of the Departmeht rheets all of' the
Department's and"'NH .Department of Inforrnation Technplogy's
website and-sbcial rnediaTequiremeritsiand policies.

.1.13-2- the Opntractor agrees' that prbtected health'' :inforfnatipn :(PHI),
■ personal':ihfbr.m:atipn :(P1), or other confidential .inforrhatipn solicit'ed
:eith.er-by social media, bf the website, arid maintairied', stored or
captured by ihe Cbritfactbr, shall not,,b;e fuilher djsdpsed beybed the'
scope of what :)$• :expressly provided 'in this Agreernerit. The
solicitation or disclosure of pfHI, Rl, :or bther confidehtial irifbrma^on

V  shalTbe subject ,to 'the Information 'Security Requirerhe.nts .Exhibit. 1^,
the Business Associates Agreernent' Exhibit, and'all a.ppjicable slate'
rules, and :state ^and federal law'; Unless epecjficaliy, te!quirb'd by fhis
Agreement .and .unless cjear'notice is provided t6.,users,pf:the website:
b"r social media, Ihe Cbntra.ctpr iagrees jthat sit.e'yisitation .will not be
tracked, disclo.Sed or used for web'site 'or'social rnedja abaiyijcs or
rparkeling,

ft)'
^RFAJ2b2:SBeAS<)2CHRON^^^ Contractdf IfiiUate'V" .
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New.Hampshire■Departmentypf Bealth and
Chronic 'Disease and Self^Managem^^^ Program-afid-The P&werful fools for
c'are:g!y.ers r ^ EXHlBlt B

iX4. Reporting
Ih.e Qpn'tractor imust ;Sub^^ guarterly reppjls. to ensure pfqgra^^
efficacy jwh'ich'ihclude^bu not limited to:
i;i4.:f1'..-The schedule and dates, ofithe Leader Jraihirig(s).:
1"44J.;2,The-llumber of participants: trained.

1.44'.2.' The Cbntracldr'ma'y6e required to. provide.other;key da'taia.nd.rnetrics''
tpithe. Department |n a format specified by the. Pepartment.

'1 .T5: Petfprmarice-IMeasures

The Department iwlll mpnito.r-eontractor p.erfprmance' by.ensuring all
partlpipanls-;must demonstrate sustained irnprdvefrTent in ah' at lea^st
two (^^,);sut:yey indicators, including but not to b,e limitedfo, an increase.-
in:

1 .'15; 1.1; ph ysi cat acli vity. -•

I'.i 6.1.2.'.Cdnfidence In managing chronic ̂ conditions..
f.T5..2, The pepartment-.wiy nionitor Contractor performance byensunng.an

increa'se in-cdilaboratidn with providers for'.the fdllowing:
t. 15.2; 1, 'program yisibillty. .
VI5.2.2.program delivery.
1:15.2 .S. SucCessfui. outcomes of individuals.

1.i5:;3.. The Deportment se.eks; to octiyely and regularly :cpllabp,ra.te -with
providers to. enhance contract manOgemeriti Trfiproye results,, .arid
adjust prbgrarn-deliyefy^and policy based;-on sU.cees.sfuj outcomes;.

Vi5:.4,' The p.ep.art'menV may collect other ke^* data iand metrics pom
.  GoritrOctor(s); incjuding client-teVe! demographic, performance, and

service data.

1.i5.'5,; The Department may identify"expectations fp.r o regular
Collabpralibr!\ 'including key peijdrmance bbjectiydO, iirf the; resuitirig

"  contraet;.-, '^hera applicable, Co.ntrac.tor(sj must goile.ct and\share;
data With the D"epertm.ent in a format specified

•' * . ■ * 1^

f2>^;Exhibits IriGprppratert
The: fCpntractOr; rnusl use, and di,sc|ose Prptected, .Health ;infdrrpatlon; in.
icdmpjiance"^ for Pnydcy pf^indiyidUally' identifiable^ Health-
Infdmiation .(Priyacy Pule); i(45; icpR; fa^^ yndprthe Hpalth;
jrlsufapce. Portability and ..Ac^uotability Act; fHiPAA) of. 199^. and id
.^(^rdbnde^ttSth tfteOttached Exhibit I, iEtusineOs: Associate.AgrapnlenLj^
hOs Lfeen :exe,cdted'by th.e.:parties;. (.

.RFAr'2p23-BEAS-d2 ponlractprJiTitiisis^
.18/2/2022
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l^ew Hamps^hire bepar^rnent of Heafth and HunianiSerVic.ejSt
'ChroQ.ic Disease and Self-Manjgement^^^^^^ and The Ppyyerful Tbojs for
Qaregiye.rs ' EXHIBJT B

2.2. The'ePntra'ctor-must ma^^^ ali'cohfidential data related to this.Agreement'Jn
aQCp.rdan.ce, syyith the terrps of Exhibit K; OHHS' [nforroatipn Se.cunty-
Reguifements.

2.3. the" Sdnlra'ctb'r must:comply with.all Exhibits D, through K,'which are attached
hereto -and iaQP/P.Qrated by reference herein,.

3. Additlbhai Terms i

3.1 ;■ Impacts Resulting from Court Qrders or Legislatiye G.haoges
3:1.1,. the -Cbritraclor agrees that, to the extent'.future state or federal

jegisiatibn :or court "orders rnay have, an impact, on the Services^
described herein,- the State Has the.right.tpirnpdjfy .Seh/lcb pfiprities
and expenditure requirements Underthis.Agre'ement sP aS to.achieve
compliance therewith.

3,2,. Federal Glyi| Rights Laws CprhpllanCe: Culturally and LihguistiGally-
Appfbpriate Programs and Services

3;2,i'.. The Gpntractor m.usl submit, within ten (tQ) days, pf tfie Agreement'
'Effective Date, a detailed .descriptio'rl of the commu'nicatid'n 'a'cceSs
and language, assistance services to Be provided to ensure
meaningful ,access to programs-and/pr seryi.ces/tp individuajsrvyith
limited English proficiency; individuals who are deafbr have heafiiig
loss; individuals whoere blind pr have lovy vision; apd ihdiyiduals who:
hayp speech challenges.

3.3. Credits arid Cbpyright Owriefship

3.3.;i. Ail dQcuments,'notices, press releases, research reppds, and. other-
ma.teriajs prepared during or resujtjng frorn the performarice of the
service's Pf the A'greeriient'm'Ust iriGiude:the"following Statem'erit. "Th'e-
prep.aratLori. of fhjs,,;("repo.rt; dpcument.e.tc.O was finanoed undej ari
Contract with the State of New ,Hampshife^ Departrrierif of and
Human Services, with funds provided, in part .by the; :Sta"te^of .Ne.w'
IHampshirp and/or such other funding sources as. were iavay^ or
fequire'd, e.g., the .United States Department-of Health 'arid .HUmari
Service's:"

;3.^3,2, All materiajs produped or purchased, under the^/Agreernem
prior .apprbVa'l ■frorii" the Department b'efo're pfiriting, pfo'dU'ctiori,
;distribution;qr use.

■,3':3.:37 T,he pepartm,ent .must retain copyright ■owh.efship 'for any ;and all
'orTgih'ai materiais prOdueed, Ihcludirigj, but ,ript:'limit'ed to:
;3;3...-3,.1,v Broch.ures.
3v3-.3:2'. Resource directories.

:RFA:2023:BEXsTb2OHRON ' Cbniracior;'lnUiais

LiafripreyHeallh ■■ PayflSoMi pate.-^ f^
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.fiJew. Hamp'sh^^ bjepartment of He'alih and Human 55ervic;es
a Chronic/Pis^easiB and-SelfrMa^^^^ The'PowerfuiTPPjsipr
'Garegiyers EXHIBIT B,

3:3.3.3. PrWGols or guidelines.

.3.-3.3.4. Posters'.

■ '3y3..3-.&- Rep-prts.

,3.3.4. The ContractbTmust hot reprbduce^ariy materials produced'Under"thei
Agreement .yvithput p.riorwritten:aRprpyal f£pm:the Depa.rt'rn.ent^

3;4. i.pperation of Facilities; Compliarice With Laws and Regulatlohs
;3..4-T In the gperatipn Of;a,ny .facilities for pjp.yidini seryii^es,^

must comply with :al.l .laws, prdefs and fe^utatiphs of.fedefalj
;courity and municipal authorities-and Withrahy direction of any Public-
©tficer pr officers pursuant to laws which mus.t:jmpp;s;e ,ari pj.der or
.duty upoh the-cphtractor with respect to the operation of the facility or-
'the! praVisiofi ot the .seryices at such facility, if any goyernmentai
license or permit must .be required fpr th.e pperatl.on.pf the saidTa.cility
of the petformahce of the said services; the Gdntfa'ctor will pfdcUfe

■  said license pr permit, .and y/ill at all times comply with; th0;.terms and
.conditions p.f each such license or permit: In .cprinecti;©?! with the
fbfSgbihg requifemehts, the Cohlfactof hereby co.VenantSrand agrees.'
■ih'at. during the: term of this Agree.rnentjhP: facilities must epmply with
all rules, orders. regulalions,"%d fequirernPnti pf the State. Office of

. ,. the Fire Marshal and the Ideal ihre prdtectldn agency, and must be'in
confprman.Qe with Ip.cal 'buildjng and zoning' .codes,, by-laws- and
regulatiphs.-

3.5. Eiigibliity betermi'nations
3..5;1: If th.eClo.ntractpr is pe.rm.itted to determine ;'th.e e|igibiljty ,pf-indiyidua|s

such eligibility deterniiriation must be; .made in-aSdd'rdari^^^
applicable federal and state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines-
ppiide.s- and procedures;

3.5.4 Eirgibility ideterhiinatidns must bb made Oh forms provide^, by the
Department'for that purposeand mustde made and remade: at au.ch
•times as are prescribed by .the ,.p.ep.artmen,t.

,3.5.3. Ih-addilidhtorhadetermiriatiohfortms'reqOiredlbyThelDe^^^^
.Gpntra.ctor mu.st majn.tain a data .fil.e po reach, racjpjen.t of .services
h.pre.uhdeff which' file. ,must -'.inciude a\\ information rieAfssaiV' ^^-t^
iirpiidrt dn!e1iglbilTty;detefminatidn.a
pe'p.adm.en.t r.epue.st.s. The. Contractor,mu.st ;furnish''th,e pepa.ft.me.nt
'with/ill ,fofffis'''ahd dd'cumehtation feprdipg eligibility determinatiGns-
that the Department. fnay TOqupst or require.

3;,5.-;4: The Cpn)r,ac.tpr .understands That' all appli.eants, for ;se,ryices.
hefeuhdef; a's Well as' individuals declared- iheligiblerhave rIMTo: a

■ fair hearing, regarding thdt detefminatibn. The .G.ontraeto;fpgjj^by'
■RI;^S-202^BEAS.t020^ CofHraclOf
Lamprey Heallh^ IP 9.',.11 '-08^-
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New HampsHire^Departm^^ and Hurnah'Se^iees
'fihr.o'nfc Disease; and Self-Management Program^and The Powerful Tools for
Careglvers EXHIBIT B

cpyeriants tand agrees-that, aij -applleants for services .myst; be
pefmittedTb fit! diit ari applic^tidhifefhi: and thalieadh ;applic^ht.or re-
,,applicaot rn.ust be informed, of Pis/her right to a fair "he.aripg^ in
apcd/dance:with Department regujatipns,

4, Records,

4-1; The Eontractpr rnust keep:records that'include., butvarepo.t limited'tp:;

■4.1.1. Sdoks, records,, documents and :Othe'r electfdriic or physical data
:eyidenclng'and;r.efl.ecljhg aljicos.ls apd other e.xpenses^ incurced^ by^th©.
Contractor in'ihe performance of the 'Cbritfact, and' all income received
or coHected by the Contractor.

,  All' records must be maintained in •accprdanQe' with accountihg
procedures ahd..practices, which sufficiently and properiy fefieel alhsuch
;eosts: and.experise.s, and which .are accep.tabile to the pepartrneht, iond
to include, without limitatjori, :all ledgersi books, records, and original
.evidence of cOsts-suchias purehase.requisitiohs 'and orders,.Vouchers,
Tequisitipris.fpr nialterjals. jr^yentpries, yalualionsiof in-kind:contnbutions,
labbr-tinie cards.> payrolls, and other records requested or required, by
the bepartnrient.

■4,^.;3. ■Statistical, enrpHment, attendance, pr visit repprds for pach recJpierit.Of
'service's; which records must <inclu'de' all :fee6rds Of appjicatipn i'a.nd
eligibility l[includin9 all forms, required ■ to de'terrnbe. eligibility for .each
such recipient), records regarding the proyijsipn of services and al|

•  invoice's submitted to the Departrtient' 'to .obtain p^aymerii. for' ;SCi'ch
services.

4,1 ;4_. .Medical records on each, patient/recipient of .services.
4.2. ;puring the terrn of this Agreement and the pehpd for ;retention hereOhder. ith'e

bepartnierit, tha;tJ"nited Stated-Department of Health and.Human iSeryices,!pnd
•any .of theindesjgnated representatives rnust.'have' access tp."al| .reports iand
records- ;rhai,r)'ta pursuant :to. the, rAgTeement foV purposes of .audit,
examjriatlbn, excerpts-and transcripts. -.Upon .the purchase; by'.the department
of the maximum hCimber of units provided fpr. in^the AgVeement and :uppn

' p.ayrri;eht of.th^ price limitation he.reurider.Jhe.A^greemenLand-alj the o^^^
;Gf the parties hereunder ^except isuj:b Obligation's as, by ;the terrhs of Ihe
'Agreem'erit .are to be-.perfbrmed after the'erid .of the' tehnri:-6f-1his" <Agfeemeh
ah;d./dr,survive the termination ,pf'the .Agreem.ent) musf terminate:, provided
hQweye.rii '.that if;, upon review of'ihe Final Expenditure Report'Ibe Qepartment
must ■disallow anyJ^xpenses claimed by the.tdontraeto'ra'.s Costs hereuhderthe
Departmeht:rnust;retain:the right, at.its discretipn.-to.deductjhe amdunt>G^
,expense,s>:as ace^disallpy/ed 'or to'recpyer such -surns from '|he. 'Gpnjractor.

1#
RFA"-2023^BEAS^2-CHRON-01. -Cohtraclof l.riili.als

- ^ ; _ *• .^ •8/2/2022
'Larnpmy HeailR'Ca/o, RagellpI'll Palo



Ob^.Slgn.Enyek^ tp; 5A529^74:i,C3^^

Ncfvy Harppshire Pfp'artmeht.of Health and Human Services
Chronic.Disease and Self-jManagement Programtand The Pow.erfu| Tools, for ,
CaregiveTs EXHIBIJ C

Pavrherit Terms

1. This Agreement is funded by:

1.4. 1"oS% Fe,deraJ funds,,' Title IH-D Preveritative Health, as awarded on
QAI2TI22, by 'the. UiS. Department :'of Health and Human Services,

■  ̂jDeciai.Programs for the Aging, CFDA 9^3.043, pAIN 2201NHOAPH.

i2 . For'the pu rposes of'this Agreement the Departm ent has identified :

,2.1. Th'e'Cbntractor as .a SulDrecipient, In accordance vvithi2;CFR 200.331.

2)2, The;Agreernenl as NON-R&D, In acoofdance with 2 GFP;§.260.'^332.

3. Payment .'shall .be bh a cost felniburseme.nl dasis for actual expenditures
'Incurred jh, the fulfiliment of this Agreement, and shall .be in accofdahoe .with

■■ ilhe. apprpyed 'line iterhs, as specified In .Exhibits G^i, Budget'thro.ugh (j-4,
Budget.

4. The; Contractpr shall •.submit an invoice with supporting dqcumehtation to the
;pepartm.erit no, latef'.than Ihefifteenth (15th) .Wpfking day .of ;th;e mpnth following
■the month in-which the services were provided:. The^oritfactpr shaji erisure
eachiinVdice:

•4.1. Includes;the iGbntractor's Vendor Number-issued upon registering With
New Hampshire Department of Administrative Services.,

4.2,. jssLibrnitled in aTorm that is provided byordtherwiseeccieptable to. the
Department.

'4.3., Identifies;-and requests payment for ;,all6wabje costs inbufred ih the
preyio.us month,-

4.4.. Includessuppoftihg documentation of ;ailpwable costs vyith each Invoice
'that rhay Include, but. are not limited'to, 'time sheets, .payfoll records,
receipjs for purchases,.and proof of expenditures, as.appiicable.

4.5. is..cbrhplet'ed, dated.and returned 'to the- Department with the suppoiljrig
dbcurneniaMh-for dllbvya^ expenses to jnlbatepayment.

.4.6;- is^.a^sighed an lelectrohlc sighaturei 'includes :suppor1ing .dpcumentation,
.anidTs enfiailed ■tobeasinvoices^dhhs.nh.gov or maijed to:-

Financial Manager
pepartmerit .of Health,and Hurhan Services
10^5'Pleasant Street ■
Gpncp/d. NH.03,30i

5. The- Depaftment shall make payments to fhe Gphtractor withip .thirty (3Q)'days
of .receipt of each 'invoice d'pd supporting ddcumenta.tio.n for authofized
expenses, subsequent Ib.apprbyal of the" subniitted invoice;

if—

RFAr2023^BEAS-02reHRON-6l ' -CdntfactcK IhltiatS' V
.  . .S/2/2022.

Lamprey, Heallh Care, Inc. Pago. 1 of 3 Palo



Design Enye!^ ID: 5A529A74-lC^^/tff'AbD9-6CA3^

Ney/Hampshire Department'of Health and Hu
Chfdnic'^biis.ease^ and Self-Management Program; and thd Pbwer^Cil tbbls ̂or
Caregivers EXHIBIT G

■S-; Thg'finai invpice-andisupporting d'dcurn.enldtio"n''for-.authocized;expenses :sha|l,
be due-io the Department no later than forty (4Q) days after the contract;
completion date: specified in Form P-37, General Provision's Sipck 1.7
'QompXetipn-Date.
Notwithstahdih'g Paragraph 17'Cif^the General Provisions Form Pr37, chah'ges

• iimlted to. adjusting' .arnounts-. vvithin the price limitation .and a'diMsling
encumbTances between State Fiscal Years .and budget plass lines through the
Budget Office may b.e, rnade by written^agreertieht Of both parties', 'without
gbtainihg approyaV bf the Governor and lExecutiye Goupci.l,- if needed and

■  justified'.
6. Audits

.8.1 .The Contractor must email an annuaj audit to dhhs.act@dhhS;nh.gov if
any bf the following conditions exist:

■ 8.1;1. Cpndi.tion A - The Contractor expended $75.0,000 or rriore in
federal.funds received as a subrecipient pursiuant to 2 CFR Part
200, during the rnost recently completed fiscal year.

8.1.2. .Condition B - TheGohlractb/ is subject to audit pursjjant tp the
requirements of NH RSA 7:28, .IJI-b, pertaining to chahtable
orgahjzatiohs receiving support of $1,000,000 or more.

8.'1.3. Condition C - The Contractor Is a p.ubljc company .and re.quired
by Security and 'Exchange Commission (sicj regUIatiphs to
submit an ahnual financial audit.

■'8.2. ir Condition A.exists, .the' Contractor shall submit'an annual Single
Audit performed by an indeperideht'Certified Public Accbuntaht (C-PA)
to dhhs>act@dhhs.nh.go,v, within 1'20. days after the. close: of the
Cbntrac'tor's fls.cal ■ year, cppducjed ;in accordance .with the
requirements of 2 GFR; part. 200, Subpart- F Of ;.the" .Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, -and Audit
Requiremen'ts for .Federal'awards,.

;8..Z.1. The epn.tractor shall submit a.copy of-ahy Single AudiOfihdings;
arid any associated^ corrective action" plans";. The Cbntractor
;shall ■submit quarteriy progress reports on 'the. status of

i  impjemeritatioh of the corrective action pian;
8.3: ■ If .Condition B Or .Condition 'Q .exi.sts; the; CPrilractpr ;Shall, :sub.mit:-an

annual, financial" audit" perfbrrhed by ali Jrideperi'deht CPA within, 120
days; after the closfe of the Coritractor's fiscai year.

' 8:4. :l'n' ad.dition' tp,..,:and not in any w.ay J,n Ijmitatjoo.of .pMigati^ of the-
Goh.tract, it is understpo.d and agreed by the Cohtfactbr- that ihe;
.CQhlractbr: shall be, held liable'^fOrrany state, or federaj'audit.excepti.oris'
arid .Shali .return to the Department all payments .made, .ur^f the-

■  " ■ iM
'RF/\-2623SEASy32^HRO"l^;bl C,6nlfacl(?.r.lhj|iajs,'^

.  , . • -r ;8/42/2022
JLampfiiay'^wltbCer©. inc. Pago 2 of 3
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New Harppshl^e Department of Health an^'Human, Services
Chfdnic Dis^ea'se arid Seif-Mania'gement'Prpgram^ Tools Ifbr

. Caregivers EXHIBIT C

•Gontract to whjeh exception has been laken, -or vyhjch have''b.e.en
-dlsaliowed becauseof s'uch .ah eYcep^^^

:9Fj^-20X^Be^:02-.GH.F?ON.-0,1 Cprilraclw'.lhUW^
,'8/l2/202>

Lamprey HealthGafOi Inc. 'RagiB"3 of-3 Dale"
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ExHibft'C-lrBiKlget
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Exhibit.C-2, Budget
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ExKibifC-3.-.Buct9^i
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Exhibit C-4,^Budget
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New HampsHrre'be{3artrTierit of Health and Human Services
■  . Exhibit D

CERTiFICATiON REGARDING bRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUfREMENTS

The Vendor identified in;S'ection'1:3 of the'General Provisions agrees.to cornply with'the provisions'pf.
;Sectipns-5151r5ii6p ̂  Acl.of'i988;(Pub.;L. 100:690, Title V.^Subtitle
'.U.SVG.-701 et'seq-lVand further agrees tb have the Goniractor's representative, as identified in Seciioris
1;11 and'1.^l2 of-the General Provisions'execute.thefolibwihg O.ertificalioh:'

ALTERNATIVE I -;FQR GRAHTEES QTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARYMENT OF health AND human SERVICES'^ contractors
US.DEPARtMENf OF EDUCATION> CONTRACTORS
'US department OF.AGRIGULTURE - CONTRACTORS.

"This certincatl.on is required by the regulations irnpje.meniirig Sections6151-516d orthe prug-Free
''vi(^piede*AcVo| 1988, {Pub, L.;i66'-690, title" V, Subtitle D: 41 U.S.'G." 701 el seq.). The January 31,
1989 regulaiipns were amended and published as Part .II of-tKe.May,25.1990 Federal Register (pages
i2.1681-2i69l). and^require certificatioh.by grantees {and by lnference,. sub-gr"aritees and sub-
cdht'raclors), pnbr tb'award, that they will mairilaih a'drugrfree workplace. Section 30.17.630(c) of the
regulation provides" that,a grantee (arid by lf>fereric"e,;sub-gfarilees arid 'sub-contraCtOrs) that.is.'a Stale .

."rria^ elect to friake';bri"e certificaliori to the D.epartrrierit in each federal fiscal year ih.lie.u of ce.rtificate.s (or
each'grant.duririg the fbd.eral fiscal-year covered by the certifiCatipn,. The certificate seiput below is a
ma^ierial representaljonjof 'facj UR:on which rejiance is placed when the agency awardVthe gr.arit. False
certification^or yjoialion o'rihe certifiMtion shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination pigrarits, or government wide suspension or debarmerit; .Cbntraclbrs using this form should
send It to:

Cpm.missibner .
NH.Pepartment prHM arid Human Services.

" 129 Pleasant Street,
;Cp}!COfd. NH 03301^

1. The granteexertifies thal il will or will continue to provide a drug-fr'ee.workplace byi'
1.1. Publishing a statement hbtifylrig employees trial the unlawful m'ariufaclure, distribution,

disperislrig, pbsVess-ibn'or use of a cbritrblled substaricejs pfbhibited^in the grantee's
workplace and^speclfying.trie actions thai will be taken against ernplbyees fpr>yiolatipn of such
prohibllipri;"' ' , .

1,;2; EstabjishTng an pngplngdrug-free awareness progrann to Inform employees about
ij2.1.. the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace:

■  -1^2. The grantee's.policyof mainlairiirig a.dr'ug-free"wo"rkplace;_
1.2.3'; Any available dfugYou'riselirig rehabilitalio'^h.'arid.jirriplpyee assistance programs; arid
1.2:4* The penalties .that may belmpos'ed upon ernpioyees fb/ drug abuse viplatipns.,

pccufring in .thb workplace;
.1,3, Making it':a;require?nenlih.al.e,acri engaged in .the p,erfp(;marice oi.the grant be

given a cbpy-of the statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4; Notifying I'he.employee in the statement'required'by paragraph (a) that,/as a condition of

employment under the grant,Ihe employee;Wiir
'1.4.1. Abideiby thetermsofiheslalementiarid.
I.A.2. Notify the erriployer In wVitiri'g of.his dr;her conviclion.fbf a violation bf.a.criniinal drug

statute bcciirHrig ip.the workplace rib later tharijRve"Calenda_r days after suck
cpn.ylcjibn; ' , . ,

i:5; Notifying Ike; agencyk lencalendar days afterireceiying nplice under
subparagraph 1;4'2 from'an employee or otherwise receiving actual nblice of such.conviclion.
Erhplqyers of.convicted employees must prbvide notice, including posilibh iitle. taevery.graril
officer on whose grant activity thedonvicted employee was'working, uriless.the Fed^J^a'gehcy

■0 ■
iExhibil D - Cefli.ricaUon regarding Driig'Free Vendor

Workplace R^'iiremen^ 8/2/2022
.Pe9® l 9-'? J3ate '' -
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New Hampsh^ Health and.Human Seryices
Exhibit b

KaVde'sigfiated 'a Central point for the.receipt of such notices. Notice, shall,include the
idenllfication.^^^^^ grant;

1..6. :T0K!.ng one„;of the'follpw^ wifhWaO calendar;days of receiyjrig notice under
" sUbparagraph; l.Ci.v'yyjth resp.eclilb any ernployee wtio is so^
T.6\l. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an empibyee. up to and.including

terrriihalior*; consistent with the requirements of the Rehabiliialion Act of 1973. aS'
amended;vbr

•1.6.21 Requiring such etbpldyee fo parti.clRate,:satisfact6fily in 'a drug abuse;assistance:6^
r.eh"abjlilatibn prograrh apprbyed fp(;lsuchjpu.rppses by alFederal. Stafe, of lopal health,
law,e,hfprp;em.en,t, or pther^apprppnate.agency;

1.7; Making a;gbod faith effort to continue to maintain.a drug-free workplace through
.. implemenVation of paragraphs 1.1;;-1.2. 1.3,1.4,1;5; and 1;6;

2'. The.grahlee'rriay tfisert in Ih'elspacVproyided blelbw the sitefs) 'for the; perforrnancepf work done ]n
cphhectionVwilhihe specific grant.

.Place/of, Rerfprm^^ address, city, county, state, zip codeylflisi each lpcation)

.Check □ ifjhefe are.workplaces on file that are nPt identified here.

Vendor-Name: Lamprey Health care

y—DecuSignMl by:

:8/2/2022

Date
Til.le: ceQ

-OS

Ejihibit ,D - Cedf.ncatioh rega'raihy Dfyg Free Vendor Iriiliais,
Workplace B.eQyJfCrnGh^^^^^ . . .8/2/2022

,cuoHHsmo7i3 -x Pale.-!
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Niew^Hampshire Departmerit:'of Health'ahjd ypfnan Serv.ices
"ixfiVbft'E

CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING.

The in .1 •;?. 0? inrGeneral PirovjsJpnSiagrees'!^^ prpvtsipns of
Sedipn'3V9 pf'PuWic Government-,vyi^e Guidance for New Rejstrictjons qn'Lpbtjyjngi'end
sru.^.C: •1352lt!and further.agreesitp have'the Conlractor's represeritalive; as identified In.Sections 1 .-i'T
and'"! .12.6fj'the G'erieral Provisions execute the following Certincation;'

US-QEPARTMENT^OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES -'CONTRACTORS
US OEPARTMENT'C>F- EDUCATION - CQNTI^GTORS
US.OEPARJM^^^

Programs,;j;indicate:applicable"program covered):-
•TemppTaiyAssista^^ Needy-Farhiltes'under Title ,!.V-A
*phild.Sup^rt£nfpfce,meniP uhdeTTitle.lV-D
•Social Services BlpcVpf^^^
•Medicaid' Program under Title ̂ IX
•Community Services:iBlock Grant under'Tille VI
•'ChildCare DevelopmerifBlock-Grant under'Title-IV

The jjhdersignedjeertifies; to the, besl'pf his or^her knowledge and belief, that;

No Fede/a!!appropha)ed funds have beenpaid or will be paid by or pn.behalf of the undersigned, to
any person fprinfluencihg pr attempling to influence an officer orprnplpyee of any agency.;a Member
of-Congress,'an''officer or employee of Congress, or an ernployee of a'Membef of^Congress.ln
connecti6n with,.lhe awarding df any'Federal contract; eonlihuation, renev/al. amendment, or
modificalioh";,6f'any,Federal cohtract,/grant. Ioan,-or .cboperative.agfeemen.t (and by specific mention
sub^rpriteepf;sub<pntractor),

,2: If^any funds otherthan Federal apprppriated'funds have been paid or wjll'bejpajd tp.any-pers.on fpr
infiuencing or attemptihg to influence an officer of'employee:of any::agency, a Meniber of Congress,
an dfficeror 'employee..ofCongress,;Or an ernployee of a'Member df Congress in connection with this.
Federal contract, grant; loan, of cooperative agreement {and by specific merjtion sub-grantee;or.,sub-
;Cohtrablor)Vlhe undeTsighed shall complete and submit Stahdard FoT'm LCL, {pisclosufe Fpfm'to,
Repprt.LObbyin'g. ih'acb6fdanc;d~w'th its insjructiohs, attached ahp. identified as Standara;Exhibit E-I-)

3-. "The^unde/sTgned shail.require thatjhe language of this certification be included in t'he award •.
ppcumerit^ifbr subrawa/ds:at.alj tiers-:(fncrudlnQ subcontraclsVsub-grants, and contracts under grants;
loans,•;ahd cooperative-agreements)' and'that, all subrrecipiehtSiShall certify and .disclose<accordingly;

This ceftificatiph is a maTeha|.represe'ntat|oh pf-fact upon which.f_eliance"w^ placed whehithisTrahs'actip^
'was"^.made o*r entered IhlOi Submission pf this certificatiph is a prereq'uisile fOr making pr;ehtehng';intdthls
transaction irnpos"ed.;by S,eptiph.l352. Titje.-31, U.S.Code. Any,persdn;who~'fails:l0.file.the re^
ceftjfi.caTipn/sKaji^ subject tpp.ayirpenaity of pot jess than $1,0.066 and npt'rhofe ihan;:$tOO,;bOO for
-'each such fajjure.' .,

.  . Vendor Nahrie:- ^Lampr.ey Health caf.e

.^T>-3MuSlgr>«<j Oy:

. ̂ 2/2021 •
'oitg %IareMP'^> White

•Exlilbil'E -Cdrtificelioh'RegBfding'Lobbyihg VendorilriiliblaV
'  , ,8/2/202-2'

^cu«>^nb7i3 Rage 1 of 1 Dale
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tiew Hampshlre Depa of Health' and Human Sei^Jdes:
ixhibit'F^

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION
;AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The edftlractbrjdentifie^^ in'-Sectipn'1..3 of the„General Proyi'sb pompjyvwiihjfhe p of
Executive Qfflc^'of th^ President, Executlye Grderi254^ 45^.CFR ,Part,76 regarding pebarrpent.
isbipenVionvan8'0'lh^^ Klatters. and'f'utiher agrees to haye the Cpntractorls.
■tiftCeser^iSye.ras identified in Sections-I , Tl' and 1.l'2^bf ihe General'Provisions execule :the following
eertifiGatfon:

HNSTRU.CTlONS,EQR:e,ERTIEI.CATION .
1 ;By>igriing and .submitting this'pro^^^^^ the:prosp.ecliye:prirnary;participant is-prpviding;the

'certir!cai|gn;;s^ «

;2l The inabilily ofa person to prbyide!the certificatibh required belQw.will hbtiriecessanl^
)bf participation inrthis .cbyeted.rt'ra^risactid J/.necessaryiJilie prospective partjcipe.nt shalj submilan
.explahatibriiofjivhy itwnnot proyide;jlhece orexpjanatiqn yyilhbe
;co'osjdbfe'd/ih:cb^^^^ NHpepartment oTHealth and Human Se.fyices'''(DHHS)
:dete/mM whether;to enter'into this transapiipri. However; failure of the prospective primaiv
'participant ^^ pr an explanation.shall disqualify such person from qarticipation in
Mhis transaction.

3. The.certificalion lh.this'clause:is:a:materia!;representatipn.:of fact.upbh w'hicn
^yHeh;pHHSde.termined;,tp-eriter this;trahsactipn. If itj,s,!later determined, lhaljm
p)/irnary'particip>ny k^^ an erroneous certificalipn, in addition tp^bther remedies,
eyailabiVtathe Federal may terniinale ihis transactjpn forcause or default-;

The prbspective pnmafy-partlclpahl shall.:provide'immedlate;written notic.e Ib'rthe DHRS-.agency to
• w'hbm'this proposal ;(cbntract)^'i^ if;al:ahy, time the prospective primaty participaM loams'
rthat its certification,was isfroneous when submitted Or has;beporrie efronepus by'reaspnjpTchanged
-circurtistances.

^4..

5. jhe:terrhs Vovered:transaction;""debarred," "suspended.'^'i'ne "lowertier covered
■transactidn.- "participant." fperson^'-'primaiy covered'transactibny "principal." "proposal.- and'
•^vpluntajily excluded." as used'iri thls clauseyhave the, meanings sdt outlh.the pefinitionsrand
'Coverage' sections of the rules implementing" Executive.Order •125,49; 45 C.FR-^Rart 7,6. See the;
bttachedidefiriitions.,

6. 'The'prpspective^priniary participani agree byisubm'ittihg this proposal (contract) that, .should the
proposed .covpred transaction bepnleVed.into.'iijsha^ pot knowin'gly enter iplp any tower lief cpyered

■transactiph With a'.pefsipn who isdebarred. susi;^ndVd..decl_ared ineligible, or yo.luntarily^e^ .
'frorh participationJn^lhts covered rt fahsactibn', unless:authorized by DHHS.

"7. The.'prosp'ective:pr'irnary,participant further agrees:by. submitting this pfoposai;thayit';wiirincludfthe
cla'u^itill"ed>eertificatioh Reg"ardmg.Debafmeht,.'Suspehsi6n.::iheli^ and yolunlary Exclusion tv
power'Jier'CbyeTed pylDHHS; without modification. In all lower tiec'cpyered'

rtransactipns'irid'in.ajrsPljcjta^^^^^^ transaclibns.,

8. ,A participant In a ,cbvpredjransacOon;may rety upph. a ce.rtificaiJon.of;a prospective partlcipantlh a
Ipvyer'tiefboyered trah^ai^btiprirthaUl.ts noVdebarred. suspended,-^i
froTh the Povered transVction. unless it knows: that the-pertificaiipn is.e.rrppepys: A-participani;'maY

iPepiderthe melh'od.ahdffrequehcy.by wbich it determines the/eiigibility of its principals; Ea'ch"
participanTmay'bpt ienot requifed tp.ichebk the Nbh'procyremehtTIsI (of pxcludedpartie^^^^

9, Nothing cbntainedJn the fbregbingshairbe ppristrued.lp requireidstablishnrient o.f.,a.;system pue^rds!inprdef to renderjn gp6dTaith,:the cejiificatiph regM.ired by'thisVcjause, ■The.'knpwledge andp^,
ExHibit FV'jCertificaJion Regardlog .Debarmeft^ Susperision CpnlracjVlniliaJs,;And,Oiher Re>pqnsibiiity;MattefS; , . .. 8/2/-2022

.•CU^HHSfiipyij'; Pa9e:1.bf.2' ;
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New'Hampshire Department of HeaKhland.Human Services
EihlbltF

irifqitnaiibnTpf a pa%jpan.t ls hot required to exceed that which is normally possMS^ by a paiderit
person in the ordinary course of busiriess dealings.

"lb. Except fortrahsactibns.authbrized under paragraph 6 of these instructions; if a participantjn a
! covered trahsactidh knowingly eritersjnto a Idwer tier .covered transaction with a person who js
suspended, 'debarred., ineligible, pr yolunta'riiy excluded from partcipatibn In this trahsactioh, in
addilibh to ptherremeiies.aya government; DHHS may termihat'e this trahsactioh

- for cause or ̂eifauji,

RRlMARV'CdVEREd TRiA
Yi. The prospective primary participant certifres to the best of Its knowledge and belief, that it and Its

principals: . •
are hpt presenti/debarred. suspended, proposed fordebarmenl, declared ineligible, or
■volyhtariiy excluded front cpvered'transactions by any Federal department or agency;
havTe not wiWiri a three^year pefibd preceding this'prbp'psai ;{6bntra"ct) been cpH^
a'civii judgment rendered against them for commission of fraudpr p crimina^^^ P.tfense lit
connection with^dbtaihing, 'attempting to ̂ obtain, or pe.rfprmihg a publiC'( Federal, S.tate or local)
trahsactibn or a cbhtract" under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
8latute5;"pr;cbrfimission of embezzlement, theft, forgery.- bril5ery, .falsification or'destruction of
records.,rhdkirigTalse statements. or receiving stpleh property;

11.3. are not pieseritlylndicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a gdyernnierital entity
(Federal, Slate or local) with comrriission of any ,bf the.pffensss enumerated, in paragraph (l)(b)
of tHis^certification; and

11.4. have notwithin a three-year period preceding this applicaliqn/proposalhad one or more; public
irahsacUbns (Federal, Stale dr„local)'terminated for cause or default.

'12. iWhere the pfospectlye'pnrfiary participant is uriable to certify'to.any of the statements in this
;certifi.cation, such prospective particlpa^ht shall att'ach an explanation to this'propbsal (cbhtract).

.LOWER;TIER eOVERED'TRANSAGTIONS.
By signing.arid submitting this-lowef tier prppbsal,(cohlfact), the prospective lower tjerpafdcipaht.ias
defined in 45'CFR Part ,76. certifies to the best of its:knpwiedge;;and belief that it andJts pnncipais:
ds.i. are hot presehliy debarred, suspended, proposed for debarmeni,..declared inejigibler pr

vpluritariiy excluded from participation In this transaciipn by any federal.departrrientor agency.
13.2. where the.prpspbcliyeilbwer tier jparticipari't.is unable, to certify to any of the abbve, such

. prbsp_ectiye participant shay attach an.explahation to.this,proposal (contract).
^ 14, Xhe PfPspective jower tier participant fuller agrees by submitting this pro^iwl (cbritract)'tHal-il wlll-,

inciude.lhls claUse.enbtled "Certifica.tip^ Regarding pebarmeht.S'uspehsioh.-ln and
Voluntary Exciusioh^Xbwer, Tier .C.byereid Transaclipns^wilhdut;;modifiM^^^^ in ̂ alU.bwertier ;covered
transactiohs.ahd in.'all-sbiicitatibns'fpr lower tiercpyerpd transaplipns.

.Contractor Narhe:-. Larnp.rey Heal th ca.r:e

•:0««u9>9n*4 by:

:5/2/2022 WtUfC;

^ate " " ^
GEO

OS'

EXhfbll F -.(^rijficaijon Reflardir^ bebafmenVSuspension Cpntraclofjfiitiel'a^
And;;Othbf RasponsJbilityMattBrs. .. :87-2/-2p22.

Paga 2 of.2 —r^.—
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New Hampshire;D'epartment of Health and Human Services
Exhibit G

CERflFrCATibN OF^CbMPLlAN(:EWltH REQUIREMENTS PERtAfNING
FEbERAL NONDISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZAHdNS AND

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

TheXpnlractpr idehlified in:Sec.tipri.1.'3 o(thegeneral Prqyisipns.agfees b^ signature of,the Contractor's
jrepfesentaU^ identified in.Sqclions'l 1.12 prthe Gdneral pVovisibns, to'execute Ih'e fdiiowing
certification:

Contractor wlH.comply. and.will require.any subg'rantees or-subcohtractors to cdmpiy.^with any.applicable
'federal nondiscnrhlnation requiremenls, may Include;
- ith'e Omnibus Crime .Cdpirdl and Safe Sireets;Acl of 1368 (42 U.S.C, Secjipn 37_89d) .^ich prdhibiis
Recipients pfVedemi.^ndjng.under this statute from discdmlna'ting.-elther in employment practices or.in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race. color.-religibn, national-brigin, and sex. Tffe Act
requires certain recipienls'to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;
r the Juvenile Justice'Delihquency. PrevehtiphAct of 2002.(42 U.SX. Seclldn 5672(b))'which adopts by
reference, the civil rights'^^^bbllgalibnslbf the Safe Streets Act.. Recipients pf.federal fundirig under this
statule'afe.p/ohibited frbrh"discri^^ in.employment.practiceS or in the deliyery q/ seivices or
benefiie pfiace, color, reljglon, national origin, and sex._ The Act includes Equal
Ernployment Opportunity PJan requirements
- the Civil Rights Acf:of 'i 964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal fi riahcial
assisiance from discriminating on'the basis of face, color, or hational origihiin any program or activity)';
.-. the Rehabllilalion Act of ,1973 (29' U.S.C. ^Section 794), which prohibits feciplerits.of Federal financial
assistance from discfiminatirig on Ihe basis of disability, in regard to emplpyme'nt and the deliverylof'
seivices br'be'n'efils. irilany prog^^^^
• the Arnencanswith' Disabilities'Act pf .1990 (42 U.S.C. Secl!0ns''121;3j-34); vyhich prohibiis •
discrimi.nation and e.nsures .equal Opp.ortun.[ty'fof persoiis with disabilities in employment, State and local
goyprnrnenl.services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

.T the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681; 1683, 1685r86).-which prohibits:
discrimination on.the basis of sex in federally assisted education pfografhs;-
- the.Age Discflrriinatlbn Act-bf 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-()7). which prohibits discrimination on the,
b'asis.of age.in pfc^mfh's of activities.feceiving Federal financial assistance. It does not jnclude
efnplpyrhefit discnrfiiriatiori:
• 28JC.F.R. pt.,'31 (U;S...D.epartrrieh,l ,6fJustice ReguJatlons --QJJDP".Grant Prpgfams): 28.C;F,.R.-p.t. 4'2
(U...S; pepart.meqt p.f - Nphdiscrimihaijon; Equal Ernployment .ppportunity; Policies
and.Rrbce.dui:esj; Exec^^^^ prelection of the laws for .faith-based; and comrnunity,
prganizaliqrisj^.Execuiive Prder Nb.'i^ which.provide fundamental principles and.pblicy-maKing

^criteria for partnerships with'faith-based and.neighborhood orgariizatiori's;

- 28C.F.R. pf|3.8,(UiS.;D.epartmeril.bf.ilustlce ReguIalibnS-.Equal Tfealmenl for Faith-Based
Org'ariizalibhs); arid:WhisllebjQwer pTOleclions.41 .ij arid.The_Natjbna{ dpferise;A
.AcljNDM) for Fisc'aVYear;^^^^^ il2-239, enacted Jariuary 2. 2Q13jthe f^ilot Program.for
EnhaTicemenl .of dohtracrEmptoyee yvhistieblower Proteciions; .which protecl$employees:against
reprisal for certainjwhlslle blowing activities in connection withffederal grants and contracts.

Thercertificat'e set out below is a m'aterial representation of fad upon which fellan"ce:is placed y/heri th'e
a9ehcy;awafdsthe gran'L False certiricatlb'riofviblatibri of the cedificatibn shall, be grounds for
susperisibri;jDfpayments'.susp,enslb,nr6rtermihajidri.df g'rahis^ suspensibn or
debaiment,

^DS;

Exhibit G .. , 1^
Contfaclof thhtais^'

:Cihiric«ion ol >M;h lo Ft^'U riondiiolmiriBten. Equal T(««w«<ni.o( Fi;9>^Mdpr$an|u(km'
WhiuloUbwW wbualon*

■«7M4 . . 8/2/2022
PagblpR? Date
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ExhiBit.G

In the^event a iFedera! or State court or Federarpr S^^^ maRes' a/jindiri^^
discrirrilnation;after.a'due process hearing on'the grounds of ra.cg,=color;7eligip^^^ .natipnai origin. pi;",sex^

. against,a recipient of funds. the recipient.wili forward a copy of the finding to'the Office fpf-Givil flights, t^o
'the-applicable;cPhtfaclihgageh(^^^ wilhin'the Departmerii of Heatih'and Human Services, and
td/.thejOepartitieht and Human Services ".Office of the-'Ombudsrhan.

th;e;C'ontf:a.ct9/1d^ l;3/ohhe General signature pfth'e Gpntra"cl9r.'s
representative a^ldentined in Sectjons .V.l i and -1.12 of, the general Prpyisjons; to" execute'the fpllp\ym^^
certification: ' , •

,1';., Byysigriing an'd:sub'rriittihg this pi:oposal;{corilfact) the .Goritfaclor'agrees to.comply'With-the provisions
indicated above.

G6ritractof''Name: lamprey. Health care.

OocuSignid by:

(Wufi.8/2/20,22

Date 'Nam^^Snlgory~whTte
Title: ,^,0

■OS

■ExhlbiiG
^COTtfadoi' Injiials^'

C<i>tfii:sii^elCcni^iaric«vi{:h>»<rir««nafl(}p*<t«Mnglo'F«ijwil Ndrxt'krim«wia<'e<)u£lTr«aUTi«hl,otFoilh,-8«Md
thd WWflJtcbww i)f«k«iOfii' ' ' . .. .. .

wVii , ' . . :8/272p22,
R«v. lOQi/M :Pagc2br2 Date
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New Hampshire Deparirherit of Health.and Human ,Servk
Exhibit H

CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law'103.-227; P.art-C: - Environmental .Tobacco.Smoke also knpwn.as Act pM9.94
(Act), requires thatrsmokihg" hoLbe-perrnitte.d In'^any pprti.pn of any indo^^^^ tac'lity owned pxleased^p^^
feontracled- for.by ,an~entity ;and used rpptmely -©/.regularly for t'jjrproytsjpn lof health, .day.care,- edycajipn,
:oT ifery '§i^ryj<^^-to chlidr^iV^undfr the.;age of iff.-jf t/ie se.rvices.are funded by 'Federal programs either'
dlrecily or thrpu^^^ Sta/e prlpcaj governments. FedWal granl. contract,; loan, or-loan gUaraiitee. The
law.does not apply toTchildrenV:servicesprovided:in:private residences. Tacilitiesi.fuhded sple^ by- _
Medlbare or Medicaid funds; ahd[po'rtiphs-:6,f facllilies.used'fdrinp^ drug-bra.lcphol treatment; Failure
to cprfiply'wilh the provisions of the law rn'ay result in.th'e irhpositron of a'ciyil mpne/a.ry p.ehajiy.'bf.up'tp
.Si;opp;per;dayiand/orth;eilmp:ps'ilipn';pf'^^^^^^^ the responsible entity.:

the Contrapibr idehtified'ih/Sectron of the General Provisions agrees, by-sighature bf theriGbntractof'.S
represerit^tive;"as-idenllfied in;s;ecti6n 1 ;.11 and 1 12 of,the General Provisions, to,.execute.the fpllbwihg
.certification; ,

i. By signirt'g ;and submitting this;CQntraci; the epnlraclor agrees tp;make reaspnable effprtS'to comply.
with;all;appJicable'pr.ovisiohs.of'-Py,b!ic Law 103^227, Part.C', known asThe ProTChiidren Act-of T994.

Cdhtractbr Name:.Lamprey H.e.aTth car.e

;-8/.2/2022

■!>o<uSlon*d.by:

(WLtft
Date-

Title: CEO

XU/OHH3/110713

Exhib.HH-Certifka'iiohBegafdiri^
Envjfonmenial Tobacco Smoke

f?'agel"6fi

Contracjorlriillals'
... ,:8^2-/2022,
Data/- "
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Exhlbifr

HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABILITY ACT

BUSINESS ASSGCIATE^GREEMENT

The'Cbntracbr-idehtlfieb in Sectlopi.^'oiiheTCehbral.P
co'mpiy .with' th'e Heblth Insuranc'e Rortability and Accountability Act, Public Law. 104-19'1 'arid,
with ihe.'Stand^ards.^or Pnvacy-and Security .of'ln^yidually.Identifiable. Health'Information,-45
,^,FR}parjs -160 an.di64(aRpfe to t^usjnessasspciares. defined berein. "B'usine.ss;'
Ass'qWate" shall,meaniKe iSontractb'r and.^ubcbntraCtbrs ahd.ag>nts,b;f..the;Gontfactor.Tb.a ^
receive', use! or hWe abcessXaprbtected health.irifbrmatidh under this.A^reemeht arid "Cbvered
Eritity-'^shall rhean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health:and Human;Services.

(t), beflnltibns.

a, "Breach" shall have the isattie: meaning as thevterrti "Breach" in ,sectiori 16,4.402 bf'Title-45.^
Code-bf Federal Regurations.

b. ,^'Busmess iAssociate"..has the, nieanmg giyeQi .such" term in sectib-n:16d.ld3. of'Xitle 4.3. Cbde
of Federal;Regulatior)S:.

■ c.. "Covered Entity" has the. nrie^aning given such term in.section 160.103 of Title^S,-
iCode-of Federal Hegulation^^^

d. "Designated Record Set"shall have the same rneaning as the terrp "desjgriated recordiset"
in,>45 GFRlS'eclion 164^

e. "Data AdQreg'atibh" shajl have.the'same/meariihg :'as the^teTm" "data aggi^gatioh'' in)45, GFR
Sectidii i 64.'5,01.

f. '"Health £are?6perati'ons"^shall have,the^'sarne rriean'ing ̂ as ̂ heUerni""^heaUh cace, operations■
in■45:GFp.Sectib.h:■164•50X■

..S- '"HlTECH'.Act" means the;Health Information Technology for!ExpriomjC'and'G|inica! .Health
.Act; TitleXI|ii;;Subtitlp^ b.jPart-1 '&%:0f the Arriefican ■Recpye^ and f^ibyest(Xi^ht;Act of
:2009.

h. "HIPAA" mpans thevHeaitb! IqsOfahce Port'abiHty and Accouritability.Act of-19'90; ^Public Law
1 d!4r191;'ari^TtheAS"t^^^ Privacy-and Security" of IrTdividually ideritifiable'Ideaith
Jpfbrrnatiph, 45 GFR;fta,(its i6Q; 16,2 arid' 1,6,4 and ameridments thereto.

'nhdividualf;shall have the sariie meahjngps !the term.':indiytdual"'in 45 !G^ Section i60;103
rand shall irVclude a fersbrf who! gualifies-as a.'pecsonal .representativeln.accbrdance/w^ 45
;6FRSebtipnilS4f5d^^

•j:, "PrWacv'Rulerishalimean^thb^tahdardSifpriP lhdi^iduall^;;!dentifrable;;^
'  * :lnf6/riiatibn;aM3GPRif^,ar;ti'16.6^.oU!l64,iprom States-

Oepartmeritvd.f Heaith'fahd:HurTian-Sew

k, i"Prdfectetf.Heaith iriformatibn''-shalinave'Xhe'Same meaning'^as.t'hejterm^^^
Infprmatiph" in43 CpR::Se'ctio'nl6S,ld3. limitedXoXhVi'nforrnatipn .created .br'receiv^bv

• ;Busihdss'As!sbbjaXe«frdm^^ otl .behalf ;6f GoveYe.d. Entity!,
:3r2pl'4. Exhibifl Conlractor ;nltlalsN . - ■

Hea!tK!ln$urBnce .
Business Asso^aleAgr^^^ l8/27-2d22.... , ^ -jrgV •• ' Date:. -
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.  Exhibit!

1. "Rgduirgd by law" shall have the:'s"arhe:meani^ th'e term'^.equired by'law" lh.45 CFR
:Section*^l 64/103;

,m.. "Secretan/" shall'mea'n.the SecretaiV^of the De'partrnent of He:a)thian Human SerYices-bf,
' his/her.'designee.

•n. "Security Rule" shall meah'the Security Standafds for the^Prptec.tip.n'Q^ ElecUonic Rrdtect^^^
Health lhformali6nPl 45 C^R Part iM. ̂'Subpart C, and/aWndrhehts .thereto,

.0. ^"Unsecured Protected Health Intorffiatioh" niearis'prbtected health iriforniatioh that .is not
^secured by^a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable,;p;r [ncle,cipherable to pnapth^ in,,diyiduajs apd'is-dey^
:a.,stahdards;de,yelo:pihg organization;.thatJ.sapcfe,dit^^ by the Arherica.n' Natiphal Standards'
Institute.

p, y.Other Definitions.- All te/m.s_mpt'otherwise defrned the meani.ng
established pnder45:6.'Fi:R. Parts ibO, ib^'and 164. as amended fro.rn^tirne;t^^^ and the
HITECH '

Act

;(2) Business Associate Use arid Disclosure of Protected Health infofmatiori.

a. ■Busjness-Assqciate shall not use; ,disc|pse; mairitain or transmit Pfotecte^^ H?,a.|tb
l.rifprmatipn (PHIj •except-as reasonably nepessary'tp proyjde the spryicesputjin^^^^
Exhib^it A Pf.the Agreement Further, BtisihessAssoeiate, iricludmg;but.!ri,ot limited to. ail
itsVdirectofs, officers, ehiplo^^ arid agents, sfiairrtot-use; disclose, mairitain or trairi'smit
PHj, in any .manner that vypuld constitute a viplation, qf;the Pfiyacy and Security Ruie.-

b". .Busiriess^Assd'ciate m'ayp.s''e,or'discldse PHl:'
1. 'for the properrrlanagemerit arid admiriistratibn.df the Busihess Assdciate;
'It 'As fequired by law.rRursuarittp the terms seifeirth In paragrpp^^ .below-; .or
111. Fpr data aggregatipn purpQses'for the'heal.th .care pperatipns of Gpyered

C:. To the e)derit.Business Assqciate;is permitted'under the Agreementytp'disclpse PHj t^
itKixd party, .Busjo.esS' As^ prior to ima^ discLPsUre, (i)
reaSpriable ps'suranc.es fm therthird pa.r^.'ihat .such RhI 'wjltbe.rt'eld ddnfid.ehtiaity arid,
•used or further disclosed drily as'fiequif^ by law 'o'r'*for';thP 'purpose lor which;.it .was
disclp.sedlpthe third pa.dy;-and (ii) an agreementlrprnsuch, third party'to
Assppiate', lin ;ac.cprd.ajice vyith !the :HIPMv (?rw^ Security, -end Bxeach;; fyp,tifi.pa"tipn
.Rule's!,of .'any b"reaChes:Pf the, corifidehtiallty of ;the' PHI. to. "the pxterit it has .pbtaine'd
knowledge dfsuchb'reach.

■d.-. the. Business,Asspc|a^^^^ pot,p^nless such.displp^^^ Is reasonably n.ecessan^.t^
pXpyide,;serY.i.ces .under ExhibiVA pi .the. Agreernent, disclpse-any ;in .resppnse.,tp" .a
/equest for.disclosure^oriithe ba'si^lhatlt js. rPq^ law, withoutifirst.ripti^iriq
iC6.vefed"ErititY;sb'that'Gdvefed;Ehttt'y:has:ari qppPrtunltylo disclbsufe^and
•Ip^see^-apprpRrja'tei rpffef:- llieoyered Entity objects tp'-^uch/dJsclosjjre; ihe Busb^s.

y26)l. ExKblil 'ConlraclorlniVlaist -
HeaUh insurance Rbiiabiiity'Aci
Business Associate Agreement 87-2/2022

■Page;„2 of 6 Date " '
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"e.

'Associate^.shajj refrain frorti'dlsclpsing the,PHI, uhtil Cpyered Entity has; exhausted alj
remediesl

'if the; Goyered'Entity:nptifi^ Asspciale Jhat Gdvered Eritity .has'agreed to
.  be'b'oOnd byiadditionairestriblions oyer and above .those uses or displosures or security

Isafeguards.df.PHI pursuant to the Privacy and .SeGurityBule, tHeBusihess Associate
■shall be bound By such additional restrictions and shall nOl dIscloseBHi .in -vlolatiph of
such ■adffio'nai restrictions;and shall abide by any additional, security safeguards.

(3) Obliaation8:arid Activities of Business Associate.

■a. the .Business: Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer imrriedlaiely
after the Business Associate becorhes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health infprmationinpf^ for by the Agreement including breaches dfuhseCufed
protected healM and/pr any security incident that may have animpactp.n the.
protected health inforniation of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business-Assocjate shall immediately-perfprm a risk assessrhent^when-,It becorhes
:aw,are Of .any .of thOabpye sJtuatlons. The risk assessrneht shall include, but not be
limited to:

.0 the nature and ejderit Of the protected health information involved, includirfg the
types otidentifiers a.nd the likelihood 'of/e-identificatjpn;

;o The unauthorized person used the protected health Ihforniatid.n or to whom the
disclosure "was made;

p  'Whethe^the prptected health informatipn vyas .actually acquired of viewed
0 The e'xteht to which the risk to the protected,health.information has been

imitig'ated,.

The. BusinessAssoCiateshall complete the risk.,assessfihent;wlthin,4'8 hours of the '
breach and irnrnlediateiy report the findings:-pf the. riskiasses.snient .in writing tp the
,Govefe.d,Eritity.

C:. The Busingss Ass.pcia^ all .sections of the.Privacy. Becufity. and
Breach ■Notificati.o.'n Ruie,

d. BusinessAs.socjateshall fhake ayaHable all of jts iriterrial policies and pro.cedufes;, boOks-
[and records relati.ng tojhe use and disclosure of PHl received fro^ or'created, or
'feceiyed by the BuSinfess As^ pn behalf pf'Gpyefed Eiltity 'to.the-B.epreTar^ fp/
purbbfes bf detefmirilng Covered Entityls compliance with HIRAA and the P.riyacy arid
Security Rulei

'"e. Busiriess>.sspciate:sha!i required]! pfIts business associates.,that;receive; use
SCCPsS to' RhI Unijer.thP:Agreertierit, to agree in writirig ,to. adhere to .the .same
reslriclionsiaridicpriditions on the use arid disclosure of.PHI coritaihed herein, ificluding'
the^duty to return^of destroy-th^ P.HI as^p.rpyided under Se.cb^ .(I). The Covered Entity
:shsiii be.dPriSider^^^ a dli:ect:third pBrty'.benekiary .ohth^^^^ busiriess;as?9i:iate
agfeernPrits with^Gpfitractpr's jriterided.busine^ss'asspciates. w be

?3/2014 ExhlWl'l CqntfoetdrlnillalsV— ■
Health1n8ur8nce'Rorbbii[ty
Builness'Assodate.Agreemen'i . 8/2/2022

PagePple Da's
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'pursuari'tio^thiS;Agre^^^ vyith rights of enforcement and in_demnificali6n from such
busings? aWbciates who shalLbe governed by siandafd Paragraph #1,3:of the standard,
contract "prpvisiohs _(P-37) of this Agreemerit for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protectedjhealth'in'fprm

■f. WitHln;fiv,e (5) business,'days:df receipt of a written request from Covered Erttity,
^lusiness.Associate shall make available durihg normal b.usin'ess hours atits dffic:es;all
■recbrds^.bdpks.^agre^^^ policiesend procedures reiating to the,use arid di'scIosUre
of PHl .to'.the C.dyered.Entity. for'pufposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business/Associate's c6fnpliahCe..With the'tefms of the Agreement.

g: VVithin.ten (10) busihess days'of receiving a written request from Covered Entity.
iBueiness Asspciate shall provide access to PHI in .a Designated Rec6rd\Set to the
Covered Entity, ;br as, directed by Covered ,Entity,. td an individual in ofderito meefthe
ifequiremehts under'45:,GFR Section 164.524.

h.. Within ten (|p) busiriess days of receiving a written reque^'from Covered Entity for.an
•amendrbent of PHI or a.record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set. the Business Associate shell,make, such Rl^l available tcCoyered Entity for
'amendment and ihcbrpb'rate ariy^suoh amendment toienable Covered Entity to fulfill its
;dbiigetlp'ris unc|e_r 45 CFR ,Section"1.64:526.

i! Busiriess'Assdclate shall document such disclosures of PHI and infoririatlon related to
•such disclosures ais would be required for Covered Entity to respond-toja request by an
Individual fpr,an accounting pf disclbsures of PHI in accordance, with 45 CFR Sectidh'
164.528.

ji Within ten (iO) business days of receiving a written request:from Covered Entity f,or:a.
■request for,an .accounting of disclosures of PHi; Business Associate'sHall make available,
.tVCovefOd Entity-such; lEntity may .require to fulfilHts pbligations
to provide"an accounting,of disclosures with, respect to PHI in accprda.nce wljh 45 jCJFR
'Section 1164.528.

k. .In the eVeht any; individual requests access.iq; amendment of. or .accounting of PHIdirectly'from.the Byslne'ss As'sociateVthe.Business.^s^ '
business days forward such request (o Cbyere'd Entity. Covered Entity"shall h'ave^the
■resppnsibi'li^^^ to fbiwarded requests. ^Hpvyever, if forwarding the
iitdividuarsrequest b 'Covered Entity would cause Cdyered Enlitydrithe Business
/Associatb^td.-Violate HIPAA'and the.'Frivacy and"Security Rule, .the.[Busines?:;Associa
^shall instead respond tolhejndividuars-request.a.s required by such.law-arid;optify
■Qpvered,Entity of such response as soon as'practicable.

\. Within teri (r());bu'siriebs days of termination of thp Agreerrient. fprpny'reaspn., the
!Business;.Associate.shalj return: of destroy, as specified by'Covered E'ntily.ail PHI
rebeiydd frb(tt...pr created, or re.ceiyed: by the'Business.Ass'bciateiin corlhectibn iwith-the •
A^febrhehti and shair'npt'retain any copies o/ back-up:tapes:of-such'PH!':. ;lf return/or
destruction Is'not'feasilile. :or:the disposition of the. PHI has beend.theryyise agr.eedlio"in

■  • ' - .
mpI

,0

•aesiruuuuri li.JlUl'l.CO&lUJC, V'."'® VJ V-'^ ^ ysavr-rr '
the Agreerrient,- Business A"s^^ contiriue tp exiend the prple'ctiqnsdf lb"e .
\  ..... r ^ - . _'LL I'll II <•' irfio /^fXgreementyip sucli. p'HI a^^ lirqit.furtber uses a'nd.disclosures of such PHI toJH
duTpbses that make the return of destruction infeasiblei for splbng as^BusJness

•2/20U ■ . ExNWl ,f. . : .Cpmra.ctbf InUlajs.V ;
'  ' HeallhInsurancePortabjiil'/AcV

Business Associale'Agreemenl . . 8y2/'2022.
Page 4 of 6 " .Date; " .r -.:
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•Associateimaintalns such PHI. If Covered Entity, in It's^sble 'discretibh'. requires that-the
Business Asspcjate destroy ;any or.aj) PHI; theBusfness Associate sAaineert.ify ip,
.Covered feritity fhatife; PHI fias begin destroyed.,

;{4) 'QbllQationsvof Covered Entity

:a, Covered Bhtity^shall notify Business Associa'teTdf-an ,in its
!Notice of Privacy Practices provided to iridividuals in accordance with!.45:;,GF,R Section.
'1'64.-52p',;to;the e^ent that such change or lirhitation may affectlBusiness Associate's
use^or'disclosure dfiPHl.b

b. Coyefe.d ■dntfty .shail promptly notify Business;^sSOciate,of anyv^^^ O/ireypoatipn
:o'f pe>missi6n';prdvided td.Covered£ntity :by m!aividUais:vyh"dse' PHI may be used or
:disclosed'by!Business Associate under ihis Agreement, pursuant to.45 CFRlSectioh
16'4?506'or'4^

c. ICdvefed entity shall pfomptly hotify^ Bu'siriessAssociate of any-restrictions on the use of"'
disclosure of PHI lhat CoVered Eritityhas agreed.to inoccbrdance.with 45 CFR-164.522,
rtbj:he;e>derit";thaf suc1i'restriction:rnay affect Business Associate's;yse-or discjosure-bf

^

!(6) Terrriihatioh for Cause

Jri:.add!tip,n,tp'Pafa^ IQ.pf the standard ^rms and.condihpns" {P-37) .of this •
.Agfeement;theiC.pvere.d Entity;ma^ termiriatei.he Agreement,up;o^^^
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate:
Agreernentiseifforth herein as Ekhibif l.'The Coyered Entjty may either jfrimediajely
termhate'tHe. Agreerhefnt Or provide an .bpp.qrtum^ fpriBuSjness ■As;sociale-fp;Cur
aliened 'breachLwithih a tirffefrarhe 'specified by G6vered£ritlty". Jf Gov.efed.Ehtity.
determinesjthatineither termination nor.cure js feasible. CoveredjEntity s'hallTepbft the
.yiolatipn to the Secretary.

;(6) .IVIiscellaheous

:a.^ .• Definitiohs^andi ReQula'torv'References: All 'terms, used', .byt.pot otherwise d"e'fihed'.herei.h'._
■shall have thp sarne riieaning as those terms in the pVivacy and .Security Kuie, arherided'

•  'frOm'tiriie ta'timb. .A referbhce in'the A'greerhenT,:a's;arhended-tp incjiJde:f^
ta-Socfibn in.the'R^ and Security Rule me'ans the Section as in effect or as ,
iarnended. •

Jo.. Ameridmeht. Covered .Entity and Business Associate agre.eitottakXsuqh ctlon as iS;
inecessary to amend the,A'greerheri time to tirne as'is "necessary fbfCov.ered
Entity-Hoo.omp^^^^ changes lh;the requjrement.s of HIP!^- the.-Privacy^and"
;Secufity^Rule; 'an^appilcable; federal and state law.

,c-. Data Qwnership. The Business Associate acknowledges that-it has np ownership fights
fwith fbSpect to the'Rl^l brbyi.dedlby or creat ph b,ehalf of Cpyered Entity. ^

:d: ihterpretatioh. The:;parties;ag;.e:e: that b'ny ambiauifyiin theAgreen^^^ he
■  Jp;permit:Gbyerbd£h^^^^^^^ cbrTipiy-with HIPM:. the Privacy and'SecurJty 'Rui.e.

ExhibiV'l Gorilracto'r initials.:3/20l'4.
Heaflh'lnsurafcePbrtabliity.'Act
Business Associate ^reerrtenl '8/2/2022

?P^e-5 of:6' Date
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'Seoredatioh;, ;if.:ahy;term or conditibh- of this'Exhlbjr.l .or the apRiieatiohitKefedf tb ;an^
ipersopts),or,circumstance [s: he|d invalid, §uch invalidity shall .not-affect other terms or
conditibn^-yiiC ipyali^^ljerm pr c^nditioni^to Uiis'end the
lefmii'nd bOnditiohs-dUhis.¥xhibltJ.are:d

-Survival; Provisi^ns;.in,tHis:Exhibit;l regarding ttie use and disclosure bf:PHI>elurn or
,de:structioh-pf PHI.'^xtenjSipn^ Agreement Jnvsedipn]^
;defense.ahd ifide'mhification';prpyisidris of ,sec.tioh;,(3) e and Paragraph, 13;0fJne;
-standard terms and coriditidns' (P.r37). sHallsurvive theJerminatiohof.the^AgTee

IN VyiTNESS WhHEREdF, the parties hereto have duly execute^d this Exhibit 1,

Department of Health and.Human Setvices ilampcey HeaUK Ga/e
pae^Q/iita^; Gpntractor

^n^nj .(Wuft
Signatur'ejOf Aythphzed Representativ.e. Signature of%uthorized Representative,

Me.'li:s.sa' ;Hardy. Gregory white.

Name^of Auth'orized :Repre^
;Di rector, ipLTSS

ehtative Name'.of.:Au,thpri2ed Representative;

CEO

title" of Authprized'Represer

d/i/2022' "

itatiye Title; pt Authprized ,,Rep;resentativ,e

8/2/2022

Date' Date

3/201'4 ^hlbit i
HealtjT^lnsufait^'Portabinty ̂
'au>ine,ss*A\i5o^^^

Pf9a6;pf 6

IContrecibr Initiata^

8/2/2d22"
Date. ■ • "
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING :THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCQUNfABlLnV AND TRANSPAR^
:ACTfFFATAi;CQMPLIANCE " '

YheiHederarFunding Accountability and transpa/ency Act'(RFi^^
Fede^'l g/ahts:equal 5b or grbater^than; pn'oriafter Octpter 1 i:20i,0, ipTeporiipn

■data rplated to executive cp^ assqcjatfd'.firsVtiiBr subigrants of'$2S.-000-orjmpre. jf-the
initiafa^rcl^ ^ipw!$25;p00 but s^^^ result in.a;.total;awafd .equal to,'br over

.$25."Od6Vth,e:awa Is subject to the'.F.FATA'reporting requirements; aisrbf the date ;bf;the a^fd.
Ih-^ccordance Wlth'2:CFR Part-17.0"(Repbrtihg S.ub'award.a^d'Exe'cutiye Gbmpe'nsatipriin^

Department.bf Health^ahd Hurhanl,Seryice's.'(pHHS) must report the 'fpilpwing infpnmaUon;fpr-any.
suliawa.rd pr'cpnlractaward subject .to the/RFAJA reporting requirernents;
j., Kamepf;eniity •

•;i- -j^ouritVf award .
3. Fundlhg.agericy.
4'. NAICS cdde;for'c6htracts /.CFDA program humberfbr-gfants
6. Prograrh'.TOU'rce"
6. Avirard ,titlCdescriptive''brthe;:pV the fundlng'actibn
7. ^LbOTyqn^of the;.entjty
8. Princlple;Riace;pf perf^^
9.; Umque'ideritifier pftheiehtity^(^^
HO; "Total cornpensatidn andPames:bf the.top five executives if: ; .

iO.1. ;M6r&than.60%'6f;anhual.gfbss,revehues..are from Fedeial goyemment. and'.thbse,
•  revenues are greater'lhan

-HP.-i., •Cbmpensatipn j^hpiai.ready ayailable thrpughjrepprling jp"i:he SEC,-
Pnrn^grenlrecjplents mustauM^^^ by the end^bf.the month, plus 30 days.;in wtiich
lbB'award or;avrard amendment if made.
fhe.dontractor IdenHlfiedjn Sectlbn H'3.of the'General Rrovlsiohs agrees tbicbmply-vWth the provisiohs'bf
The.!Federail Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109^282 and.Piibiic.Law ,11.0-262,
arid-2'CFR"'Part'170;(Re^rtlhg Subawa'rd ahd,Executive\C.6rnpehsatioh ln:fb'rt^^
tbhaye thCGbrit/adoKs/epYesjentatiyei as. idehtified. in'.Sections and 1,1_2pf the General.Pfpvjsio.ns-
exeifute^the following Gertiflc^^ .. . . .
^rhe tteiow named' C.pn^^^ agrees to; p/oyide.needed;inf6rrTiation asfoutllned .above to the :NH
pepartmept;o}'t^alt}i-^^^^^ Services and to comply wi^ all. applicable provisions of the Federal
Financiai'AcMunYability.anci Transparency Act.

Gonlraclbf Name: Lamprey Hea.Tth .c-are

rDieuStsMd by:'

^B/2/2pZ2
roe

Natno-vjtcyui-y wiHte

Title: (^£0

.ErfilbU'jy.CortlilceYldhReflsrtfingi^^^^^ Cohlfoi&dr InRiab

D»

.?AceountaWiityAndtrans^reh^,Ad;(FFATAj Cornpitenco . '8/2/2022
cubwHsniona Data^.— ,•
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•FORM A

•^ .'^eLConlractor ideritjfied.in Section,1.3. bf the General Prbvislons, I ceillfy that theVes^'iises toMhe-
below'listed questions,are';trueand:accura

1.

4:

-r . f7lua71xrnp6
The pEI (SAM.^by) humbef forvourentitvis:.

-2. In yqyrby8jnesslor:prganiza!Uon>;prec^^^ fisca) year, did your'business or orgarilzation
receive (-1) 80 percenter rhdre ofyour annual gross revenue in«;u.S.federal cphtracts,;sut^htrac^
ipans; grants;>u^ranjs. and/pr,cpoperatiye:agreements:;and'(2) S25;ppO^^^
gross revenues frprri U.S. federal cbhtracts..'subcoritracts. Ibahs. grants. subg'rantS.iand/pr
pppperative;agre.e[T|ents?

_i_ NO -YES
i'f theiariswer tp #2^a^yens

If the'ansWr-to #2.ab6yejs YES. please answerjhe;following;

3. Does the^pi^blfphaveoccessTo information,about the cpmpensajion of thbexecutiyes ih.yqur
buslness/prprganizatiojiThrpughperiodicreports'fiied under section 13(a) orl5(d).df.the Secunties

Exchange Actdf-1'934r(15'U:S.e;.78 78o(dj)or section "6104 of.thelnterhal Revenue Code.bf
■1986?

.  Np ^YES
If thelanswer to'#3 a^ve is/YES
If theansvyer'to#3;aibqye:isNp.;please;answerthefollowing:i

The names and,compensation of the .five most highly conipensaled officers in yoy'r business or-
p'rgahization are asTollo.ws';

Name:,

Name:-.
i:

Name;.

Name:',

;Naffie:.

Arnount; ,

Amount: ,

Amouht:

•Amount:

Amount:

CLIA>{HS/n07.t3

Exhibit i-;,Cenif!MilpnR^j9rdjf^
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.5^; Defiriitipps

^fhe fpiipwing'l.erm^^ reflected and haye the de_scribed fpeantng In this/dpcumeri

'1. "Breach"' means :the loss of cpntro!; cpmprpmjsev unauthppzed disclosure,
:u"na"uthorlzed 'acqCiisitldn. unauthorized, .access, or .a.n^ ̂ similar term .referring to
slluatibris where ipersons other than authorized user^ and for fan .other .than
authorized purpose have access or pdtehtia) access to personally, identifiable
jnfprmatipn; vyhether physical or electronic.- With regard :t"o Protected Health
.Inforrhatidn, " Breach" phajl haye; the sa.mp, meaning es-,the'.tejTn'"Breach" in sepfipn,
T64.402'orTitie'45. &de ofFederaJ Regulationl

2. -"Computer'Security Incident" shall have the saitie meahihg "Computer Securit^^^
l.nciden.t"-in seclion two:.(2) of NjST Pubjicatipn 800-61, Computer-Security Incident
Handling Guide, hlatipnaf Institute of Standards and technplpgy, U.S. Pepartment
of Cdrhmerce.

3. "Cohfidehtial Infornnatidn" or "Cdhfideritial Data" means: all cdrifidehtial ihifdfmatidri
.disclosed! by tone party jo the other such as all medical, health; 'fthancial,. public
assistance be.nefits and persppaj information including yvi.thput limitatipp,:Sut)Stance
Abuse. Tfeatni'eht Recbrds. =-.Case .Records, .Protected. Health informatlop and
Personally .Identifiable, information.

■ jl^onfidential 'Infprmati.op ,als.o, incjudes any and ;,alj .information owned or mariaged [by
,the .State:.df NH -p(eated,;rece)yed. frp;rn or .oh b'ehaif of .th;e. .t5epartmeni*dfiH and
Hu'rhari Services ,(DHHS) of ,acce"ssed in the. cbufse of perfofrhihg cb'ritfacted
services-- of which collection, disclosure, protection, and diispdsltion is-goverhed by
state or federal' jaw or regulaOo.n:. This information Inpludes, ,but' is -npt limited to
Protected Mea'l.th Information (PHj), PersonarinWrmajion .{PI), Per.sqnaj Financial,
Ihfd'fmatid'h (PFI), Federal, TaX- lii'forhiatidri l ^.dcial 'Security Numbers. (SSN),
Payment .Gard Industry'(PC!)', and or'other sensitive'and cohfidehtiahirifbrmatioh.

'4, "jEnd Osef' means, :ariy"pe.rson or ejit.ity (e;;g,, qgnlractori p.p.ntractp/'s ernployee.-
busine'ss .as'so'clate; subc.ontractbr, other, doymstream user,;,etc.) that recei.yes.
DHHS data briderivative.data in accb>dahce'<with the terms bf.this Cbntrabt."

5; "HIPM";ntean,s.1heH Jnsurarice Pprtabjlity"and Accountability Act:pf*159$ .and the
reguiatiobs'pfbrhulga.tedVhbreu^

6. "Incident" mearil'ah act-that pbtehtially .Violates ah explicit br implied security poiicy.
vvhich'ihclu'des attempts (eitherfaiied br sUccessfuI) tb .gbih uhauth'ofized acc&ss.tb a'
sy,ate.rnvpr 'its unwanted,'disruption or denial, of service.; the'iunautliorl^^^^ usebf
a isystem for jhe, p.roc.e.ssing lo/ .sjorage of daja; .arid ehanges to -system,.hardv^re,
firmware, br .sbftvvafebh'araGteristiCs without the owner's knowledQe'. 'ihstrucii.qn, br
consenf. jhcidehtsjindude-'the.lossbf data thfough'theftdfbevice'misplacement
or mis'pjacemerit pf' hardcppy documents, -andi .rriisroutipg.of.physical or ejeclro.nic.

. ...pj

yS/LestupdaUtb/iM'/IS . Cohlra^or 1nH[ais>,
■  b.HHSinfpma.li^^^^^

Security, Requirements 8/2/2022
:Rage''i or9 Pata:-^.' " 'V :
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rhail, :all of whiCb may have the' p'otential to; put the data 'at fisk of unauthorized
"access.Juse; disclosure, mddificatioh-or destruction . .

7; "G)pen VVirele.ss i.Nehwork- means any network or segment, df a network- that 'is'
notjdesignajed by the 'Staje of^New Hart>psh'|re-s, J)leRarimen),-pf j'n'foOTeJlQA
TGchridldgy or delegate as a. prote'cied, network .(designed. '.tested.^-and
approved, by. .means'of the Stale, to 'transrnitj will !be. Oohsidered an opeh
ne'twork-and hot adequately secure for thO trahsmissloh of-uhehciypted PI, PFI,
PHI pr cpnTideniial DHHS data.

8. '"Perspnal Infprmatipn" ;(o_r, "pi,":) means infprrna.tipn: which .can, b.e used/tp^dietinguish
or trace'ah indlviduai's identity, s.ucho.s their name", sdciai 'secm^ nUmbe~r, personal
Ihfofrhatidh as defined In New ..Harhpshlre. BSA 359-G:i9., .bidrhetrip records, Otc.,
alone, or when cornbined-with other personal or identifying iriformation which is linked
or Ijnkable'tp.a sp.ecjfic iridiyidual,- such as da.teood.pjap.e pf birth, mplher'.s .maiden
narrie, etc, " " '

9. -Privacy Rule" shall mearithe.Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Irifprmatipn at 45'C.F;r. parts 160 and 164, promulgated under'HjPAA by the United
'States Departni.ent oT.H Human Services.

10, "Protected. He.al.th. Ihfdrmalldn" (dr "PHr) Has; the same meaning as 'provided in; the
definition of "Protected Health Inforfhatidh" inthe HIPAA Privacy Rule ."at 45.C.'F".R. ;§
led, 10,3.

11, "Security Rule" shall mean the Sepunty"'Standards fpr tbe .Protection of Eieclrpnip
Protected Health Inforrhatidn at 45. d.F.R. Part 1.64, Subpart .C, and/ameridrhehts'
thereto. .

-12: '"Un.secum Protected^ Health lnfqrmotio.n"'rneans PrdteciedjHeajth tnform.ationthal is
' ndt se'cured by a' te'chnoiogy' s.tandard that renders Pro'tected Heajth. Information
unusable, unre'adable, •or " indecipherable to unauthoTized in'divi.duais ..'arid is:
.develpped pr eri'ddrsed by a listandards develpplng organization that isoccredited by

-  the ;A.m,er,ica.n Nalidnal Standards, lo.stitute,-

I. RES/ONSIBiLlTJES OF DHHS ANCj T.HE GQhjT.R#CTOR

A. Busihess'Use'.ahd Disclosure ofiGdhfidehtial Infdrmatidh.

% XH©'Q-pntra;ctpr m,ust not, use; discjpse^maintaih .pr;transm Infoirnatlon
excegt las reaSooably pecessalV a underih.isvG.pntract. •Purther, ,6.p,ntractp.r,.
iricludihg but.t^t .limited to.^ll .its'directors, officers; ;erhpldyees,and mus,t;nb,t
usdi disclose, rhaintain or transrriit PHlin any manner that would ;c6nstitute..a'violation

. pi.the ;Priyacy. and-Secun^

T.he -§^Qntra;^tpr must np't :discios.e any Gprifidential Infprroa.ti.on jp /e.spgnse" .tp a
—M

s
vs. Last update idToWs .Eidiibit k Cbntractdfinitals ̂  -

OHHS Information

^airily Requirements iB/Z/ioH
Pageijpf fl! ' * pate""



■Dpou'Si9n.'En\^)opejb;,M529;^74-1^:3A

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Sei^icps
Exhi'biLK

PHHS Infprmatlpri Security Requirements.

.requesj for .disclosure, on The .basis that il is; r.equire.d by- law, In. response, 'to"a;
subpoena, .etc*,, without first hotifyihg DHHS .so that DHHS has .ah .opportunity to
■cohserit'or objedt to the disclosure.

3. If.DHHS .notjfies the Gontractor that P.^IHS has agreed to be Oqund by, additipnai
'restricilpn.s. pyer and ^.pyo tbP'se. uses oj; disdOsurps^pj .sepun^ Of PHI.
Rursuaht'.to. the Privacy 'and S.ecurity Rule. the -Cohtractor rnust be bound by s'uch"
additional restrictions and must' hot' disclose PHI in violation of such a'dditibhal
restrictioris.arid must abide by any additiohal security-safeguards.

'4. The .Cbntractor .agrees .that (DHHS Data or deriyatiye there from djscbsejd to an End
^Qser. rnust orily be used purs.ua.nt.to; the ler.rns of this Contract.

5. ''the Contractor agrees DHHS IData .obtained under'this Contract may not b'e'used for
a'hy other.purposes'that are riot indicated in this Contract.

?•; The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to'the aytho.rized reprpsentatiyes
•of DHHS for the purpose pf inspecting toppnfirm cornpliance^with the. terms of .this.
Contract.

II. METHODS:OF SECURE transmission OF DATA

•T Application Encryption. If "End Uspr is trans.mitlipg ;dhHS data, con.taining
■Go'nfi.de.ntial Data between ■applications, the Gpritractor attests th;e .appijcaticiris have,
been, evaluated by ari ^expert knowledgeable in cyber security''and that' said
appiicati.on'.s encryp.tion capabTl.ities'ensure securetrahsmlssion yia .the interniet.

2. C.orhputer .Disks,ahd Portable',Storage De\?ices. End User may riot usOObririputef dlsks
or;portab!e stprage^dey[ces,-!such as a thumb dnyp, a.sq ".method of transn^^^^^ .Q.HHS

.  data.

'3. E'ncfy'pted Email. End User rhay drily employ .email to trarisrriil Corifideritial Data if
ernaj! is encrvpted'-and .bejng sent to a.pd being received by emajl, i^dd/esses of
'pers'd'ri's auth'pnzerdToTecei.v.e's'u Ih'formatipri,

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User- is temploying the Web io. transmit Gorifidential
.Dataj 'the isec.ure. s.qcket iayecs ,(§S.L)' rr!iu.st. be ,u,sed end .the: y/eb isite rriusj ,be
sOcure. '.SSL ;eri'ciyptS'data trarismltte"d via a;Web.site.

5- . Pile HP.si'.rig. Seryicesr alsQ .known las File Shad.ng Sites^ End Oser may not' .us,e. file
hosting iseiyices, such as Prdpb.Ox or Gobgle; CipCid Storage, to tfahsmit
Odnfideritial Data.

6.. (jro.un.d MaJI Servjce.,End Oser.rnay pnjy transmit Bpnfide.ot[ai'Data via ;c.er///7ed'grouod
m'aif within the obritlhentai .U.S; arid.wheri.seritlo a named individual.

7. Laptops -and PDA. If End User is employing portable devic.es to' transmit..
jSo.ri® ential'dafa^saTd d.e.yJces.;triast be; en^c.^^^

'8. Op'eri Wireless.Networks. End User'mOy dot transmit. Cb'rifideritial Data .via a'ri.operi
bV

. M
yS; Loslupdate.iO/O^J.S e^ibfl K , CofitirBctorlniiials^

.DHHS.Infonnallon
SocorilyRequirefnents '872/2022
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■wVeieSs: oetwork. End uVer must; employ a, virtual private ,ne,two,rk (VPtS): when,
xerhblely itrah'smlttihg via ah.-opeh wireless'network.

|9'. f^emote 'User. Cp.fti,municaljpn: If End U,ser [s emplpyjpg ;remplej pornmunip^
Access or .transmit .dopfideotiar Data; a yirtuai pri.vate ne;twprk (VRN)' must be.
ilns'taHed on the End User's mobile device^s)] or laptop" from-whichiihfOn^atioh.vMll be
'trajisixiltted-or access,

10,.^SH, File Transfer Prp.tpc^l ,(Sf TR). alsp. known as: Se.cure RIe'Xransfer Prptpcpi, If
■End User Is emplbying an 'SFTP .to transmit Qpriifidentlal Data- Erid User will
^structure: the; Folder and..access, privileges to preyerif lnapprppcia.te .disclosure, of

.. information.. ;SFTP folders, and sub.Tdlders used fo'r transmitting Cbhfid.ehtial !D,a.ta will
,be;cpded fprf24-ho.uj':a.uio-de!etion cycle'([.e, Gpnfidential. p"ata'wiJ.l be deleted e.yery 24
h'o'urs). ■

H.. Wireiess Devices. 1} End y.serjs transmitting Cpnndenlial Data via wireless devic.es, all
(data,must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate'disciosure of information,

III. .RETENTION. AND DISPOSITION'OF IDENTIFIABLE.RECORDS

•The CpnjractjDr will only retain the data and any derlvatiye-of. the data "for the, duration pf-'this
GontracV. After isuch. time, "ibe; ;GOntractpr' will have. ;30. days; to": destroy the ..data ;artd, any
'derivative in vvhateyer form lit. may 'exist; unless-, otherwise .required by law^or pe"rmitte"d
under thls Cbhtraci..Tp this endi'the parties must:

a; Retention

T. The Gpntractpr ^agrees it will .not store, transfer or" pcocess data collected in
connection, with [the services: rendered undei; thjs- G.QOtract. outside of the: yhile.d
-States. THjs physical location requirement shall also; apply in thejmp.lemeh.latipn.pf

■  .cipUb'-cbmputihg,; cloiid 'service Or cloud, storage capabilities, land includes' backup
idata .arjd Disaster [Recovery locations.

2. The Gohtractbr ag'rees to ensure prbpe'r "security rhpnilonng capabi^ite in
place; tO'detect pptenti^al isecurity e.yents that can ;imp"acl. ,State; :bf ;N.H 'systems..
^and^br Department confidential ihformatibn'for cohtractbrproVided'sysiemi

3. Jhe Gphtractor-agre.es; ito" provide se.curity .a.wareness- arid educaljon Torits. End
Users in s'uppo'rt:ofprOtecting"Departmerit'pbnfidentiaJ ififbrm'atiph.

4. The GontrbCtpr'agreesTo retain alj electrpnic; ar)d hard, copie's.^pf Gonfide^^^^^ Data
"in;ia:secure;ibca"tro'n and identified in sbclionJV. A.2;

,5. The ;Gonti;aclor agrees" Gdriifidential Qata. [stored .in ia; Gipud, must, be ;in a
[Re.df^.MP/BlTE^ icompliant ',s.olutiqn and comply .y/ith all applicable" statutes .and
reguiatiphsT.egafd'hg the::priyacy and^;seGUrity. All servers and ;deyi,c'es must .hay®
pCirrentlyTSupportqd .and hardened operating cys'tems;, thei jatest anti-vifai, anti-:
,ha'ckb;r',,.antirspam, lahti-lpyware, ,a_hd ;anti-ma|waye utjlltiel.-'X as a

V5;Xa$t yjx3aie;i'0/b9/ie
iDHHS.Iftformalion

ExKbii k eohtraclor ihilials"^
iSJftformaiion
ly Ftequiremenls , :J
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whole, must have aggressive Ihtrusion-dete.ctibn and firevyall proteciiba

6. 'The :Gohl"ractbr agrees to and ensures. Its, complete cobp.eratipn with ;the State.'s
Chief Jnformatipn Officer In the detection of any security vylnerability of the .hiosting
infrastructure.

B. Dlspbsjtlbn.

1. If the Contractor win maintain .any Confidential Information on:i,ts systems (or Its
a.ub-Coritractpr systems), the Contractor will maihtain a documented process, for
-securely-dispbsihg Of isuch data upon request of contract terminaljon; and will
obtain written ceftification for .any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Cpritractpr or any subcontractors as a partbf ongoing, emergency,, and or disaster
:recpvery operations. When no longer In use, eleclronic media containing .Stale ;bf
New Hampshire data shall.be rendered uhracpverable via a secure wipe program
In-accordance with -industry-accepted ̂ standards, for secure deletion •and rnedia.
sanitlzatipn, or otherwise physically destroying the, media :(fbr ;exa.mp'|e.
.degaussfng) as [described' in NISI Special [Publication ;800-88. Rev 1, Guidelihes
for Media Sahilizatio.n, Naliofial Institute of Standards and Technolpgy, ,U. S.
DepaUfhent of. Commerce. The Contractor vvill document, and .certify in writing at

; time of the data^destfuction.-and will provide written certific'ation'lo the Departnient
upon" [request. The written certification will include all details heCessaiy to.

•  • dem'onstrate(data has-been properly destroyed and validated.. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention, requirements vyill be .jointly
evaluated by the State and Cbntractor prior to destruction.

2. Uni.ess otherwise [specified, within thirty (30)' days of ;the' I'erminatloh bf this
C6ntfact,"Cohlractor [agrees[tb[deslroy all hard pppies bf Cp.nfide'ntiaLDataJusing a-
secure method such as shredding.

Unless pthewise specified, within thirty (30) days bf the' termination :bf this
Cbntfact, iCpntractpr agrees .to tompletely destrby all electrohic, Confid'eriiial Data
by rheahs of data erasure,-also khown as secufp data vviping;

IV; PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

^  /i. Goptractpr agrees, to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contfa"ct, :ari[d any
derivatlv.e.[data or files, [as foibvys:

^1. The Gbhlfactbr will m'alniain. proper security controls ito .prpt.ecl Deparim.eht;
confidential Irifbrmatibri [cbllected, process.ed, rhana^ged, .and/or [stpred.in the[d6i!y®ry
of.cpniracted, services.

2..,. The' ■Cohtractpr will maintain policies arid [procedures, -to prbtecl Departmeht
cbhfidentiai information [thfoughpul the Informajipn .llfecyci.e, where 'applicable, ;{ffbm
cfeatibh, transfbrmatiori, use, stbfSp and secure destruction) regarbtess of the
media used to store the data (I.e.. tape, disk, pa'pe'r, etc.)........ .. .. . . -^ot

m
yS.^slu;kJ8to 10/09/16 . . ErfiibiiK Ccrilractor Ihillals,';

'  DHHS^Informaljoh,
■Se^ty Reqiirernents . 872/2022
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:3: the jQontraetor" .wi[f rnaintain appropriate; authentication land access; conirbis; tp^
boritractdhsyslemsitHat.obil^ transmit, br-store bepartmeht;C6hfidential information'
.wher® appjipahle.,

,4. The Gpntractor ..vyil|, ensure proper security, monitoring, capabilities are In place, IP
,detecl: potential 'security, events. th:ai :can. impac.t' ■State of, ,NH systems, and/or
Separtmenl Cpnridentia) Informaiipn for ;c,ontractpr provided; systems.

•5: the, •^®ht,';acto.'' wilj provide regular security awareness, and educatipn; % jts End
IJsers in';Supp,oft of pfptecting Qepartrnent cdnfidehtla) infprmatiph.

.6; ■ if :th"e; Contractor will be \eub>cohtracting; any core functions fof -the ehgagemeht,
suppprtihg^the ;seiVices,!f6r State of^ New Hafripshire,. the Cbntfaclor will, maintain a
prpgrajn' of ap internal process or 'p,CP9esses that- denhes; ^specific security
expecfatipns, and :rh'ohitoring c,o.mpliance:,t.o security.requjrementscthaj at a i.rnihimurn,
match.those for "the Contractor,: including breach notificatlbn requiremehts;

(7. The Contractor-vwill work with' the" Department, to sigh and corriply^ with, all applicable'
State :of New Hanipshire and Departmehli system accesS' and .authphMtlon policies
anci procedures; sysjerns access forms. an;d computer use agreements .as part-.pf
Obtaining add. rtiaintaining access: to, any Departrnent systemfs). lAgrea.mpnts will be
corhpleted and 'signed by the Contractbr and any appiicablf ^ub-cbritractor.S;,,prior to
system access beipg authorized.

;8. tfie bepartmerit'de.terrnjhes the Contractor js a business Associate pursuari.t to :45
.  1.60.:i08,. .thP- ContractO/ wijf execute; ;a' HipAA Bpsiness_ Associate .Agreement

.(BAA) with Uhe .p.epaVtrnenf and is: responsible" 'for imPintaining corfipliaKce wth the
agreement'.

■^9: The. .Contractor wiH ^work' the DepabmAnt atlits request to pPmplete-ai.Systehi,
Management THe, purppse of the survey is 'to^ .enable ;the Pepartment and
Cdhtra'ctori to :rhoriito"r f.br any changes Jn ri,s.ks, ■threats, .and .yui,nerabilities that, may
.pccurr over the life of the Contraclor ehgagemerit!- The suiyey- p|i; be- .completed

"  'ajniuaily,: ,dfian:>alternaje time frame, at the pepartmehis dis'crettoh with agreement by-
';the; bpniracidr, or fhe; Department ;,may request the survey' be .cornpje'ied, when' the;
'scope of the-0"rigagemehb,between tha the .Gpntra~clpr ch'ahg;es.

16. The. Coritfaeto.r will hot :stpre.;knowirig!y or urikhpwingly, rahy-State OfNew f-|arfip,sh,ife",
Of pep,adrne;hj;\da.ta pffstioro or oujsidef.the bPundariesbf .t.he^pjiited Stat"es..uhless
iprior- exprPss written eonserit: is obtained frpm :the f.nfbTmJtioh Sebufity' dffice.
leadership rnemb.er within thei.bepartmefit.

41. IData iSecunty iBrea'ch biabijity.^ Tn'the PVPnt; of ,any security breach^ Cpntractpr-.sh'aii-
make .efforts- to investigate the causes of -the ;bt®PQh, .prprnptly ^take' :me,asufes to
preverit: fiitufe' breach a.nd rpinimlze: ariy ;darnage or [pss; re.sulting -from (the; .breach:
¥hi' Bt'ate.^nftalt recbver fromihe CPntra.ctpr^alrcosts Of response" Ohd recovery ffpm;

-01

VS.-t'aslupdale f(V(wi'8 . .Exi?'b'lK,, ConifactOf.lnitiaiV: - - ---- •
.OHHS infomaiion

SecufiiyRequiroments 8/2f.20,22'
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the breach, including but hot .limited to: ;credit;mohitoring servic'es, maiiing costs' and
coStS' associated with website and itelephohe ciall ceriler' setvices: he'dessary due to
the breach,

•12. Con'tractpr must, comply with-all applicable, sjatutes and regulations regarding the
p/jvacy •and security, ipf Cprtfiderijial ilpfprm^^^ apd must/jn. eii respects
majntaFn the pdyacy an'^ isepu/iiy .pf F^i •and PHI :a,l; a jeyel, and :s.cppe.;t.hal i.s not |[ess

•than ,the leyerahd scbpe. 'pr.requifeme.nts applicable :ib, federal agencies, Includin'g,
but hot limited ;to,- provisions of "the iPriv'acy 'Act of 1974 ;(5 ;U.S;C. 552a 'DHHS
Privacy Act RegulatTons (45 G.F-R, §5b); HjPAA Privacy and Secunty'Bule^^
fe pyR". Part's. 160 and'-i6'4) (hat govern prp.tec,(io.ns, fpr;ihdiyiduaJ!^^ i.dentifia.Bie; health
information and as applicable. under(state la^^^^

1,3. Goniractor agrees tpdsla'blish.an'd maintaih\appfopnate:admini,strativ.e, techriical,.and
physical safeguards Ip protect- the. conftdentiality Of. the'Gonfidential Data'arid 1o
prevent .unauthorized use or access Ip it, The^safeguard.s.r must provide, a level iand,

-seope. pf :security lhat is: .not less^ihan the leyer. a.nd iKOOpe of .security requiremehts
established by the'State of New Hampshire, Department of ihfofrhatibh. TecHholdgy.
Refer to Vendor ResourcesyPr6curement"al https://www:nh.g6v/doit/vehd6f/index.Htm
for the Department of Information TeChnplpg'y ppiicies, guidelines, 'Standards, -an.d

' procu reme.n't :j.nfprmatlbn

,14, ,Contractor' , agrees to maintain a documented breach 'notification rand :ih'cident
re"spbhse process. The CpntractOf will notliy Ihe :State's Privacy Officer .and the
S'tate's -Security ;Qfficer^ of ;an.y security breach Immediately, at the-email, .addresses
provided in Sectipn Vl. This includes a confidential informalipn [breach, cpmpujer
security ineideht, or 'suspected breach' which ^affects, or" includes eny State of New
Harnpshlre systems.that cohnecf to the State of New Hampshire network.

15., Contractor must restrict access to the Cohridentiai Data obtained .under this
Cqntrac't to only 1hpse authorized [End .Users-who need .=such Datarto.
p'e.ffdrm thejr official duties-in connectipn with purposes identified in.this Coritract..

16.,^he Cphtractpr must .ensOf,e .thafalj End Users;
a. do.mply -with euch .safeguards- "as referenced' iih -SeCtipn jy A. above,

jmple.mehted to prplecl .Cdnfidential, Ihforrn'atibh that is furhished, -jby iPKHS
under.this,.Gpntr'acyfromloss theft pr1riadyerte.nl'?'dis"cfc^^^

■b,- safeguard, this ihfbrmatipn.e^^ times,
c. ensufe.-that lad.top.s and .other electronic deyiees/media .containing .P.Hj, Pi or

p[FI|a"re eh,crVbted"ahd[passwo.rd-prote.cted.
dr- isend ernajls cpntaining'Cpnfidentiai Iriforrnatiprt brilv 'if encrypted and bping

se.ht :tb nhd bei.hg receiv'ed by •email laddresses of pe/soris -'authp'rlzed: to
receive such iriforfhatibh.

C'Sjl^slujxiale-IO/ps/lS E.xhibltK . Co'ntractQrJhltiais'^
•OHHS ifjofiTi'aiion,

SecurilylRequirern'ents '8/27202 2
"  619 • Date. " .
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Exhibit K

DMHS Information Security f^equirernents:

'6; limit disclosure, of the d.onfidentlai Inforrnatlpn.toihCex^^ .by law;

;f. ;Corifidehtlal Jnformalioh received under this'. Contract arid',, individually
identifiable data denved-from WHS Data; must t>e^ stored in an-area-that is
phys[ca!iy and' ie'cbngiogically s.esg.re. from access- by _una.uthorized persons
during duty ibpurs"-.a nop-duly hours (e.g,, door loCks, .card, .keys,
;biom'etric identifiers, etc.).

ig! .onily authorized End .U.sefs; may •transmit the; Cbiifidehtial Data, ihclu'dihg' any.
denvatiVe -files containing .personally iidentifiable ihforrhatipri. and" in all cases,
:such data mustV^be/encryp.'ted a.t .ajl tiixies whon in; transit-,, at-rest, or when
iStoredpr! portable medi.a as required In section. I'V above",

h. ,ih all ether iristanc.es Confidehtial Data must. be. Tnalritalned.^ us.ed and
disclosed' using appropriate- safeguards,- as determined iby- a risk^base'd
assessment of theicircumstances inyplyed,

understand jhatlhelr userxredentiais ̂ (user name .a.nd pas.s\yprdj ni.ust ;n,pi be
Shared with' ahyohe. End .Users . will keep their credential iriformatidh secure.
Thls/applies io.xredenti'als used .to access the-site-directly or indirectly thrpugh
a;t0d;party application,

)

Gdhtractor is respdhsible for ovC^rsight and cdmpliahee; of their End Users. DHHS-
resen/es; the right''to cdhdUct onsite Inspectioris- to; monitor coriipliance with this
.'dontraci; -including the privacy- and. security requiVements provided' In ihereln,-
;and;"dthec applicable; lav/s andjfederal fegulatiohs untii sucHnime, the .Confidential, Data"
is dis'pdsed 'of in.accdrdance with this Cohtract...

V. LOSS.REPORTING

Th.e'^e.pdtractor must' nptify^the Stale's Priypcy .OXiper p.nd, S.ecurily' of any
dbp'urity incidents'; tarid! Breaches: 'Jmirrediateiy, at th.e; .erhail, (addresses provided in
:Sectioh VI.

The; .Spntracjor 'must;furlh^^ haodte; and tepprt .Incidents'pnd' Brea.dhes, invpiying ;PHJ in
.acc'oTdari.ce yvith, ;the;agency's^'doCumented Iricideht Haridling and. BfeacH Ndti.ficatiOri
prb'cedufes farid ;ih 'accdrdarice'vvith: 42 C.F.R;. .§§, 431.300 -. 306:, Ih; addition to. and
ndtwithstandihg,: .Cohtractgr's ppmpliance'.with plj appycable-pbligatidhs. and .procedures,
Controgtods prgged address how, the; egntrac.tdt will:
1  Idehlify liTcid.e.nts:-

2. Determine if personally identifiable iriformatldn is involved in Iriciderits;-;
"Repbrt('auspp.cted prpdrifirnried .lncideh;is as required in l.his Exhibit or Rr37r

'4 IdentTfy p.nd.'Cgnyehe'" a :c.Ore. resp.oh.se grptip; to 'd.etermjhe the .ris.k.leye! pf IncW.ents
&  ahd deterrhiri'errislOTba.sed.Taspbnlse'^s.-'tb arid

-A'

V5.:LasCupdate'ld/d9M^ .. .,6xh!l>il;K Qo.'itfactofinitials^
DHHS.informaUon, . . .....

^curiiy Roguiromonts . •8/';2'/-2022
Page 8 of 9 .pal^Z,^;
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Exhibit k

DHHS Informatioh Security Requirements

VI.

5; petermine vyhelher- Breach notification is r^ujred. and. If -so, identify appropnate^
Breach, ;nptificatipn methods, tirning. jSpUrce, and cohtents frorh^amdhg different.
:Qptlbns, and bear costs assidciated with the Breach notice as well as any nriitigatibh
rheasures.

Incidents and/or Breaches t.hat impljcat.e PI must be addressed^ a,nd reported, as
applicable,-,in;;accprd^ NH RSA !3d9-Cl20,

PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer:

DHHSPfivacyO'ff!cer@dhhs;nh.9Pv

'B. DHHS Security .Officer:

DHHSIhformatidhSecurltyOffice@dhhs.rih.gov.

•yS-iLasl updaj,a 1WM/V8 •. Exhlblt K" ,
DHHSi.hfptiTiatibn

iSscufity Requiremenls;
Page 9 ;ol 6 ;

Cofitfactbriniliais
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